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SAFE HARBOR STATEMENT UNDER THE PRIVATE SECURITIES LITIGATION
REFORM ACT OF 1995: Forward-looking statements in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-
(%including, without limitation, statements relating to our future revenue and cash flows,
plans, strate%ies, objectives, expectations and intentions, are made pursuant to the safe harbor
provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Investors are cautioned
that such forward-looking statements are inherently subject to risks and uncertainties, many
of which cannot be predicted with accuracy, and some of which might not be anticipated,
including, without limitation, the following: (i) our plans, strategies, objectives, expectations
and intentions are subject to chan%]e at any time at our discretion; (ii) in connection with the
ac?uisition of Tommy Hilfiger B.V. and certain affiliated companies (collectively, “Tommy
Hilfiger”), we borrowed significant amounts, may be considered to be hi§hly leveraged, and
will have to use a significant portion of our cash %Ilows to service such indebtedness, as a
result of which we might not have sufficient funds to operate our businesses in the manner
we intend or have operated in the past; (iii) the levels of sales of our apparel, footwear and
related products, both to our wholesale customers and in our retail stores, the levels of sales
of our licensees at wholesale and retail, and the extent of discounts and promotional pricing
in which we and our licensees and other business partners are required to engage, all of
which can be affected by weather conditions, changes in the economy, fuel prices, reductions
in travel, fashion trends, consolidations, re]fositionlngs and bankruptcies in the retail
industries, repositionings of brands by our licensors and other factors; (iv) our plans and
results of operations will be affected by our a bility to manage our %rowth and inventory,
including our ability to continue to develop and grow our Calvin Klein businesses in terms of
revenue and profitability, and our ability to realize benefits from Tommy Hilfiger; (v) our
operations and results could be affected by quota restrictions and the imposition of safeguard
controls (which, among other things, could limit our ability to produce products in cost-
effective countries that have the labor and technical expertise needed), the availability and
cost of raw materials, our ability to adjust timely to changes in trade regulations and the
migration and development of manufacturers (which can affect where our products can best
be produced), and civil conflict, war or terrorist acts, the threat of any of the foregoing, or
olitical and labor instability in any of the countries where our or our licensees’ or other
usiness partners’ products are sold, produced or are planned to be sold or produced;
(V(if disease epidemics and health related con cerns, which could result in closed factories,
reduced workforces, scarcity of raw materials and scrutiny or embargoing of goods produced
in infected areas, as well as reduced consumer traffic and purchasing, as consumers limit or
cease shopping in order to avoid exposure or become ill; (vii) acquisitions and issues arising
with acquisitions and proposed transactions, including without limitation, the ability to
integrate an acquired entity, such as Tommy Hilfiger, into us with no substantial adverse
affect on the acquired entity’s or our existing operations, employee relationships, vendor
relationships, customer relationships or financial performance; (viii) the failure of our
licensees to market successfully licensed products or to preserve the value of our brands, or
their misuse of our brands; andy (ix) other risks and uncertainties indicated from time to time
in our filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

We do not undertake any obligation to update publicly any forward-looking statement,
including, without limitation, any estimate regarding revenue or cash flows, whether as a
result of the receipt of new information, future events or otherwise.




PART I - FINANCIAL INFORMATION
ITEM 1 - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation

We have reviewed the consolidated balance sheets of Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation as of
August 1, 2010 and August 2, 2009, the related consolidated statements of operations for the
thirteen and twenty-six week periods ended August 1, 2010 and August 2, 2009 and the related
consolidated statements of cash flows for the twenty-six week periods ended August 1, 2010 and
August 2, 2009. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management.

We conducted our reviews in accordance with the standards of the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board (United States). A review of interim financial information consists
principally of applying analytical procedures to financial data, and making inquiries of persons
responsible for financial and accounting matters. It is substantially less in scope than an audit
conducted in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the objective of which is the expression of an opinion regarding the financial
statements taken as a whole. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

Based on our reviews, we are not aware of any material modifications that should be made to
the consolidated interim financial statements referred to above for them to be in conformity with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

We have previously audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated balance sheet of Phillips-Van
Heusen Corporation as of January 31, 2010, and the related consolidated income statement,
statement of changes in stockholders’ equity, and statement of cash flows for the year then ended
(not presented herein) and in our report dated March 31, 2010, we expressed an unqualified
opinion on those consolidated financial statements. In our opinion, the information set forth in
the accompanying consolidated balance sheet as of January 31, 2010, is fairly stated, in all
material respects, in relation to the consolidated balance sheet from which it has been derived.

/s/ ERNST & YOUNG LLP

New York, New York
September 10, 2010



Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(In thousands, except share and per share data)

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade receivables, net of allowances for doubtful accounts of $12,426,
$7,224 and $11,242
Other receivables
Inventories, net
Prepaid expenses
Other, including deferred taxes of $46,800, $5,621 and $10,049
Total Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment, net
Goodwill
Tradenames
Perpetual License Rights
Other Intangibles, net
Other Assets, including deferred taxes of $66,214, $0 and $0
Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Deferred revenue
Short-term borrowings

Total Current Liabilities

Long-Term Debt

Other Liabilities, including deferred taxes of $603,103, $176,449
and $181,446

Stockholders’ Equity:

Preferred stock, par value $100 per share; 150,000 total shares
authorized (142,000; 150,000 and 150,000 shares undesignated); no
undesignated shares issued

Series A convertible preferred stock, par value $100 per share;

8,000 total shares authorized, issued and outstanding as of August 1,
2010

Common stock, par value $1 per share; 240,000,000 shares authorized;
66,448,534; 57,139,230 and 56,858,331 shares issued

Additional capital - common stock

Retained earnings

Accumulated other comprehensive loss

Less: 96,401; 5,236,818 and 5,235,282 shares of common stock held in
treasury, at cost

Total Stockholders’ Equity
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

See accompanying notes.

August 1, January 31, August 2,
2010 2010 2009
UNAUDITED AUDITED UNAUDITED
$ 475340 $ 480,882 $ 369,596
291,465 188,844 160,486
19,016 7,759 12,697
692,814 263,788 302,286
125,237 41,038 24,266
80,121 12,572 16,260
1,683,993 994,883 885,591
387,417 167,474 183,530
1,701,641 419,179 396,184
2,290,028 621,135 621,135
86,000 86,000 86,000
188,261 32,056 33,831
183,070 18,952 26,917
$ 6,520,410 $ 2,339,679 $ 2,233,188
$ 314,821 $ 108,494 $ 98,703
420,534 215,413 224,421
46,957 38,974 35,266
4,617 - -
786,929 362,881 358,390
2,491,635 399,584 399,576
1,046,278 408,661 420,326
188,595 - -
66,449 57,139 56,858
1,263,606 596,344 580,447
709,431 796,282 689,566
(26,286) (80,448) (71,276)
(6,227) __(200,764) __(200,699)
2,195,568 1,168,553 1,054,896
$ 6,520,410 $ 2,339,679 $ 2,233,188




Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation

Consolidated Statements of Operations

Unaudited
(In thousands, except per share data)

Net sales

Royalty revenue

Advertising and other revenue

Total revenue

Cost of goods sold

Gross profit

Selling, general and administrative expenses
Debt extinguishment costs

Other loss

(Loss) income before interest and taxes

Interest expense
Interest income

(Loss) income before taxes

Income tax (benefit) expense

Net (loss) income

Basic net (loss) income per common share

Diluted net (loss) income per common share

Dividends declared per common share

See accompanying notes.

Thirteen Weeks Ended
August 1, August 2,
2010 2009
$1,011,439 $457,410
68,106 52,571
23,723 19,302
1,103,268 529,283
528,027 263,527
575,241 265,756
524,637 214,307
6,650 -
88,100 -
(44,146) 51,449
39,706 8,378
481 393
(83,371) 43,464
(28,784) 16,907
$_ (54,587) $ 26,557
$  (083) $ 051
$  (0.83) $ 051
$ 0.00 $  0.00
3

Twenty-Six Weeks Ended

August 1, August 2,
2010 2009

$1,542,127 $ 933,155
132,965 111,489
47,220 42,064
1,722,312 1,086,708
830,038 549,126
892,274 537,582
811,837 437,019

6,650 -

140,490 -
(66,703) 100,563
48,088 16,744
588 899
(114,203) 84,718
_(32,003) 33,450
$ (82,200 $ 51,268
§  (L39) $ 0.99
$  (L39) $ 0.99
$  0.075 $  0.075




Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Unaudited
(In thousands)
Twenty-Six Weeks Ended
August 1, August 2,
2010 2009
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net (loss) income $  (82,200) $ 51,268
Adjustments to reconcile to net cash provided by operating activities:
Losses on settlement of derivative instruments 140,490 -
Depreciation and amortization 62,240 25,203
Deferred taxes (9,571) 1,059
Stock-based compensation expense 12,224 5,622
Impairment of long-lived assets - 1,494
Debt extinguishment costs 6,650 -
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Trade receivables, net 94,198 27,156
Inventories, net (142,162) (17,731)
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and deferred revenue 106,616 11,704
Prepaid expenses (54,482) 11,014
Other, net _ (32455  (35936)
Net cash provided by operating activities 101,548 80,853
INVESTING ACTIVITIES()
Business acquisitions, net of cash acquired (2,490,607) (5,699)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (29,014) (12,866)
Contingent purchase price payments (21,452) (18,591)
Losses on settlement of derivative instruments __(140,490) -
Net cash used by investing activities (2,681,563) _(37,156)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES(!)
Net proceeds from common stock offering 364,860 -
Net proceeds from preferred stock issuance 188,595 -
Net proceeds from issuance of debt 584,145 -
Net proceeds from credit facilities 1,825,223 -
Extinguishment of debt (303,645) -
Repayment of credit facilities (100,000) -
Net proceeds from settlement of awards under stock plans 6,732 1,693
Excess tax benefits from awards under stock plans 3,482 259
Cash dividends on common and preferred stock (4,652) (3,885)
Acquisition of treasury shares __(2,438) __ (335
Net cash provided (used) by financing activities 2,562,302 (2,268)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 12,171 -
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (5,542) 41,429
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 480,882 328,167
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 475,340 $369,596

(1) See Note 14 for information on noncash investing and financing transactions.

See accompanying notes.



PHILLIPS-VAN HEUSEN CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Currency and share amounts in thousands, except per share data)
1. GENERAL

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation
and its subsidiaries (the “Company”). The Company’s fiscal years are based on the 52-53 week
period ending on the Sunday closest to February 1 and are designated by the calendar year in
which the fiscal year commences. References to a year are to the Company’s fiscal year, unless
the context requires otherwise.

The accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States for interim
financial information. Accordingly, they do not contain all disclosures required by accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States for complete financial statements. Reference
should be made to the audited consolidated financial statements, including the notes thereto,
included in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended January 31, 2010.

The preparation of interim financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual
results could differ materially from the estimates.

The results of operations for the thirteen and twenty-six weeks ended August 1, 2010 and August
2, 2009 are not necessarily indicative of those for a full fiscal year due, in part, to seasonal
factors. The data contained in these financial statements are unaudited and are subject to year-
end adjustments. However, in the opinion of management, all known adjustments (which consist
only of normal recurring accruals) have been made to present fairly the consolidated operating
results for the unaudited periods.

Certain reclassifications have been made to the consolidated financial statements and the notes
thereto for the prior year periods to present that information on a basis consistent with the current
year.

References to the brand names Calvin Klein Collection, ck Calvin Klein, Calvin Klein, Tommy
Hilfiger, Van Heusen, IZOD, Bass, G.H. Bass & Co., ARROW, Eagle, Geoffrey Beene, CHAPS,
Sean John, Trump, Donald J. Trump Signature Collection, JOE Joseph Abboud, Kenneth Cole
New York, Kenneth Cole Reaction, MICHAEL Michael Kors, Michael Kors Collection, DKNY,
Elie Tahari, Nautica, Ike Behar, Ted Baker, Jones New York, J. Garcia, Claiborne, Robert
Graham, U.S. POLO ASSN., Axcess and Timberland and to other brand names are to registered
trademarks owned by the Company or licensed to the Company by third parties and are
identified by italicizing the brand name.

2. INVENTORIES

Inventories related to the Company’s wholesale and international retail operations, comprised
principally of finished goods, are stated at the lower of cost or market. Inventories related to the
Company’s North American retail operations, comprised entirely of finished goods, are stated at
the lower of average cost or market using the retail inventory method. Under the retail inventory
method, the valuation of inventories at cost is calculated by applying a cost-to-retail ratio to the
retail value of inventories. Permanent and point of sale markdowns, when recorded, reduce both
the retail and cost components of inventory on hand so as to maintain the already established
cost-to-retail relationship.

3. ACQUISITIONS

Acquisition of Tommy Hilfiger

The Company acquired on May 6, 2010 all of the outstanding equity interests of Tommy Hilfiger
B.V. and certain affiliated companies (collectively, “Tommy Hilfiger”). The results of Tommy

Hilfiger’s operations have been included in the Company’s consolidated financial statements
since that date.



Tommy Hilfiger, through its subsidiaries, designs, sources and markets men’s and women’s
sportswear and activewear, jeanswear, childrenswear and other products worldwide and licenses
its brands worldwide over a broad range of products.

The Company believes Tommy Hilfiger’s established international platform in Europe will be a
strategic complement to its strong North American presence and provides the Company with the
resources and expertise needed to grow its heritage brands and businesses internationally.

Eair Value of the Acquisition Consideration

The acquisition date fair value of the acquisition consideration paid at closing totaled
$2,969,225, which consisted of the following:

Cash $2,483,258
Common stock (8,044 shares, par value $1.00

per share) 485,967
Total fair value of the acquisition consideration $2,969,225

The fair value of the 8,044 common shares issued was equal to the aggregate value of the shares
at the closing market price of the Company’s common stock on May 5, 2010, the day prior to the
closing. The value is not the same as the value of the shares as determined pursuant to the
acquisition agreement, due to the fluctuation in the market price of the Company’s common
stock between the date of the acquisition agreement and the date of the acquisition closing.

The Company funded the cash portion and related costs of the Tommy Hilfiger acquisition with
cash on hand and the net proceeds of the following activities: (i) the sale on April 28, 2010 of
5,750 shares of the Company’s common stock; (ii) the issuances of an aggregate of 8 shares of
Series A convertible preferred stock, which are currently convertible into 4,189 shares of the
Company’s common stock, for an aggregate gross purchase price of $200,000; (iii) the issuance
of $600,000 of 7 3/8% senior notes due 2020; and (iv) the borrowing of approximately
$1,900,000 of term loans under new credit facilities.

Please see the notes entitled “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” “Debt” and “Stockholders’
Equity” for a further discussion of these aspects of the acquisition.

The Company incurred certain pre-tax costs directly associated with the acquisition, totaling
approximately $52,000, which are included within selling, general and administrative expenses
in its financial statements. The Company also recorded a loss of $140,490 during the twenty-six
weeks ended August 1, 2010 associated with hedges against Euro to United States dollar
exchange rates relating to the purchase price. The Company incurred costs totaling $28,920
associated with the issuance of the common and preferred shares related to the acquisition, which
were deducted from the recognized proceeds of issuance within stockholders’ equity. The
Company incurred costs totaling $70,512 associated with the issuance of debt related to the
acquisition, which will be amortized over the term of the related debt agreement.

Tommy Hilfiger had total revenue of $532,175 and a net loss, after non-cash valuation
amortization charges and transaction and integration costs, of $(4,720) for the period from the
date of acquisition through August 1, 2010. These amounts are included in the Company’s results
of operations for the thirteen and twenty-six week periods then ended.

Pro Forma Impact of the Transaction

The following table presents the Company’s pro forma consolidated results of operations as if the
acquisition and the related financing transactions had occurred on February 2, 2009 instead of on
May 6, 2010. The pro forma results were calculated applying the Company’s accounting policies
and reflect: (i) the impact on depreciation and amortization based on what would have been
charged related to the fair value adjustments to Tommy Hilfiger’s property, plant and equipment
and the intangible assets recorded in connection with the acquisition; (ii) the impact on interest
expense and interest income resulting from changes to the Company’s capital structure in
connection with the acquisition; (iii) the impact on cost of goods sold resulting from acquisition-
date adjustments to the fair value of inventory; and (iv) the tax effects of the above adjustments.
The pro forma results do not include any anticipated cost synergies or other effects of the plann
ed integration of Tommy Hilfiger. Accordingly, such pro forma amounts are
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not necessarily indicative of the results that actually would have occurred had the acquisition
been completed on February 2, 2009, nor are they indicative of the future operating results of the
combined company.

Pro Forma Pro Forma
Thirteen Weeks Ended Twenty-Six Weeks Ended
8/1/10 8/2/09 8/1/10 8/2/09
Total revenue $1,112,040  $1,013,806 $2,368,196  $2,157,053
Net income 54,749 8,915 114,794 3,521

Allocation of the Acquisition Consideration

The following table summarizes the estimated fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities
assumed at the date of acquisition:

Trade receivables $ 193,080
Inventories 282,838
Prepaid expenses 32,232
Other current assets 95,135
Property, plant and equipment 230,505
Goodwill 1,225,470
Tradenames 1,635,417
Other intangibles 172,069
Other assets 121,002
Accounts payable 91,570
Accrued expenses 224,195
Other liabilities 702,758

The Company is still in the process of valuing the assets acquired and liabilities assumed; thus,
the allocation of the purchase price is subject to change.

In connection with the acquisition, the Company recorded goodwill of $1,225,470, which was
assigned to the Company’s Tommy Hilfiger North America and Tommy Hilfiger International
segments (See Note 15, “Segment Data”) in the amounts of $82,352 and $1,143,118,
respectively. None of the goodwill is expected to be deductible for tax purposes. The Company
also recorded other intangible assets of $1,807,486, which included customer relationships of
$138,724, covenants not to compete of $1,527 and order backlog of $31,818, which are all
amortizable, as well as indefinitely-lived tradenames of $1,635,417.

Acquisition of Tommy Hilfiger Handbag License

On June 14, 2010, the Company entered into an agreement to reacquire from a licensee, prior to
the expiration of the license, the rights to distribute Tommy Hilfiger branded handbags
internationally. The effective date of the transfer of the rights is December 31, 2010. In
connection with this transaction, the Company made a payment of $7,349 to the licensee during
the second quarter of 2010.

The transaction is being accounted for as a business combination. The Company’s preliminary
assessment of the assets to be acquired by the Company on December 31, 2010 is that no
amortizable intangible assets will be acquired. Until a more complete allocation of the purchase
price is finalized, the Company has classified the entire $7,349 purchase price as goodwill.

Acquisition of Block Assets

The Company acquired in February 2009 from Block Corporation (“Block”), a former licensee
of Van Heusen and IZOD “big and tall” sportswear in the United States, inventories and
inventory purchase commitments related to the licensed business. As part of this transaction, the
license agreements between the Company and Block were terminated. The Company paid $5,699
during the first quarter of 2009 in connection with the transaction.



4. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for the period ended August 1, 2010, by
segment, were as follows:

Heritage
Brand Heritage Tommy
Wholesale Brand Hilfiger Tommy
Dress Wholesale  Calvin Klein North Hilfiger
Furnishings Sportswear _ Licensing_ America International _Total

Balance as of January 31, 2010
Goodwill, gross $ 74932 $ 84553 $ 259,694 $ - $ - $ 419,179
Accumulated impairment losses - - - - - -
Goodwill, net 74,932 84,553 259,694 - - 419,179
Contingent purchase price payments to

Mr. Calvin Klein - - 18,235 - - 18,235
Goodwill from acquisition of

Tommy Hilfiger - - - 82,352 1,143,118 1,225,470
Goodwill from acquisition of

Tommy Hilfiger handbag license - - - - 7,349 7,349
Currency translation (98) - (315) 251 31,570 31,408
Balance as of August 1, 2010
Goodwill, gross 74,834 84,553 277,614 82,603 1,182,037 1,701,641
Accumulated impairment losses - - - - - -
Goodwill, net $ 74,834 $ 84,553 $ 277,614 $ 82,603 $1,182,037 $1,701,641

The Company is required to make contingent purchase price payments to Mr. Calvin Klein in
connection with the Company’s acquisition in 2003 of all of the issued and outstanding stock of
Calvin Klein, Inc. and certain affiliated companies (collectively, “Calvin Klein”). Such payments
are based on 1.15% of total worldwide net sales, as defined in the agreement (as amended)
governing the Calvin Klein acquisition, of products bearing any of the Calvin Klein brands and
are required to be made with respect to sales made through February 12, 2018. A significant
portion of the sales on which the payments to Mr. Klein are made are wholesale sales by the
Company and its licensees and other partners to retailers.

The Company’s intangible assets subject to amortization consisted of the following:

Customer Relationships

Gross

Carrying Accumulated Currency

Amount Amortization Translation Net
Balance as of January 31, 2010 $ 35507 $ (7,299) $ - $ 28,208
Amount recorded in connection with the

acquisition of Tommy Hilfiger 138,724 - - 138,724
Amortization - (3,470) - (3,470)
Currency translation - - 3,651 3,651
Balance as of August 1, 2010 $ 174231 $  (10,769) $ 3,651 $ 167,113
8



Covenants Not to Compete

Gross
Carrying Accumulated Currency
__Amount  Amortization  Translation _ Net
Balance as of January 31, 2010 $ 600 $ (420) $ - $ 180
Amount recorded in connection with the
acquisition of Tommy Hilfiger 1,527 - - 1,527
Amortization - (218) - (218)
Currency translation - - 34 34
Balance as of August 1, 2010 $ 2,127 $ (638) $ 34 $ 1,523
Order Backlog
Gross
Carrying Accumulated Currency
__Amount  Amortization  Translation _ Net
Balance as of January 31, 2010 $ - $ - $ - $ -
Amount recorded in connection with the
acquisition of Tommy Hilfiger 31,818 - - 31,818
Amortization - (15,663) - (15,663)
Currency translation - - 186 186
Balance as of August 1, 2010 $ 31,818 $  (15,663) $ 186 $ 16,341
License Rights
Gross Carrying Accumulated
Amount Amortization Net
Balance as of January 31, 2010 $ 5,007 $ (1,339) $ 3,668
Amortization - (384), (384)
Balance as of August 1, 2010 $ 5,007 $ (1,723) $ 3,284

Customer relationships recorded in connection with the acquisition of Tommy Hilfiger are
amortized principally over 15 years from the date of acquisition. Covenants not to compete in
connection with the Tommy Hilfiger acquisition are amortized over two years from the date of
acquisition. Order backlog in connection with the Tommy Hilfiger acquisition is amortized over
six months from the date of acquisition. As of August 1, 2010, the weighted average life of the
amortizable intangible assets recorded in connection with the acquisition of Tommy Hilfiger was
13.1 years.

Customer relationships and license rights recorded as of January 31, 2010 are amortized
principally over 15 years from the date of the related acquisition. Covenants not to compete
recorded as of January 31, 2010 are amortized over ten years from the date of acquisition.

As of August 1, 2010, accumulated amortization for other intangible assets was $28,793.
Amortization expense, a portion of which is subject to exchange rate fluctuation, for the

remainder of 2010 and the next five years thereafter related to the Company’s intangible assets is
expected to be as follows:

Remainder of 2010 $23,057

2011 12,993

2012 12,405

2013 12,149

2014 12,149

2015 12,149
9



The Company’s intangible assets not subject to amortization consisted of the following:

Perpetual
Tradenames License Rights Total
Balance as of January 31, 2010 $ 621,135 $ 86,000 $ 707,135
Amount recorded in connection with the acquisition of
Tommy Hilfiger 1,635,417 - 1,635,417
Currency translation 33,476 - 33,476
Balance as of August 1, 2010 $ 2,290,028 $ 86,000 $ 2,376,028

5. RETIREMENT AND BENEFIT PLANS

The Company has five noncontributory defined benefit pension plans covering substantially all
employees resident in the United States (not currently including any employees associated with
the businesses acquired in the Tommy Hilfiger acquisition) who meet certain age and service
requirements. For those vested (after five years of service), the plans provide monthly benefits
upon retirement based on career compensation and years of credited service.

The Company also has for certain of such employees an unfunded non-qualified supplemental
defined benefit pension plan, which provides benefits for compensation in excess of Internal
Revenue Service earnings limits and requires payments to vested employees upon, or shortly
after, employment termination or retirement.

As aresult of the Company’s acquisition of Tommy Hilfiger, the Company also has for certain
members of Tommy Hilfiger’s senior management a supplemental executive retirement plan
(“SERP Plan”), which is a non-qualified unfunded supplemental defined benefit pension plan.
Such plan is frozen, and as a result, participants do not accrue additional benefits.

In addition to the defined benefit pension plans described above, the Company has a capital
accumulation program (“CAP Plan”), which is an unfunded non-qualified supplemental defined
benefit plan covering four current and 16 retired executives. Under the individual participants’
CAP Plan agreements, the participants will receive a predetermined amount during the 10 years
following the attainment of age 65, provided that prior to the termination of employment with the
Company, the participant has been in the CAP Plan for at least 10 years and has attained age 55.

The Company also provides certain postretirement health care and life insurance benefits to
certain retirees resident in the United States. Retirees contribute to the cost of this plan, which is
unfunded. During 2002, the postretirement plan was amended to eliminate benefits for active
participants who, as of January 1, 2003, had not attained age 55 and 10 years of service.

Net benefit cost related to the Company’s pension plans was recognized as follows:

Thirteen Weeks Ended Twenty-Six Weeks Ended

8/1/10 8/2/09 8/1/10 8/2/09
Service cost, including plan expenses $ 2,413 $ 1,891 $ 4,758 $ 3,818
Interest cost 4,537 4,197 8,922 8,468
Amortization of net loss 1,921 533 3,790 1,170
Expected return on plan assets (4,982) (5,048) (9,985) (10,122)
Amortization of prior service credit (15) 8) (31) (15)
Total $ 3,874 $ 1,565 $ 7,454 $ 3,319
10



Net benefit cost related to the Company’s CAP Plan and SERP Plan was recognized as follows:

Thirteen Weeks Ended Twenty-Six Weeks Ended

8/1/10 8/2/09 8/1/10 8/2/09
Service cost, including plan expenses $ 22 $ 17 $ 45 $ 35
Interest cost 463 240 696 488
Amortization of net gain - 9 - —(18)
Total $ 485 $ 248 $ 741 $ 505

Net benefit (credit) cost related to the Company’s postretirement plan was recognized as follows:

Thirteen Weeks Ended Twenty-Six Weeks Ended

8/1/10 8/2/09 8/1/10 8/2/09
Interest cost $ 206 $ 365 $ 545 $ 730
Amortization of net loss (105) 65 - 129
Amortization of prior service credit _(205) _(205) _(409) _(409)
Total $(104) $ 225 $ 136 $ 450

6. COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS) INCOME
Comprehensive (loss) income was as follows:

Thirteen Weeks Ended Twenty-Six Weeks Ended
8/1/10 8/2/09 8/1/10 8/2/09

Net (loss) income $(54,587) $26,557 $(82,200) $51,268
Foreign currency translation adjustments, net of

tax (benefit) expense of $(310); $533; $(622) and

$736 58,377 876 57,864 1,210
Change related to retirement and benefit plan

costs, net of tax expense of $604; $141; $1,267

and $323 992 235 2,083 534
Unrealized losses on derivative financial

instruments _(5.785) - _(5.785) -
Comprehensive (loss) income $ (1,003) $27,668 $(28,038) $53,012
7. DEBT

Short-Term Borrowings

One of the Company’s subsidiaries has a Yen-denominated overdraft facility with a Japanese
bank, which provides for borrowings of ¥600,000 (approximately $6,900 based on the Yen to
United States dollar exchange rate in effect on August 1, 2010) and is utilized to fund working
capital. Borrowings under the facility are unsecured and bear interest at the one month Japanese
inter-bank borrowing rate (“TTBOR”) plus 0.20%. Such facility matures on May 31, 2011. The
outstanding balance was ¥400,000 ($4,617 based on the Yen to United States dollar exchange
rate in effect on August 1, 2010) as of August 1, 2010, with the balance of ¥200,000 ($2,283
based on the Yen to United States dollar exchange rate in effect on August 1, 2010) remaining
undrawn under the facility. The weighted average interest rate on the funds borrowed at August
1, 2010 was 0.42%.
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Long-Term Debt

The carrying amounts of the Company’s long-term debt were as follows:

8/1/10 8/2/09
Senior secured term loan A facility due 2015 $ 471,668 $ -
Senior secured term loan B facility due 2016 1,320,374 -
7 3/8% senior unsecured notes due 2020 600,000 -
7 3/4% debentures due 2023 99,593 99,576
7 1/4% senior unsecured notes due 2011 - 150,000
8 1/8% senior unsecured notes due 2013 - 150,000
Total $2,491,635 $ 399,576

Senior Secured Credit Facilities

On May 6, 2010, the Company entered into a new senior secured credit facility, which consists
of a Euro-denominated term loan A facility, a United States dollar-denominated term loan A
facility, a Euro-denominated term loan B facility, a United States dollar-denominated term loan B
facility, a United States dollar-denominated revolving credit facility and two multi-currency (one
United States dollar and Canadian dollar, and the other Euro, Yen and Pound) revolving credit
facilities. These credit facilities provide for borrowings equal to an aggregate of approximately
$2,350,000 (based on applicable exchange rates in effect on August 1, 2010), consisting of (i) an
aggregate of approximately $1,900,000 of term loan facilities, which had been borrowed in full
at May 6, 2010 and for which the Company made repayments of $100,000 during the second
quarter of 2010; and (ii) approximately $450,000 of revolving credit facilities, for which the
Company had no revolving credit borrowings and $195,824 of letters of credit outstanding as of
August 1, 2010.

The term loan A facilities and the revolving credit facilities will mature on May 6, 2015 and the
term loan B facilities will mature on May 6, 2016. Borrowings under the credit facilities bear
interest at a rate equal to an applicable margin plus a variable rate, each of which is determined
based on the jurisdiction of such borrowings. The terms of each of the term loan A and B
facilities contain a mandatory repayment schedule on a quarterly basis, such that the total annual
repayments are as follows:

Term Loan
A B

Originally borrowed on May 6, 2010, based on the applicable exchange

rate at that date $494,970 $1,384,910
Percentage required to be repaid for the annual period ending May 6:

2011 5% 1%

2012 10% 1%

2013 15% 1%

2014 25% 1%

2015 45% 1%

2016 - 95%

Additionally, in the event there is consolidated Excess Cash Flow, as defined in the agreement,
for any fiscal year, the Company is required to prepay a percentage of such amount based on its
Leverage Ratio, as calculated in accordance with the agreement. Such amount will be reduced by
any repayments made during the preceding fiscal year.

All repayments made under the facilities are applied on a pro rata basis, determined by the
amounts then outstanding under each of the United States dollar and Euro tranches of term loans
A and B. In addition, the Company has the ability to prepay at any time the outstanding
borrowings under the new senior secured credit facility without penalty (other than customary
breakage costs).

The United States dollar-denominated borrowings under the senior secured credit facility bear
interest at a rate equal to an applicable margin plus, as determined at the Company’s option,
either (a) a base rate determined by reference
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to the higher of (i) the prime rate, (ii) the United States federal funds rate plus 1/2 of 1% and (iii)
a one-month adjusted Eurocurrency rate plus 1% (provided, that, in the case of the term loan A
and B facilities, in no event will the base rate be deemed to be less than 2.75%); or (b) an
adjusted Eurocurrency rate, calculated in a manner set forth in the senior secured credit facility
(provided, that, in the case of the term loan A and B facilities, in no event will the adjusted
Eurocurrency rate be deemed to be less than 1.75%).

Canadian dollar-denominated borrowings under the revolving credit facility bear interest at a rate
equal to an applicable margin plus, as determined at the Company’s option, either (a) a Canadian
prime rate determined by reference to the greater of (i) the average of the rates of interest per
annum equal to the per annum rate of interest quoted, published and commonly known in Canada
as the “prime rate” or which Royal Bank of Canada establishes at its main office in Toronto,
Ontario as the reference rate of interest in order to determine interest rates for loans in Canadian
dollars to its Canadian borrowers and (ii) the sum of (x) the average of the rates per annum for
Canadian dollar bankers’ acceptances having a term of one month that appears on the Reuters
Screen CDOR Page as of 10:00 a.m. (Toronto time) on the date of determination, as reported by
the administrative agent (and if such screen is not available, any successor or similar service a s
may be selected by the administrative agent), and (y) 1%, or (b) an adjusted Eurocurrency rate,
calculated in a manner set forth in the senior secured credit facility.

The borrowings under the senior secured credit facility in currencies other than United States
dollars or Canadian dollars bear interest at a rate equal to an applicable margin plus an adjusted
Eurocurrency rate, calculated in a manner set forth in the senior secured credit facility (provided
that, in the case of the term loan A and B facilities, in no event will the adjusted Eurocurrency
rate be deemed to be less than 1.75%).

The initial applicable margins will be (a) in the case of the United States dollar-denominated
term loan A facility and the United States dollar-denominated term loan B facility, 3.00% for
adjusted Eurocurrency rate loans and 2.00% for base rate loans, as applicable, (b) in the case of
the Euro-denominated term loan A facility and the Euro-denominated term loan B facility, 3.25%
and (c) in the case of the revolving credit facilities, (x) for borrowings denominated in United
States dollars, 3.00% for adjusted Eurocurrency rate loans and 2.00% for base rate loans, as
applicable, (y) for borrowings denominated in Canadian dollars, 3.00% for adjusted
Eurocurrency rate loans and 2.00% for Canadian prime rate loans, as applicable, and (z) for
borrowings denominated in other currencies, 3.25%. After the date of delivery of the compliance
certificate and financial statements with respect to the Company’s period ending January 30,
2011, the applicable margin for bo rrowings under the term loan A facilities and the revolving
credit facilities will be adjusted depending on the Company’s leverage ratio.

7 3/8% Senior Notes Due 2020

On May 6, 2010, the Company issued $600,000 principal amount of 7 3/8% senior notes due
May 15, 2020 under an indenture between the Company and U.S. Bank National Association, as
trustee. Interest on the 7 3/8% notes is payable semi-annually in arrears on May 15 and
November 15 of each year, commencing November 15, 2010.

The Company may redeem some or all of these notes on or after May 15, 2015 at specified
redemption prices. The Company may redeem some or all of these notes at any time prior to May
15, 2015 by paying a “make whole” premium. In addition, the Company may also redeem up to
35% of these notes prior to May 15, 2013 with the net proceeds of certain equity offerings.

Prior Senior Secured Revolving Credit Facility

On May 6, 2010, the Company terminated its $325,000 secured revolving credit facility with JP
Morgan Chase Bank, N.A., as the Administrative Agent and Collateral Agent, which was
scheduled to expire in July 2012.

Tender for and Redemption of 2011 Notes and 2013 Notes

The Company commenced tender offers on April 7, 2010 for (i) all of the $150,000 outstanding
principal amount of its notes due 2011; and (ii) all of the $150,000 outstanding principal amount
of its notes due 2013. The tender offers expired on May 4, 2010. On May 6, 2010, the Company
accepted for purchase all of the notes tendered and made payment to tendering holders and called
for redemption all of the balance of its outstanding 7 1/4% senior notes due 2011, and all of the
balance of its outstanding 8 1/8% senior notes due 2013. The redemption prices of the notes due
2011 and 2013 were 100.000% and 101.354%, respectively, of the outstanding aggregate
principal amount of each
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applicable note, plus accrued and unpaid interest thereon to the redemption date. As of May 6,
2010, the Company made an irrevocable cash deposit, including accrued and unpaid interest, to
the trustee for the notes due 2011 and 2013. As a result, such notes have been satisfied and
effectively discharged as of May 6, 2010.

The Company incurred a loss of $6,650 during the second quarter of 2010 on the extinguishment
of its 7 1/4% senior notes due 2011 and its 8 1/8% senior notes due 2013.

8. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company entered into foreign currency forward exchange contracts with respect to
€1,300,000 during the first quarter of 2010 and €250,000 during the second quarter of 2010 in
connection with the acquisition of Tommy Hilfiger to hedge against its exposure to changes in
the exchange rate for the Euro, as a portion of the acquisition purchase price was payable in cash
and denominated in Euros. Such foreign currency forward exchange contracts were not
designated as hedging instruments. The Company settled the foreign currency forward exchange
contracts at a loss of $140,490 (of which $88,100 was recorded in the second quarter of 2010) on
May 6, 2010 in connection with the Company’s completion of the Tommy Hilfiger acquisition.
Such loss is reflected in Other Loss in the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Operation s.

The Company has increased exposure to changes in foreign currency exchange rates related to
certain anticipated cash flows associated with international inventory purchases as a result of the
Company’s acquisition of Tommy Hilfiger. To help manage this exposure, the Company
periodically uses foreign currency forward exchange contracts. The Company does not use
derivative financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes.

The Company records the foreign currency forward exchange contracts at fair value in its
consolidated balance sheets. Changes in fair value of foreign currency forward exchange
contracts that are designated as hedging instruments are deferred in equity as a component of
accumulated other comprehensive loss. Changes in the fair value of foreign currency forward
exchange contracts that are not designated as hedging instruments are immediately recognized in
earnings.

The following table summarizes the fair value and presentation in the consolidated balance
sheets for the Company’s foreign currency forward exchange contracts:

Asset Derivatives Liability Derivatives
(Classified in Other Current Assets) (Classified in Accrued Expenses)
8/1/10 8/2/09 8/1/10 8/2/09
$3,766 $ - $9,473 $ -

At August 1, 2010, the notional amount of foreign currency forward exchange contracts
outstanding was approximately $235,000 against the Euro and $54,000 against the Canadian
dollar. Such contracts expire between August 2010 and August 2011. No amounts were excluded
from effectiveness testing.

The following table summarizes the effect of the Company’s derivatives designated as hedging
instruments, which consist of the foreign currency forward exchange contracts for inventory
purchases:

Amount of Loss Gain Reclassified from Accumulated Other
Recognized in Other Comprehensive Loss into Income Loss Recognized in Income on Derivatives
Comprehensive Loss on Derivatives (Effective Portion) (Ineffective Portion),
__(Effective Portion)___ Amount Amount
Thirteen and Thirteen and Thirteen and
Twenty-Six Weeks Ended Location Twenty-Six Weeks Ended Location Twenty-Six Weeks Ended
8/1/10 8/2/09 8/1/10 8/2/09 8/1/10 8/2/09
Selling, general and
administrative
$(5,785) $ - Cost of goods sold $3,914 $ - expenses $(6,106) $ -
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The above amount of $5,785 recognized in accumulated other comprehensive loss on foreign
currency forward exchange contracts at August 1, 2010 will be recognized principally in the next
12 months in the Consolidated Statements of Operations as costs of goods sold as the underlying
inventory is sold.

Please refer to Note 9 “Fair Value Measurements,” for disclosures on fair value measurements of
the Company’s derivative financial instruments. The Company had no derivative financial
instruments with credit risk related contingent features underlying the related contracts as of
August 1, 2010.

9. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) guidance for fair value measurements defines
fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in the
principal or most advantageous market in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. It also establishes a three level hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs used to
measure fair value. The three levels of the hierarchy are defined as follows:

Level 1 — Inputs are unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the Company has the ability to access at the measurement date.

Level 2 — Observable inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1, including quoted
prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical assets or
liabilities in inactive markets, inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the
asset or liability and inputs derived principally from or corroborated by observable market
data.

Level 3 — Unobservable inputs reflecting the Company’s own assumptions about the inputs
that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability based on the best
information available.

In accordance with the fair value hierarchy described above, the following table shows the fair
value of the Company’s financial assets and liabilities that were required to be remeasured at fair
value on a recurring basis during the twenty-six weeks ended August 1, 2010:

Total Fair
Fair Value Measurement Using__ Value at
Description Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 8/1/10
Derivative instrument assets N/A $ 3,766 N/A $ 3,766
Derivative instrument liabilities N/A $9,473 N/A $ 9,473

Derivative instruments presented above represent unrealized gains and losses on foreign
currency forward exchange contracts, which are measured as the difference between (i) the
United States dollars to be paid at the contracts’ settlement date and (ii) the United States dollar
value of the foreign currency to be purchased at the current forward or period end spot rate, as
applicable.

There were no financial assets or liabilities that were required to be remeasured at fair value on a
recurring basis during the twenty-six weeks ended August 2, 2009.

There were no non-financial assets or liabilities that were required to be remeasured at fair value
on a nonrecurring basis during the twenty-six weeks ended August 1, 2010.

In accordance with FASB guidance for the impairment or disposal of long-lived assets, long-
lived assets held and used with a carrying amount of $136 were written down to a fair value of
zero during the first quarter of 2009. Fair value was determined based on the estimated
discounted future cash flows associated with the assets using current sales trends and market
participant assumptions. Additionally, long-lived assets held for sale with a carrying amount of
$2,783 were written down to a fair value of $1,425 during the second quarter of 2009 based on
the quoted contractual selling price of such assets, less the related selling costs. Such assets were
sold during the third quarter of 2009.
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The following table shows the fair value of the Company’s non-financial assets and liabilities
that were required to be remeasured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis during the twenty-six
weeks ended August 2, 2009, and the total impairments recorded as a result of the
remeasurement process:

Total
Fair Value Impairments for
as of Twenty-Six Weeks
Fair Value Measurement Using____ Impairment Ended
Description Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Date 8/2/09
Property and equipment N/A $1,425 $ - $ 1,425 $ 1,494

The carrying amounts and the fair values of the Company’s cash and cash equivalents, short-term
borrowings and long-term debt for the periods ended August 1, 2010 and August 2, 2009 were as
follows:

8/1/10 8/2/09
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value
Cash and cash equivalents $ 475,340 $ 475,340 $369,596 $369,596
Short-term borrowings 4,617 4,617 - -
Long-term debt 2,491,635 2,522,577 399,576 378,375

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents and short-term borrowings approximate their
carrying values due to the short-term nature of these instruments. The Company estimates the
fair value of its long-term debt using quoted market prices as of the last business day of the
applicable quarter.

10. STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

The Company’s 2006 Stock Incentive Plan (the “2006 Plan”) was approved at the Company’s
Annual Meeting of Stockholders held in June 2006. The 2006 Plan replaced the Company’s then-
existing 1997, 2000 and 2003 Stock Option Plans. The 1997, 2000 and 2003 Stock Option Plans
terminated on the date of such approval, other than with respect to outstanding options under
those plans, which continue to be governed by the respective plan under which they were
granted. Shares issued as a result of stock-based compensation transactions generally have been
funded with the issuance of new shares of the Company’s common stock.

The Company may grant the following types of incentive awards under the 2006 Plan: (i) non-
qualified stock options (“NQs”); (ii) incentive stock options (“ISOs”); (iii) stock appreciation
rights; (iv) restricted stock; (v) restricted stock units (“RSUs”); (vi) performance shares; and (vii)
other stock-based awards. Each award granted under the 2006 Plan is subject to an award
agreement that incorporates, as applicable, the exercise price, the term of the award, the periods
of restriction, the number of shares to which the award pertains, applicable performance
period(s) and performance measure(s), and such other terms and conditions as the plan
committee determines.

Through August 1, 2010, the Company has granted under the 2006 Plan: (i) service-based NQs
and RSUs; (ii) contingently issuable performance shares; and (iii) RSUs that are intended to
satisfy the performance-based condition for deductibility under Section 162(m) of the Internal
Revenue Code. According to the terms of the 2006 Plan, for purposes of determining the number
of shares available for grant, each share underlying a stock option award reduces the number
available by one share and each share underlying an RSU, restricted stock or performance share
award reduces the number available by three shares for awards made before April 29, 2009 and
by two shares for awards made on or after April 29, 2009. The per share exercise price of options
granted under the 2006 Plan cannot be less than the closing price of the common stock on the
date of grant (the business day prior to the date of grant for awards granted prior to September
21, 2006). In addition, the Company granted restricted stock to certain of Tommy Hilfiger’s
management employees in the second quarter of 2010 in connection with the acquisition of
Tommy Hilfiger.

The Company currently has service-based NQs and ISOs outstanding under its 1997, 2000 and
2003 Stock Option Plans. Such options were granted with an exercise price equal to the closing
price of the common stock on the business day immediately preceding the date of grant.
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Net (loss) income for the twenty-six weeks ended August 1, 2010 and August 2, 2009 included
$12,224 and $5,622, respectively, of pre-tax expense related to stock-based compensation.

Options currently outstanding are generally cumulatively exercisable in four equal annual
installments commencing one year after the date of grant. The vesting of options outstanding is
also generally accelerated upon retirement (as defined in the applicable plan). Options are
generally granted with a 10-year term.

The Company estimates the fair value of stock options granted at the date of grant using the
Black-Scholes-Merton model. The estimated fair value of the options, net of estimated
forfeitures, is expensed on a straight-line basis over the options’ vesting period.

The following summarizes the assumptions used to estimate the fair value of service-based stock
options granted during the twenty-six weeks ended August 1, 2010 and August 2, 2009,
respectively:

Twenty-Six Weeks Ended

8/1/10 8/2/09
Weighted average risk-free interest rate 2.99% 2.58%
Weighted average expected option term (in years) 6.25 6.59
Weighted average expected volatility 41.78% 38.92%
Expected annual dividends per share $ 0.15 $ 0.15
Weighted average estimated fair value per share of options granted $26.45 $11.16

The Securities and Exchange Commission issued Staff Accounting Bulletin (“SAB”) No. 110 in
December 2007. SAB No. 110 allows for the continued use, under certain circumstances, of the
simplified method discussed in SAB No. 107 for estimating the expected term of “plain vanilla”
stock options. The Company has continued to utilize the simplified method to estimate the
expected term for its stock options granted due to a lack of relevant historical data resulting, in
part, from recent changes in the pool of employees receiving option grants and changes in the
vesting schedule of certain grants. The Company will continue to evaluate the appropriateness of
utilizing such method.

Service-based stock option activity for the twenty-six weeks ended August 1, 2010 was as
follows:

Weighted Average
Options _Price Per Option

Outstanding at January 31, 2010 3,616 $ 30.16
Granted 124 59.66
Exercised 310 21.58
Cancelled 2 28.27

Outstanding at August 1, 2010 3,428 $ 32.01

Exercisable at August 1, 2010 2,522 $ 30.87

Service-based RSUs granted to employees generally vest in three annual installments (25%, 25%
and 50%) commencing two years after the date of grant. Service-based RSUs granted to non-
employee directors vest in four equal annual installments commencing one year after the date of
grant. The underlying RSU award agreements generally provide for accelerated vesting upon the
award recipient’s retirement (as defined in the 2006 Plan). The fair value of service-based RSUs
is equal to the closing price of the Company’s common stock on the date of grant and is
expensed, net of estimated forfeitures, on a straight-line basis over the RSUs’ vesting period.

RSU activity for the twenty-six weeks ended August 1, 2010 was as follows:

Weighted Average
Grant Date
RSUs Fair Value
Non-vested at January 31, 2010 734 $ 35.85
Granted 163 58.80
Vested 85 45.24
Cancelled 12 40.04
Non-vested at August 1, 2010 800 $ 39.48
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The Company granted restricted stock to certain of Tommy Hilfiger’s management employees in
connection with the Company’s acquisition of Tommy Hilfiger during the second quarter of
2010. The stock is registered in the name of each such employee and is held in a third-party
escrow account until it vests, at which time the stock will be delivered to the employees who
have vested in the awards. The restricted stock vests upon the second anniversary of the date of
grant.

The fair value of restricted stock is equal to the closing price of the Company’s common stock on
the date of grant and is expensed, net of forfeitures, on a straight-line basis over the restricted
stock’s vesting period.

Restricted stock activity for the twenty-six weeks ended August 1, 2010 was as follows:

Weighted Average

Restricted Grant Date
Stock Fair Value
Non-vested at January 31, 2010 - $ -
Granted 179 60.41
Vested - -
Non-vested at August 1, 2010 179 $ 60.41

The Company granted contingently issuable performance share awards to all of the Company’s
senior executives (other than senior executives of Tommy Hilfiger) during the second quarter of
2010 and to all then-executive officers of the Company during the first quarter of 2010 and the
first quarter of 2008, subject to performance periods of three, two and three years, respectively.
The final number of shares that will be earned, if any, is contingent upon the Company’s
achievement of goals for each of the performance periods based on earnings per share growth for
the awards granted in 2010 and both earnings per share growth and return on equity for the
awards granted in 2008 during the applicable performance cycle. Depending on the level of
objectives achieved, up to a total number of 611 and 89 shares could be issued for all non-vested
performance share awards granted in 2010 and 2008, respectively. The Company records
expense for the contingently issuable pe rformance shares ratably over each applicable vesting
period based on fair value and the Company’s current expectations of the probable number of
shares that will ultimately be issued. The fair value of the contingently issuable performance
shares is equal to the closing price of the Company’s common stock on the date of grant, reduced
for the present value of any dividends expected to be paid on the Company’s common stock
during the performance cycle, as these contingently issuable performance shares do not accrue
dividends prior to being earned.

Performance share activity for the twenty-six weeks ended August 1, 2010 was as follows:

Weighted Average
Performance Grant Date
Shares Fair Value

Non-vested at January 31, 2010 89 $ 41.80

Granted 611 52.69

Vested - -

Cancelled - -
Non-vested at August 1, 2010 700 $ 51.31

The Company receives a tax deduction for certain transactions associated with its stock plan
awards. The actual income tax benefits realized from these transactions for the twenty-six weeks
ended August 1, 2010 and August 2, 2009 were $5,421 and $815, respectively. Of those
amounts, $3,482 and $259, respectively, were reported as excess tax benefits. Excess tax benefits
arise when the actual tax benefit resulting from a stock plan award transaction exceeds the tax
benefit associated with the grant date fair value of the related stock award.
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11. STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Series A Convertible Preferred Stock Issuance

On May 6, 2010, the Company completed the sale of an aggregate of 8 shares of Series A
convertible preferred stock, par value $100.00 per share, for an aggregate gross purchase price of
$200,000 and for net proceeds of $188,595 after related fees. The Series A convertible preferred
stock has a liquidation preference of $25,000 per share and is currently convertible at a price of
$47.74 into 4,189 shares of common stock. The conversion price is subject to equitable
adjustment in the event of the Company taking certain actions, including stock splits, stock
dividends, mergers, consolidations or other capital reorganizations. The Series A convertible
preferred stock is not redeemable, in whole or in part, at the Company’s option or that of any
holder. The holders of the Series A convertible preferred stock are entitled to vote and participate
in dividends with the holders of the Company’s common stock on an as-converted basis.

Common Stock Offering

The Company sold 5,750 shares of its common stock on April 28, 2010 for an offering price of
$66.50 per share before commissions and discounts to underwriters. The net proceeds of the sale
after commissions, discounts and related fees, which totaled $364,860, were used to fund a
portion of the purchase price and fees relating to the acquisition of Tommy Hilfiger. Of the 5,750
shares, a total of 5,250 shares were released from treasury and 500 shares were newly issued.

Common Stock Issuance

On May 6, 2010, the Company issued 8,044 shares of its common stock, par value $1.00 per
share, as part of the consideration paid to the former shareholders of Tommy Hilfiger in
connection with the acquisition.

Warrant

The Company issued to Mr. Calvin Klein a nine-year warrant to purchase 320 shares of the
Company’s common stock at $28.00 per share in connection with the Company’s acquisition of
Calvin Klein in 2003. 160 shares of such warrant were exercised during the first quarter of 2010
and the warrant remains outstanding as of August 1, 2010 with respect to the balance of 160
shares issuable upon exercise.

12. ACTIVITY EXIT COSTS AND ASSET IMPAIRMENTS
In connection with the Company’s acquisition of Tommy Hilfiger during the second quarter of
2010, the Company incurred severance and termination benefit costs. Such costs were as

follows:

Incurred During

Total the Thirteen and
Expected Twenty-Six
to be Weeks
Incurred Ended 8/1/10
Severance and termination benefits $12,700 $ 10,620

As of August 1, 2010, the liability balance for these severance and termination benefits was
$10,448. The charges for severance and termination benefits were principally included in selling,
general and administrative expenses of the Company’s Tommy Hilfiger North America segment
(see Note 15, “Segment Data”).

The Company announced in the fourth quarter of 2008 that it initiated a series of actions to
respond to the difficult economic conditions that existed during the second half of 2008 and were
expected to (and did) continue into 2009 by restructuring certain of its operations and
implementing a number of other cost reduction efforts. These restructuring initiatives were
substantially completed during 2009.

The Company recorded long-lived asset impairment charges in connection with these
restructuring initiatives of $1,494 (of which $1,358 was recorded in the second quarter) during
the twenty-six weeks ended August 2, 2009.
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Such charges were included in corporate selling, general and administrative expenses not
allocated to any reportable segments.

Liabilities recorded in connection with the restructuring were as follows:

Costs Paid
During the
Liability Twenty-Six Weeks Liability
at 1/31/10 Ended 8/1/10 at 8/1/10
Severance, termination benefits and other costs $ 2,265 $1,460 $ 805
Lease termination costs 1,240 _ 1,240 -
Total $ 3505 $2,700 $ 805

13. NET (LOSS) INCOME PER COMMON SHARE
The Company computed its basic and diluted net (loss) income per common share as follows:

Thirteen Weeks Ended = Twenty-Six Weeks Ended

8/1/10 8/2/09 8/1/10 8/2/09
Net (loss) income $(54,587)  $26,557  $(82,200) $51,268
Less:
Common stock dividends paid to holders of Series A
convertible preferred stock (157) - (157) -
Net (loss) income available to common stockholders for basic and
diluted net (loss) income per common share _(54,744) 26,557 (82,357) 51,268
Weighted average common shares outstanding for
basic net (loss) income per common share 65,875 51,605 59,077 51,558
Weighted average impact of dilutive securities - 573 - 472
Weighted average impact of dilutive warrant - 16 - 8
Total shares for diluted net (loss) income per common share 65,875 52,194 59,077 52,038
Basic net (loss) income per common share $ (0.83) $ 051 $ (139 $ 099
Diluted net (loss) income per common share $ (0.83) $ 051 $ (L39) $ 099

The Company utilizes the two-class method of calculating basic net (loss) income per common
share, as holders of the Company’s Series A convertible preferred stock participate in dividends
with holders of the Company’s common stock. Net losses are not allocated to holders of the
Series A convertible preferred stock.

Potentially dilutive securities excluded from the calculation of diluted net (loss) income per share
were as follows:

Thirteen Weeks Ended = Twenty-Six Weeks Ended
8/1/10 8/2/09 8/1/10 8/2/09

Weighted average antidilutive securities 4,565 2,302 4,588 2,564
According to FASB guidance for earnings per share, contingently issuable shares that have not
met the necessary conditions as of the end of a reporting period should not be included in the
calculation of diluted net income per share for that period. The Company had contingently
issuable awards that did not meet the performance conditions as of August 1, 2010 and August 2,
2009 and, therefore, were excluded from the calculation of diluted net (loss) income per share for
the thirteen and twenty-six weeks ended August 1, 2010 and August 2, 2009. The maximum
number of potentially dilutive shares that could be issued upon vesting for such awards was 700
and 280 as of August 1, 2010 and August 2, 2009, respectively. These amounts were also
excluded from the computation of weighted average antidilutive securities. Conversion of the
Series A convertible preferred stock into 4,051 and 2,026 weighted average common shares
outstanding for the thirteen and twenty-six weeks ended August 1, 2010,
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respectively, was not assumed because the inclusion thereof would have been antidilutive. These
amounts were also excluded from the computation of weighted average antidilutive securities.

14. NONCASH INVESTING AND FINANCING TRANSACTIONS

During the twenty-six weeks ended August 1, 2010 and August 2, 2009, the Company recorded
increases to goodwill of $18,235 and $15,776, respectively, related to liabilities incurred for
contingent purchase price payments to Mr. Calvin Klein. Such amounts are not due or paid in
cash until 45 days subsequent to the Company’s applicable quarter end. As such, during the
twenty-six weeks ended August 1, 2010 and August 2, 2009, the Company paid $21,452 and
$18,591, respectively, in cash related to contingent purchase price payments to Mr. Calvin Klein
that were recorded as additions to goodwill during the periods the liabilities were incurred.

During the second quarter of 2010, the Company issued 8,044 shares of its common stock valued
at $485,967 in connection with the acquisition of Tommy Hilfiger.

During the second quarter of 2010, the Company recorded a loss of $3,005 to write-off
previously capitalized debt issuance costs in connection with the extinguishment of its 7 1/4%
senior notes due 2011 and its 8 1/8% senior notes due 2013.

The Company issued to Mr. Calvin Klein a nine-year warrant to purchase 320 shares of the
Company’s common stock at $28.00 per share in connection with the Company’s acquisition of
Calvin Klein in 2003. 160 shares of such warrant were exercised at the end of the first quarter of
2010, and the underlying shares were issued early in the second quarter of 2010. The exercise
price for these shares was satisfied through the Company’s withholding of 68 shares, which had a
total fair market value that approximated the exercise price, from the shares that would have
otherwise been issuable.

15. SEGMENT DATA

The acquisition of Tommy Hilfiger has impacted significantly the way the Company and its chief
operating decision maker manage and analyze its operating results. As such, the Company has
changed the way it reports its segment data. Prior year periods have been restated in order to
present that information on a basis consistent with the current year.

The Company manages its operations through its operating divisions, which are aggregated into
seven reportable segments: (i) Heritage Brand Wholesale Dress Furnishings; (ii) Heritage Brand
Wholesale Sportswear; (iii) Heritage Brand Retail; (iv) Calvin Klein Licensing; (v) Tommy
Hilfiger North America; (vi) Tommy Hilfiger International; and (vii) Other (Calvin Klein
Apparel).

Heritage Brand Wholesale Dress Furnishings Segment - This segment consists of the Company’s
heritage brand wholesale dress furnishings division. This segment derives revenue primarily
from marketing both dress shirts and neckwear under the brand names ARROW, IZOD, Eagle,
Sean John, Trump (marketed as Donald J. Trump Signature Collection prior to January 1, 2010),
Kenneth Cole New York, Kenneth Cole Reaction, JOE Joseph Abboud, DKNY, Elie Tahari, J.
Garcia and MICHAEL Michael Kors, as well as dress shirts under the brand names Van Heusen,
Geoffrey Beene and CHAPS and neckwear under the brand names Nautica, Ike Behar, Ted Baker,
Jones New York, Michael Kors Collection, Claiborne, U.S. POLO ASSN., Axcess, Hart Schaffner
Marx, Bugatti, City of London and Robert Graham. In addition, the Company sold dress shirts
under the BCBG Max Azria and BCBG Attitude brand names into the fourth qu arter of 2009.
The Company markets its dress shirt and neckwear brands, as well as various private label
brands, primarily to department, mid-tier department and specialty stores.

Heritage Brand Wholesale Sportswear Segment - The Company aggregates the results of its
heritage brand wholesale sportswear divisions into the Heritage Brand Wholesale Sportswear
segment. This segment derives revenue primarily from marketing men’s sportswear under the
brand names Van Heusen, IZOD, Geoffrey Beene, ARROW and Timberland, and women’s
sportswear under the brand name IZOD to department, mid-tier department and specialty stores.

Heritage Brand Retail Segment - The Company aggregates the results of its three heritage brand
retail divisions into the Heritage Brand Retail segment. This segment derives revenue principally
from operating retail stores, primarily in outlet centers in the United States, which sell apparel,
footwear, accessories and related products under the brand names Van Heusen, IZOD, Bass and
G.H. Bass & Co.
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Calvin Klein Licensing Segment - The Company aggregates the results of its Calvin Klein
licensing and advertising division into the Calvin Klein Licensing segment. This segment derives
revenue principally from licensing and similar arrangements worldwide relating to the use by
third parties of the brand names Calvin Klein Collection, ck Calvin Klein and Calvin Klein for a
broad array of products and retail services. This segment also derives revenue from the
Company’s Calvin Klein Collection wholesale business and from selling Calvin Klein Collection
branded high-end collection apparel and accessories through the Company’s own full price
Calvin Klein Collection retail store located in New York City, both of which the Company
operates directly in support of the global licensing business.

Tommy Hilfiger North America Segment - The Company aggregates the results of its Tommy
Hilfiger wholesale and retail divisions in North America into the Tommy Hilfiger North America
segment. This segment derives revenue principally from (i) marketing Tommy Hilfiger branded
apparel and related products at wholesale in the United States and Canada, primarily to
department and specialty stores, and through licensees; and (ii) operating retail stores in the
United States and Canada and an e-commerce website, which sell Tommy Hilfiger branded
apparel, accessories and related products.

Tommy Hilfiger International Segment - The Company aggregates the results of its Tommy
Hilfiger wholesale and retail divisions that operate outside of North America into the Tommy
Hilfiger International segment. This segment derives revenue principally from (i) marketing
Tommy Hilfiger branded apparel and related products at wholesale principally in Europe,
primarily to department and specialty stores and franchise operators of Tommy Hilfiger stores,
and through distributors and licensees; and (ii) operating retail stores and an e-commerce website
in Europe and retail stores in Japan, which sell Tommy Hilfiger branded apparel, accessories and
related products.

Other (Calvin Klein Apparel) Segment - The Company aggregates the results of its Calvin Klein
apparel divisions into the Other (Calvin Klein Apparel) segment. This segment derives revenue
from the Company’s marketing at wholesale of apparel and related products under the brand
names Calvin Klein and ck Calvin Klein, primarily to department, mid-tier department and
specialty stores, and at retail through the Company’s e-commerce website and Calvin Klein retail
stores, which are primarily located in outlet centers in the United States.
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The following table presents summarized information by segment:

Revenue — Heritage Brand Wholesale Dress Furnishings

Net sales

Royalty revenue

Advertising and other revenue
Total

Revenue — Heritage Brand Wholesale Sportswear

Net sales

Royalty revenue

Advertising and other revenue
Total

Revenue — Heritage Brand Retail
Net sales

Royalty revenue

Advertising and other revenue
Total

Revenue — Calvin Klein Licensing
Net sales

Royalty revenue

Advertising and other revenue
Total

Revenue — Tommy Hilfiger North America
Net sales

Royalty revenue

Advertising and other revenue

Total

Revenue — Tommy Hilfiger International
Net sales

Royalty revenue
Advertising and other revenue
Total

Revenue — Other (Calvin Klein Apparel)
Net sales
Total

Total Revenue

Net sales

Royalty revenue

Advertising and other revenue
Total

Thirteen Weeks Ended Twenty-Six Weeks Ended
8/1/10 8/2/09 8/1/10 8/2/09
$ 102,928 $ 99,372 $ 235,099 $ 220,229
1,299 1,390 2,764 2,991
637 309 1,016 732
104,864 101,071 238,879 223,952
88,545 88,817 223,875 212,938
2,624 2,948 5,101 5,435
440 87 898 822
91,609 91,852 229,874 219,195
171,432 158,746 306,615 285,043
1,185 1,330 2,368 2,332
164 40 424 327
172,781 160,116 309,407 287,702
5,701 5,233 14,655 12,203
52,293 46,903 112,027 100,731
20,449 18,866 42,849 40,183
78,443 71,002 169,531 153,117
256,144 - 256,144 -
4,051 - 4,051 -
833 - 833 -
261,028 - 261,028 -
263,293 - 263,293 -
6,654 - 6,654 -
1,200 - 1,200 -
271,147 - 271,147 -
123,396 105,242 242,446 202,742
123,396 105,242 242,446 202,742
1,011,439 457,410 1,542,127 933,155
68,106 52,571 132,965 111,489
23,723 19,302 47,220 42,064
$1,103,268 $529,283 $1,722,312 $1,086,708
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Thirteen Weeks Ended Twenty-Six Weeks Ended

8/1/10 8/2/09 8/1/10 8/2/09

Income before interest and taxes — Heritage Brand Wholesale

Dress Furnishings $ 7,059 $ 4,161 $ 25519 $ 20,329(5)
Income before interest and taxes — Heritage Brand Wholesale

Sportswear 7,194 11,2 494 28,082 278 49(5)
Income before interest and taxes — Heritage Brand Retail 16,794 11’737(4) 25,478 7,958(5)
Income before interest and taxes — Calvin Klein Licensing 39,350 35,775 76,333 69,726
Income before interest and taxes — Tommy Hilfiger

North America 6,42 4(2) - 6,42 43) -
Loss before interest and taxes — Tommy Hilfiger International « 3,633)(2) - (13,633)(3) -
Income before interest and taxes — Other (Calvin Klein Apparel) 14,666 7,598(4) 28,371 8,555(5)
Loss before interest and taxes — Corporate(!) (122,0000® _(Q,ﬂ)@‘; _(&:ﬁ)m_ _(Q,@)(S_)
(Loss) income before interest and taxes $ (44,146) $ 51,449 $ (66,703) $ 100,563

(1) Includes corporate expenses not allocated to any reportable segments. Corporate expenses
represent overhead operating expenses and include expenses for senior corporate
management, corporate finance and information technology related to corporate
infrastructure.

(2) Income (loss) before interest and taxes for the thirteen weeks ended August 1, 2010 includes
costs of $166,082, associated with the Company’s acquisition and integration of Tommy
Hilfiger, including restructuring and non-cash valuation amortization charges and the effects
of foreign currency forward exchange contracts. Such costs were included in the Company’s
segments as follows: $24,479 in Tommy Hilfiger North America; $39,376 in Tommy
Hilfiger International; and $102,227 in corporate expenses not allocated to any reportable
segments.

(3) Income (loss) before interest and taxes for the twenty-six weeks ended August 1, 2010
includes costs of $270,110 associated with the Company’s acquisition and integration of
Tommy Hilfiger. Such costs were included in the Company’s segments as follows: $24,479
in Tommy Hilfiger North America; $39,376 in Tommy Hilfiger International; and $206,255
in corporate expenses not allocated to any reportable segments.

(4) Income (loss) before interest and taxes for the thirteen weeks ended August 2, 2009 includes
costs of $6,256 associated with the Company’s restructuring initiatives announced during the
fourth quarter of 2008. Such costs were included in the Company’s segments as follows:
$188 in Heritage Brand Wholesale Sportswear; $650 in Heritage Brand Retail; $1,094 in
Other (Calvin Klein Apparel); and $4,324 in corporate expenses not allocated to any
reportable segments.

(5) Income (loss) before interest and taxes for the twenty-six weeks ended August 2, 2009
includes costs of $10,976 associated with the Company’s restructuring initiatives announced
during the fourth quarter of 2008. Such costs were included in the Company’s segments as
follows: $541 in Heritage Brand Wholesale Dress Furnishings; $701 in Heritage Brand
Wholesale Sportswear; $2,341 in Heritage Brand Retail; $2,296 in Other (Calvin Klein
Apparel); and $5,097 in corporate expenses not allocated to any reportable segments.

Intersegment transactions consist of transfers of inventory principally between the Heritage
Brand Wholesale Dress Furnishings segment and the Heritage Brand Retail segment and Other
(Calvin Klein Apparel) segment. These transfers are recorded at cost plus a standard markup
percentage. Such markup percentage is eliminated in the Heritage Brand Retail segment and
Other (Calvin Klein Apparel) segment.
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The following table presents the Company’s total assets by segment:

8/1/10 1/31/10 8/2/09
Identifiable Assets
Heritage Brand Wholesale Dress Furnishings $ 291,632 $ 278,101 $ 275,576
Heritage Brand Wholesale Sportswear 269,478 249,864 239,351
Heritage Brand Retail 104,159 97,837 115,120
Calvin Klein Licensing 939,743 925,832 883,542
Tommy Hilfiger North America 817,071 - -
Tommy Hilfiger International 3,084,836 - -
Other (Calvin Klein Apparel) 137,133 134,515 160,226
Corporate 876,358 653,530 559,373
Total $6,520,410  $2,339,679  $2,233,188

16. GUARANTEES

The Company guaranteed the payment of certain purchases made by one of the Company’s
suppliers from a raw material vendor. The maximum amount guaranteed as of August 1, 2010 is
$500. The guarantee expires on January 31, 2011.

The Company guaranteed to a former landlord the payment of rent and related costs by the tenant
currently occupying space previously leased by the Company. The maximum amount guaranteed
as of August 1, 2010 is approximately $3,700, which is subject to exchange rate fluctuation. The
Company has the right to seek recourse of approximately $2,400 as of August 1, 2010, which is
subject to exchange rate fluctuation. The guarantee expires on May 19, 2016.

17. RECENT ACCOUNTING GUIDANCE

New guidance issued but not effective until after August 1, 2010 is not expected to have a
material impact on the Company’s consolidated results of operations or financial position.
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ITEM 2 - MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

References to the brand names Calvin Klein Collection, ck Calvin Klein, Calvin Klein, Tommy
Hilfiger, Van Heusen, IZOD, Bass, ARROW, Eagle, Geoffrey Beene, CHAPS, Sean John, JOE
Joseph Abboud, MICHAEL Michael Kors, Michael Kors Collection, Trump, Donald J. Trump
Signature Collection, Kenneth Cole New York, Kenneth Cole Reaction, DKNY, Elie Tahari,
Nautica, Ike Behar, Ted Baker, Jones New York, J. Garcia, Claiborne, Robert Graham, U.S.
POLO ASSN., Axcess and Timberland and to other brand names are to registered trademarks
owned by us or licensed to us by third parties and are identified by italicizing the brand name.

References to the acquisition of Tommy Hilfiger refer to our May 6, 2010 acquisition of
Tommy Hilfiger B.V. and certain affiliated companies, which companies we refer to
collectively as “Tommy Hilfiger.”

References to the “Mulberry acquisition” refer to our April 2008 acquisition of certain assets
(including certain trademark licenses, inventories and receivables) of Mulberry Thai Silks, Inc.,
a manufacturer and distributor of branded neckwear in the United States, which we refer to as
“Mulberry.”

References to the “Superba acquisition” refer to our January 2007 acquisition of substantially
all of the assets of Superba, Inc., a manufacturer and distributor of neckwear in the United
States and Canada.

References to the acquisition of Calvin Klein refer to our February 2003 acquisition of Calvin
Klein, Inc. and certain affiliated companies, which companies we refer to collectively as
“Calvin Klein.”

OVERVIEW

The following discussion and analysis is intended to help you understand us, our operations and
our financial performance. It should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial
statements and the accompanying notes, which are included elsewhere in this report.

We are one of the largest apparel companies in the world, with a heritage dating back over

125 years. Our brand portfolio consists of nationally recognized brand names, including Calvin
Klein, Van Heusen, IZOD, Bass, ARROW, Eagle and, as of the beginning of the second quarter of
2010, Tommy Hilfiger (previously a licensed brand), which are owned, and Geoffrey Beene,
Kenneth Cole New York, Kenneth Cole Reaction, Sean John, JOE Joseph Abboud, MICHAEL
Michael Kors, Michael Kors Collection, CHAPS, Trump (marketed as Donald J. Trump
Signature Collection prior to January 1, 2010), DKNY, Elie Tahari, Nautica, Ike Behar, Ted
Baker, J. Garcia, Claiborne, Robert Graham, U.S. POLO ASSN., Axcess, Jones New York and
Timberland, which are licensed.

We completed our acquisition of Tommy Hilfiger during the second quarter of 2010. Tommy
Hilfiger, through its subsidiaries, designs, sources and markets men’s and women’s sportswear
and activewear, jeanswear, childrenswear and other products worldwide and licenses its brands
worldwide over a broad range of products.

We paid $2.5 billion in cash and issued 8.0 million shares of our common stock valued at $486.0
million, as consideration for the acquisition, for total consideration of approximately $3.0 billion.
We entered into foreign currency forward exchange contracts to purchase €1.3 billion during the
first quarter of 2010, and entered into an additional foreign currency forward exchange contract
to purchase €250.0 million during the second quarter of 2010, in connection with the acquisition
of Tommy Hilfiger to hedge against our exposure to changes in the exchange rate for the Euro, as
a portion of the acquisition purchase price was payable in cash and denominated in Euros. We
settled the foreign currency forward exchange contracts on May 6, 2010 in connection with our
completion of the acquisition of Tommy Hilfiger.

We funded the cash portion and related costs of the Tommy Hilfiger acquisition with cash on
hand and the net proceeds of the following activities: (i) the sale on April 28, 2010 of 5.8 million
shares of our common stock, for an offering price of $66.50 per share; (ii) the issuance of an
aggregate of 8,000 shares of Series A convertible preferred stock for an aggregate gross purchase
price of $200.0 million; (iii) the issuance of $600.0 million of 7 3/8% senior notes due 2020; and
(iv) the borrowing of $1.9 billion of term loans under new credit facilities. In conjunction with
this financing, we paid $303.6 million in the second quarter of 2010 to extinguish our 7 1/4%
senior notes due 2011 and our 8 1/8% senior notes due 2013. In addition, we made a $100.0
million voluntary debt repayment on the term loans at the end of the second quarter of 2010.
These items are more fully described in the section entitled “Liquidity and Capital Resources”
below.
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Our historical business strategy has been to manage and market a portfolio of nationally
recognized brands at multiple price points and across multiple channels of distribution. We
believe this strategy reduces our reliance on any one demographic group, merchandise
preference or distribution channel. We have enhanced this strategy by expanding our portfolio of
brands through acquisitions of well-known brands, such as Calvin Klein, ARROW and, now,
Tommy Hilfiger, that offer additional geographic distribution channel and price point
opportunities in our traditional categories of dress shirts and sportswear. The Calvin Klein and, to
a lesser degree, ARROW and Tommy Hilfiger acquisitions (we acquired the ARROW brand in
2004) also enhanced our business strategy by providing us with established international
licensing businesses, which do not require working capital investments. We have successfully
pursued growth opportunities in extending the Calvin Klein and ARROW brands through
licensing into additional product categories and geographic areas and may seek to do the same
with Tommy Hilfiger. The Superba and Mulberry acquisitions helped to advance our historical
strategy by adding a product category that is complementary to our heritage dress shirt business
and leverages our position in dress furnishings. Our business strategy was also extended by
gender with our assumption in 2007 of the wholesale IZOD women’s sportswear collection,
which was previously a licensed business. Further, in the second quarter of 2008, we began
marketing men’s sportswear under the Timberland brand in North America under a licensing
arrangement with The Timberland Company. We believe that the acquisition of Tommy Hilfiger
will advance our business strategy by adding a global brand with growth opportunities and by
establishing an international platform in Europe that will be a strategic complement to our strong
North America n presence and provides us with the resources and expertise needed to grow our
heritage brands and businesses internationally.

We have entered into license agreements with partners across the globe for our brands. A
significant portion of our total income before interest and taxes is derived from international
sources, which, prior to the acquisition of Tommy Hilfiger, had been primarily driven by the
international component of our Calvin Klein licensing business. The acquisition of Tommy
Hilfiger adds a strong operational platform that accelerates our international presence and is
expected to provide a platform for global expansion of all of our brands and businesses.

OPERATIONS OVERVIEW

We generate net sales from (i) the wholesale distribution to wholesale customers and franchise,
licensee and distributor operated stores of men’s dress shirts and neckwear, men’s, women’s and
children’s sportswear, footwear, accessories and related products; and (ii) the sale, through over
1,000 company-operated retail locations worldwide, of apparel, footwear, accessories and other
products under the brand names Van Heusen, IZOD, Bass, Calvin Klein and Tommy Hilfiger.

We generate royalty, advertising and other revenue from fees for licensing the use of our
trademarks. Calvin Klein royalty, advertising and other revenue, which comprised 79% of total
royalty, advertising and other revenue in the second quarter of 2010, is derived under licenses
and other arrangements for a broad array of products, including jeans, underwear, fragrances,
eyewear, footwear, women’s apparel, outerwear, watches and home furnishings.

We completed the acquisition of Tommy Hilfiger early in the second quarter of 2010. We
recorded pre-tax charges in the first half of 2010 in connection with the acquisition and
integration of Tommy Hilfiger that totaled $270.1 million, which includes: (i) a loss of $140.5
million associated with hedges against Euro to United States dollar exchange rates relating to the
purchase price; (ii) non-cash valuation amortization charges of $53.3 million; and (iii)
transaction, restructuring and debt extinguishment costs of $76.3 million. We expect to incur
additional pre-tax expenses of approximately $45.0 million during the second half of 2010 in
connection with the integration of Tommy Hilfiger. Our future results of operations will be
significantly impacted by this acquisition, including through the operations of the Tommy
Hilfiger business and the changes in our capital structure that were necessary to complete the
acquisition as more fully discussed below.

Gross profit on total revenue is total revenue less cost of goods sold. Included as cost of goods
sold are costs associated with the production and procurement of product, including inbound
freight costs, purchasing and receiving costs, inspection costs, internal transfer costs and other
product procurement related charges. 100% of our royalty, advertising and other revenue is
included in gross profit because there is no cost of goods sold associated with such revenue. As a
result, our gross profit may not be comparable to that of other entities.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Thirteen Weeks Ended August 1, 2010 Compared With Thirteen Weeks Ended August 2, 2009

Net Sales

Net sales in the second quarter of 2010 were $1,011.4 million as compared to $457.4 million in
the second quarter of the prior year. The increase of $554.0 million was due principally to the
effect of the following items:

The addition of $256.1 million and $263.3 million of net sales attributable to our Tommy
Hilfiger North America and Tommy Hilfiger International segments, respectively, as a
result of the acquisition of Tommy Hilfiger early in the second quarter of 2010.

The addition of $12.7 million of net sales attributable to growth in our Heritage Brand
Retail segment. This was primarily driven by a comparable store sales increase in our
Heritage Brand retail businesses of 11%.

The addition of $18.2 million of net sales attributable to growth in our Other (Calvin
Klein Apparel) segment, which is comprised of our Calvin Klein dress furnishings,
sportswear and outlet retail divisions. Comparable store sales in our Calvin Klein retail
business increased 14%.

Royalty, Advertising and Other Revenue

Royalty, advertising and other revenue in the second quarter of 2010 was $91.8 million as
compared to $71.9 million in the prior year’s second quarter. Of the overall $20.0 million
increase over the prior year, $12.7 million was attributable to Tommy Hilfiger. Within the Calvin
Klein Licensing segment, global licensee royalty revenue increased $5.4 million, or 11%
compared to the prior year’s second quarter, due primarily to strong performance across virtually
all product categories, with jeans, underwear, fragrance, women’s sportswear and dresses
performing particularly well.

Gross Profit on Total Revenue

Gross profit on total revenue in the second quarter of 2010 was $575.2 million, or 52.1% of total
revenue, compared with $265.8 million, or 50.2% of total revenue in the second quarter of the
prior year. Included in the second quarter’s 190 basis point increase is (i) a reduction of 340 basis
points ($37.7 million), attributable to non-cash valuation amortization charges as a result of the
Tommy Hilfiger acquisition; and (ii) an increase of 530 basis points over the prior year, primarily
due to the effect of the following items:

An increase due to the acquisition of Tommy Hilfiger, as Tommy Hilfiger has a large
international presence, and international businesses typically have higher gross margin
percentages than domestic businesses. In addition, the majority of Tommy Hilfiger’s
North America operations are comprised of its retail business and retail businesses
typically have higher gross margin percentages than wholesale businesses.

More full-priced selling in our Heritage Brand and Calvin Klein businesses during the
second quarter of 2010 as compared to the prior year’s second quarter.

Selling, General and Administrative (“SG&A”) Expenses

SG&A expenses in the second quarter of 2010 increased $310.3 million to $524.6 million, or to
47.6% of total revenue, from $214.3 million, or 40.5% of total revenue, in the second quarter of
the prior year. Included in the 710 basis point increase in SG&A expenses as a percentage of
revenue over the prior year are $33.7 million, or 310 basis points, of transaction, restructuring
and non-cash valuation amortization charges in connection with our acquisition and integration
of Tommy Hilfiger. The non-cash valuation amortization charges relate to acquired order backlog
and have an amortization period of six months. The remaining 400 basis point increase in SG&A
expenses as a percentage of total revenue is principally attributable to our Tommy Hilfiger
business, as Tommy Hilfiger has a large international presence and international businesses
typically have higher SG&A expense percentages than domestic businesses. In addition, the
majority of Tommy Hilfig er’s North America operations are comprised of its retail business and

retail businesses typically have higher SG&A expense percentages than wholesale businesses.
Also
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contributing to the SG&A expense percentage increase, to a lesser extent, is an increase in
advertising expenses related to our Calvin Klein and heritage brands over the prior year.

Debt Extinguishment

We incurred a loss of $6.7 million during the second quarter of 2010 on the extinguishment of
our 7 1/4% senior notes due 2011 and our 8 1/8% senior notes due 2013. Please refer to the
section entitled “Liquidity and Capital Resources” below for a discussion of the tender for, and
redemption of, these notes.

Other Loss

We entered into foreign currency forward exchange contracts to purchase €1.3 billion during the
first quarter of 2010 and entered into an additional foreign currency forward exchange contract to
purchase €250.0 million during the second quarter of 2010. These contracts were entered into in
connection with the acquisition of Tommy Hilfiger to hedge against our exposure to changes in
the exchange rate for the Euro, as a portion of the acquisition purchase price was payable in cash
and denominated in Euros. We settled the foreign currency forward exchange contracts on May
6, 2010 in connection with our completion of the acquisition. We recorded a pre-tax loss of $88.1
million during the second quarter of 2010 related to these contracts.

Interest Expense and Interest Income

Interest expense increased to $39.7 million in the second quarter of 2010 from $8.4 million in the
second quarter of the prior year principally as a result of the issuance during the second quarter
of 2010 of $600.0 million of 7 3/8% senior notes due 2020 and term loans of $1.9 billion
borrowed under new credit facilities, the net proceeds of which were used in connection with the
purchase of Tommy Hilfiger. We subsequently made a $100.0 million voluntary debt repayment
on the term loans at the end of the second quarter of 2010. Interest income of $0.5 million in the
second quarter of 2010 was relatively flat to the prior year’s second quarter amount of $0.4
million.

Income Taxes

The income tax rate for the second quarter of 2010 was 34.5% compared with last year’s second
quarter rate of 38.9%. The decrease was due primarily to the impact of the non-deductibility of
certain transaction costs associated with the Tommy Hilfiger acquisition. Non-deductible
expenses cause the effective tax rate to decrease when there is a pre-tax loss, as was the case in
the second quarter of 2010.

Twenty-Six Weeks Ended August 1, 2010 Compared With Twenty-Six Weeks Ended August 2,
2009

Net Sales

Net sales for the twenty-six weeks ended August 1, 2010 increased to $1,542.1 million as
compared to $933.2 million in the twenty-six week period of the prior year. The increase of
$609.0 million was due principally to the effect of the following items:

The addition of $256.1 million and $263.3 million of net sales attributable to our Tommy
Hilfiger North America and Tommy Hilfiger International segments, respectively, as a
result of the acquisition of Tommy Hilfiger early in the second quarter of 2010.

The addition of $25.8 million of net sales, principally in the first quarter of the current
year, attributable to growth in our Heritage Brand Wholesale Dress Furnishings and
Heritage Brand Sportswear segments resulting from better performance across the
majority of our heritage brands, with Van Heusen performing particularly well.

The addition of $21.6 million of net sales attributable to growth in our Heritage Brand
Retail segment. This was primarily driven by an overall comparable store sales increase
of 11%.

The addition of $39.7 million of net sales attributable to growth in our Other (Calvin
Klein Apparel) segment, which is comprised of our Calvin Klein dress furnishings,
sportswear and outlet retail divisions. Comparable store sales in our Calvin Klein retail
business increased 15%.
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We currently estimate that our 2010 full year net sales will increase to a range of approximately
$4.05 billion to $4.08 billion from $2.07 billion in the prior year, due primarily to the addition of
net sales of approximately $1.77 billion to $1.79 billion from Tommy Hilfiger. Net sales in our
Heritage Brand and Calvin Klein businesses are currently projected to increase 10% to 11% as
compared to the prior year. Comparable store sales in our Heritage Brand and Calvin Klein retail
businesses are currently projected to grow approximately 7% to 8% on a combined basis.

Royalty, Advertising and Other Revenue

Royalty, advertising and other revenue for the twenty-six weeks ended August 1, 2010 was
$180.2 million as compared to $153.6 million in the prior year’s twenty-six week period. Of the
overall $26.6 million increase over the prior year, $12.7 million was attributable to Tommy
Hilfiger. Within the Calvin Klein Licensing segment, global licensee royalty revenue increased
$11.3 million, or 11% as compared to the prior year’s twenty-six week period, due primarily to
strong performance in fragrance, jeans, underwear, women’s sportswear and dresses.

We currently expect that total royalty, advertising and other revenue for the full year will
increase to a range of approximately $385.0 million to $390.0 million for 2010 from $328.0
million in 2009. This increase is due principally to the addition of royalty revenue, beginning
with the second quarter of 2010, attributable to the addition of Tommy Hilfiger, combined with
growth within the Calvin Klein Licensing segment, as Calvin Klein royalty revenue is expected
to increase 8% to 9% (9% to 10% on a constant currency basis) for the full year 2010.

Gross Profit on Total Revenue

Gross profit on total revenue for the twenty-six weeks ended August 1, 2010 was $892.3 million,
or 51.8% of total revenue, compared with $537.6 million, or 49.5% of total revenue in the
twenty-six week period of the prior year. Included in the 230 basis point increase in gross profit
as a percentage of revenue over the prior year period is (i) a reduction of 220 basis points ($37.7
million), attributable to non-cash valuation amortization charges as a result of the Tommy
Hilfiger acquisition; and (ii) an increase of 450 basis points over the prior year’s twenty-six week
period, primarily due to the effect of the following items:

An increase due to the acquisition of Tommy Hilfiger, as Tommy Hilfiger has a large
international presence and international businesses typically have higher gross margin
percentages than domestic businesses. In addition, the majority of Tommy Hilfiger’s
North America operations are comprised of its retail business and retail businesses
typically have higher gross margin percentages than wholesale businesses.

More full-priced selling in our Heritage Brand and Calvin Klein businesses during the
twenty-six weeks ended August 1, 2010 as compared to the prior year’s twenty-six week
period.

We currently expect that the gross profit on total revenue percentage will increase significantly
for the full year 2010 compared to the 2009 full year percentage of 49.3% due primarily to (i) the
acquisition of Tommy Hilfiger, for the factors described immediately above; and (ii) more full-
priced selling in our Heritage Brand and Calvin Klein businesses in 2010 as compared to 2009.

Selling, General and Administrative (“SG&A”) Expenses

SG&A expenses for the twenty-six weeks ended August 1, 2010 increased $374.8 million to
$811.8 million, or to 47.1% of total revenue, from $437.0 million, or 40.2% of total revenue, in
the twenty-six week period of the prior year. Included in the 690 basis point increase in SG&A
expenses as a percentage of total revenue over the prior year period are $85.3 million, or 500
basis points, of transaction, restructuring and non-cash valuation amortization charges in
connection with our acquisition and integration of Tommy Hilfiger. The non-cash valuation
amortization charges relate to acquired order backlog and have an amortization period of six
months. The remaining 190 basis point increase is principally attributable to our Tommy Hilfiger
business, as Tommy Hilfiger has a large international presence and international businesses
typically have higher SG&A expense percentages than domestic businesses. In addition, the
majority of Tommy Hilfiger’s North A merica operations are comprised of its retail businesses
and retail businesses typically have higher SG&A expense percentages than wholesale
businesses. Also contributing to the SG&A expense percentage increase, to a lesser extent, is an
increase in advertising expenses related to our Calvin Klein and heritage brands over the prior
year.
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Our full year 2010 SG&A expenses as a percentage of total revenue is expected to increase
significantly compared to the 2009 full year percentage of 39.1% principally as a result of one-
time costs expected to be incurred in connection with the acquisition and integration of Tommy
Hilfiger, as well as the other factors associated with the Tommy Hilfiger business described
immediately above.

Debt Extinguishment

We incurred a loss of $6.7 million during the twenty-six weeks ended August 1, 2010 on the
extinguishment of our 7 1/4% senior notes due 2011 and our 8 1/8% senior notes due 2013.
Please refer to the section entitled “Liquidity and Capital Resources” below for a discussion of
the tender for, and redemption of, these notes.

Other Loss

We entered into foreign currency forward exchange contracts to purchase €1.3 billion during the
first quarter of 2010, and entered into an additional foreign currency forward exchange contract
to purchase €250.0 million during the second quarter of 2010. These contracts were entered into
in connection with the acquisition of Tommy Hilfiger to hedge against our exposure to changes
in the exchange rate for the Euro, as a portion of the acquisition purchase price was payable in
cash and denominated in Euros. We settled the foreign currency forward exchange contracts on
May 6, 2010 in connection with our completion of the acquisition. We recorded a pre-tax loss of
$140.5 million during the twenty-six weeks ended August 1, 2010 related to these contracts.

Interest Expense and Interest Income

Interest expense increased to $48.1 million in the twenty-six weeks ended August 1, 2010 from
$16.7 million in the twenty-six week period of the prior year principally as a result of the
issuance during the second quarter of 2010 of $600.0 million of 7 3/8% senior notes due 2020
and term loans of $1.9 billion borrowed under new credit facilities, the net proceeds of which
were used in connection with the purchase of Tommy Hilfiger. We made a $100.0 million
voluntary debt repayment on the term loans at the end of the second quarter of 2010. Interest
income of $0.6 million in the twenty-six weeks ended August 1, 2010 was relatively flat to the
prior year’s twenty-six week period amount of $0.9 million.

Net interest expense for the full year 2010 is expected to increase to a range of $130.0 million to
$132.0 million from $32.2 million in the prior year principally as a result of the issuance during
the second quarter of 2010 of $600.0 million of 7 3/8% senior notes due 2020 and term loans of
$1.9 billion borrowed under new credit facilities, the proceeds of which were used in connection
with the purchase of Tommy Hilfiger. We made a $100.0 million voluntary debt repayment on
the term loans at the end of the second quarter of 2010 and we currently plan on making
approximately $300 million of additional repayments at the end of 2010. (Please refer to the
section entitled “Liquidity and Capital Resources” below for a further discussion.)

Income Taxes

The income tax rate for the twenty-six weeks ended August 1, 2010 was 28.0% compared with
last year’s twenty-six week period rate of 39.5%. The decrease was due primarily to the impact
of the non-deductibility of certain transaction costs associated with the Tommy Hilfiger
acquisition. Non-deductible expenses cause the effective tax rate to decrease when there is a pre-
tax loss, as was the case in the twenty-six weeks ended August 1, 2010.

We currently anticipate that our 2010 income tax rate will be between 55.0% and 56.0%, which
compares with last year’s full year rate of 23.5%. The non-deductibility of certain transaction
expenses in 2010, which decreased our effective tax rate during the twenty-six weeks ended
August 1, 2010 when we experienced pre-tax losses, will increase our effective tax rate for the
full year if we achieve pre-tax income, as is currently expected. Partially offsetting the impact of
the non-deductible transaction expenses is the favorable impact from the expected earnings from
our international Tommy Hilfiger business, a significant portion of which is subject to favorable
tax rates, and which earnings are expected to be permanently reinvested outside the United
States. It is possible that our estimated full year tax rate could change from the mix of
international and domestic pre-tax earnings, or from discrete events arising from specific
transactions, audits by tax authorities or the receip t of new information.

The 2009 full year tax rate was favorably impacted by a settlement with the Internal Revenue
Service relating to the audit of our Federal income tax returns for 2006 and 2007 and the effect
of the lapse of the statute of limitations with respect to certain previously unrecognized tax
positions.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Operations

Cash provided by operating activities was $101.5 million in the twenty-six weeks ended August
1, 2010, which compares with $80.9 million in the twenty-six week period of the prior year. The
factors that affect our cash provided by operating activities have been significantly impacted by
the acquisition of Tommy Hilfiger. In the future, we expect that our cash provided by operating
activities will generally increase by a significant amount as a result of the acquisition. The
increase in the cash generated by operating activities will generally be used to pay down debt, as
well as to fund additional capital spending needs due to the expansion of our businesses, most
notably the Tommy Hilfiger business. In addition, the changes in the amount of cash provided
and used related to our working capital will be more pronounced as a result of the Tommy
Hilfiger acquisition.

Capital Expenditures

Our capital expenditures paid in cash in the twenty-six weeks ended August 1, 2010 were $29.0
million. We currently expect that capital expenditures will increase for the full year 2010 as a
result of the Tommy Hilfiger acquisition and will be approximately $135 million. This compares
to capital expenditures paid in cash for the full year 2009 of $23.9 million.

Contingent Purchase Price Payments

In connection with the acquisition of Calvin Klein, we are obligated to pay Mr. Calvin Klein
contingent purchase price payments based on 1.15% of total worldwide net sales, as defined in
the agreement (as amended) governing the Calvin Klein acquisition, of products bearing any of
the Calvin Klein brands with respect to sales made through February 12, 2018. A significant
portion of the sales on which the payments to Mr. Klein are made are wholesale sales by us and
our licensees and other partners to retailers. Such contingent purchase price payments totaled
$21.5 million in the twenty-six weeks ended August 1, 2010. We currently expect that such
payments will be $41.0 million to $43.0 million for the full year 2010.

Tommy Hilfiger Acquisition

We paid $2,483.3 million in cash and issued 8.0 million shares of our common stock, valued at
$486.0 million, as consideration for the acquisition, for total consideration of approximately $3.0
billion. In addition, we entered into foreign currency forward exchange contracts to purchase
€1.3 billion during the first quarter of 2010 and €250.0 million during the second quarter of 2010
in connection with the acquisition of Tommy Hilfiger to hedge against our exposure to changes
in the exchange rate for the Euro, as a portion of the acquisition purchase price was payable in
cash and denominated in Euros. We settled the foreign currency forward exchange contracts at a
loss of $140.5 million on May 6, 2010 in connection with the completion of the acquisition.

We funded the cash portion and related costs of the Tommy Hilfiger acquisition with cash on
hand and the net proceeds of the following activities: (i) the sale on April 28, 2010 of 5.8 million
shares of our common stock; (ii) the issuances of an aggregate of 8,000 shares of Series A
convertible preferred stock for an aggregate gross purchase price of $200.0 million; (iii) the
issuance of $600.0 million of 7 3/8% senior notes due 2020; and (iv) the borrowing of $1.9
billion of term loans under new credit facilities. See the discussion below for further detail on
these activities.

Tommy Hilfiger Handbag License Acquisition

On June 14, 2010, we entered into an agreement to reacquire from a licensee, prior to the
expiration of the license, the rights to distribute Tommy Hilfiger branded handbags
internationally. The effective date of the transfer of the rights is December 31, 2010. In
connection with this transaction, we made a payment of $7.3 million to the licensee during the
second quarter of 2010.

Series A Convertible Preferred Stock

On May 6, 2010, we sold an aggregate of 8,000 shares of Series A convertible preferred stock,
par value $100.00 per share, for an aggregate gross purchase price of $200.0 million. We
received net proceeds of $188.6 million in connection with this issuance, which were used in the
second quarter of 2010 to fund a portion of the purchase price for the Tommy Hilfiger
acquisition. The Series A convertible preferred stock has a liquidation preference of $25,000 per
share and is currently convertible at a price of $47.74 into 4.2 million shares of common stock.
The conversion
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price is subject to equitable adjustment in the event of us taking certain actions, including stock
splits, stock dividends, mergers, consolidations or other capital reorganizations. The Series A
convertible preferred stock is not redeemable, in whole or in part, at our option or that of any
holder. The holders of the Series A convertible preferred stock are entitled to vote and participate
in dividends with the holders of our common stock on an as-converted basis.

Common Stock Offering

We sold 5.8 million shares of our common stock on April 28, 2010 for an offering price of
$66.50 per share before commissions and discounts to underwriters. We received net proceeds of
$364.9 million in connection with this common stock offering, which were used in the second
quarter of 2010 to fund a portion of the purchase price for the Tommy Hilfiger acquisition.

Dividends

Our common stock currently pays annual dividends totaling $0.15 per share. Our Series A
convertible preferred stock participates in common stock dividends on an as-converted basis.
Common stock dividends totaled $4.7 million in the twenty-six weeks ended August 1, 2010.
We project that cash common stock dividends in 2010 will be $10.0 million based on our current
dividend rate, the number of shares of our common and preferred stock outstanding at August 1,
2010 and our estimates of common stock to be issued in 2010 under our stock incentive plans.

Financing Arrangements

Our capital structure as of August 1, 2010 was as follows:

(in millions)

Short-term borrowings $ 4.6
Long-term debt $ 2,491.6
Stockholders’ equity $ 2,195.6

In addition, we had $475.3 million of cash and cash equivalents as of August 1, 2010.
Tender for and Redemption of 2011 Notes and 2013 Notes

We commenced tender offers on April 7, 2010 for (i) all of the $150.0 million outstanding
principal amount of our notes due 2011; and (ii) all of the $150.0 million outstanding principal
amount of our notes due 2013. The tender offers expired on May 4, 2010. On May 6, 2010, we
accepted for purchase all of the notes tendered and made payment to tendering holders and called
for redemption all of the balance of our outstanding 7 1/4% senior notes due 2011 and all of the
balance of our outstanding 8 1/8% senior notes due 2013. The redemption prices of the notes due
2011 and 2013 were 100.000% and 101.354%, respectively, of the outstanding aggregate
principal amount of the applicable note, plus accrued and unpaid interest thereon to the
redemption date. As of May 6, 2010, we made an irrevocable cash deposit, including accrued
and unpaid interest, to the trustee for the notes due 2011 and 2013. As a result, such indentures
have been satisfied and effectively discharged as of May 6, 2010.

7 3/8% Senior Notes Due 2020

Our $600.0 million 7 3/8% senior notes, which we issued on May 6, 2010 under an indenture
dated as of May 6, 2010, between us and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee, are due
May 15, 2020. Interest on the 7 3/8% notes is payable semi-annually in arrears on May 15 and
November 15 of each year, commencing November 15, 2010.

We may redeem some or all of these notes on or after May 15, 2015 at specified redemption
prices. We may redeem some or all of these notes at any time prior to May 15, 2015 by paying a
“make whole” premium. In addition, we may also redeem up to 35% of these notes prior to May
15, 2013 with the net proceeds of certain equity offerings.
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New Senior Secured Credit Facilities

Our new senior secured credit facility, which we entered into on May 6, 2010, consists of a Euro-
denominated term loan A facility, a United States dollar-denominated term loan A facility, a
Euro-denominated term loan B facility, a United States dollar-denominated term loan B facility, a
United States dollar-denominated revolving credit facility and two multi-currency (one United
States dollar and Canadian dollar, and the other Euro, Yen and Pound) revolving credit facilities.
We borrowed $1.9 billion of term loans on May 6, 2010 and made a voluntary repayment of
$100.0 million on these term loans during the second quarter of 2010. As of August 1, 2010, we
had an aggregate of $1.8 billion of borrowings under the term loan facilities outstanding (based
on the applicable exchange rates in effect on August 1, 2010). These new credit facilities provide
for approximately $450 million of revolving credit facilities (based on the applicable exchange
rates in effect on August 1, 2010), for which we had no revolving credit borrowings and $195.8
million of letters of credit outstanding as of August 1, 2010. The terms of each of the term loan
A and B facilities contain a mandatory repayment schedule on a quarterly basis, such that the
total annual repayments are as follows:

Term Loan
A B

Originally borrowed on May 6, 2010, based on the applicable exchange

rate at that date $494,970 $1,384,910
Percentage required to be repaid for the annual period ending May 6:

2011 5% 1%

2012 10% 1%

2013 15% 1%

2014 25% 1%

2015 45% 1%

2016 - 95%

We currently plan on making approximately $300 million of additional repayments on these term
loans at the end of 2010.

Additionally, in the event there is consolidated Excess Cash Flow, as defined in the agreement,
for any fiscal year, we are required to prepay a percentage of such amount based on our Leverage
Ratio, as calculated in accordance with the agreement. Such amount will be reduced by any
repayments made during the preceding fiscal year.

All repayments made under the facilities are applied on a pro rata basis, determined by the
amounts then outstanding under each of the United States dollar and Euro tranches of term loans
A and B. In addition, we have the ability to prepay at any time the outstanding borrowings under
the new senior secured credit facility without penalty (other than customary breakage costs).

The United States dollar-denominated borrowings under the senior secured credit facility bear
interest at a rate equal to an applicable margin plus, as determined at our option, either (a) a base
rate determined by reference to the higher of (i) the prime rate, (ii) the United States federal
funds rate plus 1/2 of 1% and (iii) a one-month adjusted Eurocurrency rate plus 1% (provided,
that, in the case of the term loan A and B facilities, in no event will the base rate be deemed to be
less than 2.75%); or (b) an adjusted Eurocurrency rate, calculated in a manner set forth in the
senior secured credit facility (provided, that, in the case of the term loan A and B facilities, in no
event will the adjusted Eurocurrency rate be deemed to be less than 1.75%).

Canadian dollar-denominated borrowings under the revolving credit facility bear interest at a rate
equal to an applicable margin plus, as determined at our option, either (a) a Canadian prime rate
determined by reference to the greater of (i) the average of the rates of interest per annum equal
to the per annum rate of interest quoted, published and commonly known in Canada as the
“prime rate” or which Royal Bank of Canada establishes at its main office in Toronto, Ontario as
the reference rate of interest in order to determine interest rates for loans in Canadian dollars to
its Canadian borrowers and (ii) the sum of (x) the average of the rates per annum for Canadian
dollar bankers’ acceptances having a term of one month that appears on the Reuters Screen
CDOR Page as of 10:00 a.m. (Toronto time) on the date of determination, as reported by the
administrative agent (and if such screen is not available, any successor or similar service as may
be select ed by the administrative agent), and (y) 1%, or (b) an adjusted Eurocurrency rate,
calculated in a manner set forth in the senior secured credit facility.
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The borrowings under the senior secured credit facility in currencies other than United States
dollars or Canadian dollars bear interest at a rate equal to an applicable margin plus an adjusted
Eurocurrency rate, calculated in a manner set forth in the senior secured credit facility (provided
that, in the case of the term loan A and B facilities, in no event will the adjusted Eurocurrency
rate be deemed to be less than 1.75%).

The initial applicable margins will be (a) in the case of the United States dollar-denominated
term loan A facility and the United States dollar-denominated term loan B facility, 3.00% for
adjusted Eurocurrency rate loans and 2.00% for base rate loans, as applicable, (b) in the case of
the Euro-denominated term loan A facility and the Euro-denominated term loan B facility, 3.25%
and (c) in the case of the revolving credit facilities, (x) for borrowings denominated in United
States dollars, 3.00% for adjusted Eurocurrency rate loans and 2.00% for base rate loans, as
applicable, (y) for borrowings denominated in Canadian dollars, 3.00% for adjusted
Eurocurrency rate loans and 2.00% for Canadian prime rate loans, as applicable, and (z) for
borrowings denominated in other currencies, 3.25%. After the date of delivery of the compliance
certificate and financial statements with respect to our period ending January 30, 2011, the
applicable margin for borrowings under the te rm loan A facilities and the revolving credit
facilities will be adjusted depending on our leverage ratio.

Our senior secured credit facility contains covenants that restrict our ability to finance future
operations or capital needs, to take advantage of other business opportunities that may be in our
interest or to satisfy our obligations under our other outstanding debt. These covenants restrict
our ability to, among other things:

incur or guarantee additional debt or extend credit;

pay dividends or make distributions on, or redeem or repurchase, our capital stock or
certain other debt;

make other restricted payments, including investments;

dispose of assets;

engage in transactions with affiliates;

enter into agreements restricting our subsidiaries’ ability to pay dividends;

create liens on our assets or engage in sale/leaseback transactions; and

effect a consolidation or merger, or sell, transfer, lease all or substantially all of our assets.

In addition, our senior secured credit facility requires us to comply with certain financial
covenants, including maximum leverage, minimum interest coverage and maximum capital
expenditures. A breach of any of these operating or financial covenants would result in a default
under our senior secured credit facility. If an event of default occurs and is continuing under our
senior secured credit facility, the lenders could elect to declare all amounts outstanding under the
senior secured credit facility, together with accrued interest, to be immediately due and payable
which would result in acceleration of our other debt. If we were unable to repay any such
borrowings when due, the senior secured credit facility lenders could proceed against their
collateral, which also secures some of our other indebtedness.

We are also subject to similar covenants and restrictions in connection with our long-term debt
agreements.

Contractual Obligations

Our contractual cash obligations reflected in the contractual obligations table included in Part I,
Item 7 of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2010 have
materially changed as a result of the acquisition of Tommy Hilfiger.

Our contractual cash obligations increased for principal and interest payments on the new debt
issued in connection with financing the acquisition. Please refer to the discussion above in this
“Liquidity and Capital Resources” section for a description of new debt obligations that were
incurred in connection with financing the acquisition. As a result of Tommy Hilfiger’s large
number of company-operated retail, office and warehouse locations worldwide, our contractual
obligations have also increased for Tommy Hilfiger’s retail store, warehouse, showroom, office
and equipment leases. We have increased our inventory purchase commitments and have also
incurred severance payment obligations in connection with the acquisition of Tommy Hilfiger. In
addition, as a result of the acquisition
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of Tommy Hilfiger, we have for certain members of Tommy Hilfiger’s senior management an
unfunded non-qualified defined benefit pension plan.

SEASONALITY

Our business generally follows a seasonal pattern. Our wholesale businesses tend to generate
higher levels of sales and income in the first and third quarters, while our retail businesses tend
to generate higher levels of sales and income in the fourth quarter. Royalty, advertising and other
revenue tends to be earned somewhat evenly throughout the year, although the third quarter has
the highest level of royalty revenue due to higher sales by licensees in advance of the holiday
selling season.

Due to the above factors, our operating results for the twenty-six week period ended August 1,
2010 are not necessarily indicative of those for a full fiscal year.

ITEM 3 - QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Financial instruments held by us include cash equivalents, short and long-term debt and foreign
currency forward exchange contracts. Note 9, “Fair Value Measurements,” included in Part I,
Item 1 of this report outlines the fair value of our financial instruments as of August 1, 2010.
Cash and cash equivalents held by us are affected by short-term interest rates. Therefore, a
change in short-term interest rates would have an impact on our interest income. Due to the
currently low rates of return we are receiving on our investments, the impact of a further
decrease in short-term interest rates would not have a material impact on our interest income,
while an increase in short-term interest rates could have a more material impact. Given our
average balance of cash and cash equivalents during the first half of 2010, the effect of a 10 basis
point increase in short-term interest rates on our interest income would be approximately $0.5
million annually. During the second quarter of 2010, we entered into a new senior secured credit
facility, which consists of a Euro-denominated term loan A facility, a United States dollar-
denominated term loan A facility, a Euro-denominated term loan B facility, a United States
dollar-denominated term loan B facility, a United States dollar-denominated revolving credit
facility and two multi-currency (one United States dollar and Canadian dollar, and the other
Euro, Yen and Pound) revolving credit facilities. Due to the fact that, effective with the second
quarter of 2010, certain of our debt is denominated in foreign currency, our interest expense in
the future will be impacted by fluctuations in exchange rates. Borrowings under the credit
facilities bear interest at a rate equal to an applicable margin plus a variable rate, each of which is
determined based on the jurisdiction of such borrowings. As such, effective with the second
quarter of 2010, our new credit facilities expose us to market risk for changes in interest rates.

Our exposure to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates has increased significantly as a
result of the acquisition of Tommy Hilfiger, as the Tommy Hilfiger business has a substantial
international component. Accordingly, the impact of a strengthening United States dollar,
particularly against the Euro, the Yen and the Canadian dollar, will have a significantly larger
negative impact on our results of operations than prior to the acquisition of Tommy Hilfiger. Our
Tommy Hilfiger business purchases the majority of the products that it sells in United States
dollars, which exposes the international Tommy Hilfiger business to foreign exchange risk as the
United States dollar fluctuates. As such, we currently use and plan to continue to use foreign
currency forward exchange contracts or other derivative instruments to mitigate the cash flow or
market value risks associated with United States dollar denominated purchases by the Tommy
Hilfiger business.

We are also exposed to market risk for changes in exchange rates for the United States dollar in
connection with our licensing businesses, particularly our Calvin Klein businesses. Most of our
license agreements require the licensee to report sales to us in the licensee’s local currency but to
pay us in United States dollars based on the exchange rate as of the last day of the contractual
selling period. Thus, while we are not exposed to exchange rate gains and losses between the end
of the selling period and the date we collect payment, we are exposed to exchange rate changes
during and up to the last day of the selling period. In addition, certain of our other foreign license
agreements expose us to exchange rate changes up to the date we collect payment or convert
local currency payments into United States dollars. As a result, during times of a strengthening
United States dollar, our foreign royalty revenue will be adversely impacted, and during times of
a weakening United States dollar, our foreign royalty revenue will be favorably impacted.
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ITEM 4 - CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

As of the end of the period covered by this report, we carried out an evaluation, under the
supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer
and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure
controls and procedures. Based upon that evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of the
end of the period covered by this report. Disclosure controls and procedures are controls and
procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in our reports
filed or submitted under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, is recorded,
processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the Securities and
Exchange Commission’s rules and forms and that such information is accumulated and
communicated to our management, including our Chief E xecutive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

There have been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting during the period to
which this report relates that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially
affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
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PART II - OTHER INFORMATION
ITEM 1A — RISK FACTORS

The risk factors included in Part I, Item 1A of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended January 31, 2010 have materially changed as a result of the acquisition of Tommy
Hilfiger. The risk factors that have been modified or added are set forth below.

Our level of debt could impair our financial condition.

In connection with the acquisition of Tommy Hilfiger, we borrowed term loans (of which $1.8
billion in principal amount is currently outstanding) under our senior secured credit facility and
issued $600 million in high-yield notes. We also have $100 million of secured debentures
outstanding. Our level of debt could have important consequences to investors, including:

requiring a substantial portion of our cash flows from operations be used for the payment of
interest on our debt, thereby reducing the funds available to us for our operations or other
capital needs;

limiting our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in our business and the industry
in which we operate because our available cash flow after paying principal and interest on
our debt may not be sufficient to make the capital and other expenditures necessary to
address these changes;

increasing our vulnerability to general adverse economic and industry conditions because,
during periods in which we experience lower earnings and cash flow, we will be required to
devote a proportionally greater amount of our cash flow to paying principal and interest on
our debt;

limiting our ability to obtain additional financing in the future to fund working capital, capital
expenditures, acquisitions, contributions to our pension plans and general corporate
requirements;

placing us at a competitive disadvantage to other relatively less leveraged competitors that
have more cash flow available to fund working capital, capital expenditures, contributions to
pension plans and general corporate requirements; and

with respect to any borrowings we make at variable interest rates, including under our
revolving credit facility, leaving us vulnerable to increases in interest rates generally.

A substantial portion of our revenue and gross profit is derived from a small number of large
customers and the loss of any of these customers could substantially reduce our revenue.

A few of our customers, including Macy’s, Inc., J.C. Penney Company, Inc., Kohl’s Corporation
and Wal-Mart Stores, Inc., account for significant portions of our revenue. Sales to our five
largest customers were 31% of our revenue in 2009, 32% of our revenue in 2008 and 30% of our
revenue in 2007. Macy’s, our largest customer, accounted for 12% of our revenue in 2009, 12%
of our revenue in 2008 and 10% of our revenue in 2007.

Tommy Hilfiger is party to a strategic alliance with Macy’s providing for the exclusive wholesale
distribution in the United States of most men’s, women’s, women’s plus-size and children’s
sportswear under the Tommy Hilfiger brand. The initial term of the agreement with Macy’s ends
on January 30, 2011 and is renewable at the option of Macy’s for up to three renewal terms of
three years, for a total possible term of approximately 12 years. Macy’s has notified Tommy
Hilfiger of its desire to renew the agreement for a second three-year term and the parties are
currently in discussion about expanding the scope of the agreement. Discussions are expected to
be concluded shortly and an extension executed, although there can be no assurance that this will
be the case. Prior to our acquisition of Tommy Hilfiger, Macy’s represented approximately 14%
of Tommy Hilfiger’s North America revenue and 6% of its total reven ue. As a result of this
strategic alliance, the success of Tommy Hilfiger’s North American wholesale business is
substantially dependent on this relationship and on Macy’s ability to maintain and increase sales
of Tommy Hilfiger products. Upon the expiration of the initial term of the Macy’s agreement and
each subsequent three-year term, Macy’s may be unwilling to renew the Macy’s agreement on
favorable terms, or at all. In addition, our and Tommy Hilfiger’s United States wholesale
businesses may be affected by any operational or financial difficulties that Macy’s experiences,
including any deterioration in Macy’s overall ability to attract customer traffic or in its overall
liquidity position.
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Other than Tommy Hilfiger’s strategic alliance with Macy’s, we do not have long-term
agreements with any of our customers and purchases generally occur on an order-by-order basis.
A decision by any of our major customers, whether motivated by marketing strategy, competitive
conditions, financial difficulties or otherwise, to decrease significantly the amount of
merchandise purchased from us or our licensing or other partners, or to change their manner of
doing business with us or our licensing or other partners, could substantially reduce our revenue
and materially adversely affect our profitability. During the past several years, the retail industry
has experienced a great deal of consolidation and other ownership changes and we expect such
changes to be ongoing. In addition, store closings by our customers decrease the number of
stores carrying our apparel products, while the remaining stores may purchase a smaller amount
of our products and may red uce the retail floor space designated for our brands. In the future,
retailers may further consolidate, undergo restructurings or reorganizations, realign their
affiliations or reposition their stores’ target markets. Any of these types of actions could decrease
the number of stores that carry our products or increase the ownership concentration within the
retail industry. These changes could decrease our opportunities in the market, increase our
reliance on a smaller number of large customers and decrease our negotiating strength with our
customers. These factors could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and
results of operations.

We may not be able to continue to develop and grow our Calvin Klein and Tommy Hilfiger
businesses in terms of revenue and profitability.

A significant portion of our business strategy involves growing our Calvin Klein and Tommy
Hilfiger businesses. Our realization of revenue and profitability growth from Calvin Klein and
Tommy Hilfiger will depend largely upon our ability to:

continue to maintain and enhance the distinctive brand identity of the Calvin Klein and
Tommy Hilfiger brands;

continue to maintain good working relationships with Calvin Klein’s and Tommy Hilfiger’s
licensees;

continue to enter into new (or renew or extend existing) licensing agreements for the Calvin
Klein and Tommy Hilfiger brands, both domestically and internationally; and

continue to strengthen and expand the Tommy Hilfiger North American business.

We cannot assure you that we can successfully execute any of these actions or our growth
strategy for these brands, nor can we assure you that the launch of any additional product lines or
businesses by us or our licensees or that the continued offering of these lines will achieve the
degree of consistent success necessary to generate profits or positive cash flow. Our ability to
successfully carry out our growth strategy may be affected by, among other things, our ability to
enhance our relationships with existing customers to obtain additional selling space and/or add
additional product lines, our ability to develop new relationships with retailers, economic and
competitive conditions, changes in consumer spending patterns and changes in consumer tastes
and style trends. If we fail to continue to develop and grow either the Calvin Klein or Tommy
Hilfiger business in terms of revenue and profitability, our financial condition and results of
operations may be materia lly and adversely affected.

The success of Calvin Klein and Tommy Hilfiger depends on the value of our Calvin Klein and
Tommy Hilfiger brands, and if the value of either of those brands were to diminish, our
business could be adversely affected.

Our success depends on our brands and their value. The Calvin Klein name is integral to the
existing Calvin Klein business, as well as to our strategies for continuing to grow and expand
Calvin Klein. The Calvin Klein brands could be adversely affected if Mr. Klein’s public image or
reputation were to be tarnished. We have similar exposure with respect to the Tommy Hilfiger
brands. Mr. Hilfiger is closely identified with the Tommy Hilfiger brand and any negative
perception with respect to Mr. Hilfiger could adversely affect the Tommy Hilfiger brand. In
addition, under Mr. Hilfiger’s employment agreement, if his employment is terminated for any
reason, his agreement not to compete with Tommy Hilfiger will expire two years after such
termination. Although Mr. Hilfiger could not use any Tommy Hilfiger trademark in connection
with a competitive business, his association with a competitive busine ss could adversely affect
Tommy Hilfiger.

Our business is exposed to foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations.
Our exposure to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates has increased significantly as a
result of the acquisition of Tommy Hilfiger, as the Tommy Hilfiger business has a substantial

international component. Accordingly, the impact of a strengthening United States dollar,
particularly against the Euro, the Yen and the
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Canadian dollar, will have a significantly larger negative impact on our results of operations than
prior to the acquisition of Tommy Hilfiger. Our Tommy Hilfiger business purchases the majority
of the products that it sells in United States dollars, which exposes the international Tommy
Hilfiger business to foreign exchange risk as the United States dollar fluctuates. As such, we
currently use and plan to continue to use foreign currency forward exchange contracts or other
derivative instruments to mitigate the cash flow or market value risks associated with United
States dollar denominated purchases by the Tommy Hilfiger business.

We are also exposed to market risk for changes in exchange rates for the United States dollar in
connection with our licensing businesses, particularly our Calvin Klein businesses. Most of our
license agreements require the licensee to report sales to us in the licensee’s local currency but to
pay us in United States dollars based on the exchange rate as of the last day of the contractual
selling period. Thus, while we are not exposed to exchange rate gains and losses between the end
of the selling period and the date we collect payment, we are exposed to exchange rate changes
during and up to the last day of the selling period. In addition, certain of our other foreign license
agreements expose us to exchange rate changes up to the date we collect payment or convert
local currency payments into United States dollars. As a result, during times of a strengthening
United States dollar, our foreign royalty revenue will be adversely impacted, and during times of
a weakening United States dollar, our foreign royalty revenue will be favorably impacted.

We have licensed businesses in countries that are or have been subject to exchange rate control
regulations and have, as a result, experienced difficulties in receiving payments owed to us when
due, with amounts left unpaid for extended periods of time. Although the amounts to date have
been immaterial to us, as our international businesses grow and if controls are enacted or
enforced in additional countries, there can be no assurance that such controls would not have a
material and adverse affect on our business, financial condition or results of operations.

We primarily use foreign suppliers for our products and raw materials, which poses risks to
our business operations.

All of our apparel and footwear products, excluding handmade and handfinished neckwear, are
produced by and purchased or procured from independent manufacturers located in countries in
Europe, the Far East, the Indian subcontinent, the Middle East, South America, the Caribbean
and Central America. We believe that we are one of the largest users of shirting fabric in the
world. Although no single supplier or country is expected to be critical to our production needs,
any of the following could materially and adversely affect our ability to produce or deliver our
products and, as a result, have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and
results of operations:

political or labor instability in countries where contractors and suppliers are located;

political or military conflict involving the United States, which could cause a delay in the
transportation of our products and raw materials to us and an increase in transportation
costs;

heightened terrorism security concerns, which could subject imported or exported goods
to additional, more frequent or more thorough inspections, leading to delays in deliveries
or impoundment of goods for extended periods or could result in decreased scrutiny by
customs officials for counterfeit goods, leading to lost sales, increased costs for our anti-
counterfeiting measures and damage to the reputation of our brands;

a significant decrease in availability or increase in cost of raw materials or the inability to
use raw materials produced in a country that is a major provider due to political, human
rights, labor, environmental, animal cruelty or other concerns;

disease epidemics and health-related concerns, which could result in closed factories,
reduced workforces, scarcity of raw materials and scrutiny or embargoing of goods
produced in infected areas;

the migration and development of manufacturers, which could affect where our products
are or are planned to be produced;

imposition of regulations, quotas and safeguards relating to imports and our ability to
adjust timely to changes in trade regulations, which, among other things, could limit our
ability to produce products in cost-effective countries that have the labor and expertise
needed;

imposition of duties, taxes and other charges on imports;
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significant fluctuation of the value of the United States dollar against foreign
currencies; and

restrictions on transfers of funds out of countries where our foreign licensees are located.

Tommy Hilfiger is dependent on third parties to source its products and any disruption in the
relationship with these parties or in their businesses may materially adversely affect our
Tommy Hilfiger business.

Our Tommy Hilfiger business uses third parties to source the majority of its products from
manufacturers. Prior to our acquisition of Tommy Hilfiger, Tommy Hilfiger outsourced
approximately 81% of its sourcing functions to external buying offices. Tommy Hilfiger is a
party to a non-exclusive buying agency agreement with Li & Fung Limited to carry out most of
its sourcing work. Li & Fung is one of the world’s largest buying agencies for apparel and related
goods and is Tommy Hilfiger’s largest buying office. Under the terms of the agreement, we are
required to use Li & Fung for at least 54% of Tommy Hilfiger’s global sourcing needs. The
buying agency agreement with Li & Fung is terminable by us upon 12 months’ prior notice for
any reason, and is terminable by either party (i) upon six months’ prior notice in the event of a
material breach by the other party and (ii) immediately upon the occurr ence of certain
bankruptcy or insolvency events relating to the other party. Tommy Hilfiger also uses other third-
party buying offices for a portion of its sourcing and has retained a small in-house sourcing team.
Any interruption in the operations of Li & Fung or Tommy Hilfiger’s other buying offices, or the
failure of Li & Fung or Tommy Hilfiger’s other buying offices to perform effectively their
services for Tommy Hilfiger, could result in material delays, reductions of shipments and
increased costs. Furthermore, such events could harm Tommy Hilfiger’s wholesale and retail
relationships. Although alternative sourcing companies exist, we may be unable to source Tommy
Hilfiger products through other third parties, if at all, on terms commercially acceptable to us and
on a timely basis. Any disruption in Tommy Hilfiger’s relationship with its buying offices or
their businesses, particularly Li & Fung, could have a material adverse effect on our cash flows ,
business, financial condition and results of operations.

A significant portion of our revenue is dependent on royalties and licensing.

Royalty, advertising and other revenue from Calvin Klein’s three largest licensing partners
accounted for approximately 67% of its royalty, advertising and other revenue in 2009. Prior to
our acquisition of Tommy Hilfiger, royalty, advertising and other revenue from Tommy
Hilfiger’s three largest licensing partners accounted for approximately 35% of its royalty,
advertising and other revenue. We also derive licensing revenue from our Van Heusen, IZOD,
Bass, G.H. Bass & Co. and ARROW brand names, as well as from the sublicensing of Geoffrey
Beene. The operating profit associated with our royalty, advertising and other revenue is
significant because the operating expenses directly associated with administering and monitoring
an individual licensing or similar agreement are minimal. Therefore, the loss of a significant
licensing partner, whether due to the termination or expiration of the relationship, the cessation
of the licensi ng partner’s operations or otherwise (including as a result of financial difficulties of
the partner), without an equivalent replacement, could materially affect our profitability.

While we generally have significant control over our licensing partners’ products and
advertising, we rely on our licensing partners for, among other things, operational and financial
controls over their businesses. Our licensing partners’ failure to successfully market licensed
products or our inability to replace our existing licensing partners could materially and adversely
affect our revenue both directly from reduced royalty and advertising and other revenue received
and indirectly from reduced sales of our other products. Risks are also associated with our
licensing partners’ ability to obtain capital; execute their business plans, including timely
delivery of quality products; manage their labor relations; maintain relationships with their
suppliers; manage their credit risk effectively; and maintain relationships with their customers.

Acquisitions may not be successful in achieving intended benefits and synergies.

One component of our growth strategy contemplates our making select acquisitions if
appropriate opportunities arise. Prior to completing any acquisition, our management team
identifies expected synergies, cost savings and growth opportunities. However, these benefits
may not be realized due to, among other things:

delays or difficulties in completing the integration of acquired companies or assets;

higher than expected costs, lower than expected cost savings and/or a need to allocate
resources to manage unexpected operating difficulties;

diversion of the attention and resources of management;
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consumers’ failure to accept product offerings by us or our licensees;
inability to retain key employees in acquired companies; and
assumption of liabilities unrecognized in due diligence.

A significant shift in the relative sources of our earnings, adverse decisions of tax authorities
or changes in tax treaties, laws, rules or interpretations could have a material adverse effect
on our results of operations and cash flow.

With the acquisition of Tommy Hilfiger, we now have direct operations in a number of countries,
including the United States, Canada, the Netherlands, Germany, the United Kingdom, Italy,
Japan, Hong Kong and China, and the applicable statutory tax rates vary by jurisdiction. As a
result, our overall effective tax rate could be materially affected by the relative level of earnings
in the various taxing jurisdictions to which our earnings are subject. In addition, the tax laws and
regulations in the various countries in which we operate may be subject to change and there may
be changes in interpretation and enforcement of tax law. As a result, we may face increases in
taxes payable if tax rates increase, or if tax laws, regulations or treaties in the jurisdictions in
which we operate are modified by the competent authorities in an adverse manner.

In addition, various national and local taxing authorities periodically examine us and our
subsidiaries. The resolution of an examination or audit may result in us making a payment in an
amount that differs from the amount for which we may have reserved with respect to any
particular tax matter, which could have a material adverse effect on our cash flows, business,
financial condition and results of operations for any affected reporting period.

We and our subsidiaries are engaged in a number of intercompany transactions. Although we
believe that these transactions reflect arm’s length terms and that proper transfer pricing
documentation is in place which should be respected for tax purposes, the transfer prices and
conditions may be scrutinized by local tax authorities, which could result in additional tax
becoming due.

If Tommy Hilfiger were unable to fully utilize its deferred tax assets, its profitability could be
reduced.

Tommy Hilfiger has substantial deferred income tax assets on its balance sheet. This includes tax
loss and foreign tax credit carryforwards in the United States and the Netherlands. Our ability to
utilize these assets depends on a number of factors, including whether there will be adequate
levels of taxable income in future periods to offset the tax loss carryforwards before they expire.
Also, United States tax rules impose an annual limit on the amount of certain loss carryovers of
Tommy Hilfiger that we can use following the acquisition, and, depending on our taxable income
in tax years following the acquisition, such limit may be material. These factors could reduce the
value of the deferred tax assets, which could have a material effect on our profitability.
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ITEM 2 - UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS
ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

(c) Total Number (d) Maximum Number
of Shares (or Units) (or Approximate Dollar
(a) Total (b) Average Purchased as Part Value) of Shares (or
Number of Price Paid of Publicly Units) that May Yet Be
Shares (or per Share Announced Plans Purchased Under the
Period Units), Purchased® (or Unit)(l) or Programs Plans or Programs
May 3, 2010 -
May 30, 2010 81,566 65.10 - -
May 31, 2010 -
July 4, 2010 242 53.87 - -
July 5, 2010 -
August 1, 2010 518 49.16 - -
Total 82,326 $64.97 - -

(@ Our 2006 Stock Incentive Plan provides us with the right to deduct or withhold, or require
employees to remit to us, an amount sufficient to satisfy any applicable tax withholding
requirements applicable to stock-based compensation awards. To the extent permitted,
employees may elect to satisfy all or part of such withholding requirements by tendering
previously owned shares or by having us withhold shares having a fair market value equal to the
minimum statutory tax withholding rate that could be imposed on the transaction. 13,834 shares
shown in this table were withheld during the second quarter of 2010 in connection with the
settlement of vested restricted stock units to satisfy tax withholding requirements. The remaining
shares were withheld to satisfy the exercise price of certain warrants that were exercised during
2010.

ITEM 6 - EXHIBITS
The following exhibits are included herein:

3.1 Certificate of Incorporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 5 to the Company’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 29, 1977).

3.2 Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation, filed June 27, 1984 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3B to
the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended February 3, 1985).

3.3 Certificate of Designation of Series A Cumulative Participating Preferred Stock, filed June 10, 1986
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit A of the document filed as Exhibit 3 to the Company’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended May 4, 1986).

3.4 Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation, filed June 2, 1987 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3(c) to
the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 31, 1988).

3.5 Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation, filed June 1, 1993 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.5 to
the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 30, 1994).

3.6 Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation, filed June 20, 1996 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to
the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended July 28, 1996).

3.7 Certificate of Designations, Preferences and Rights of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock of Phillips-Van
Heusen Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-
K, filed on February 26, 2003).

3.8 Corrected Certificate of Designations, Preferences and Rights of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock of

Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation, dated as of April 17, 2003 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.9 to the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended February 2, 2003).
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3.9

3.10

3.11

3.12

3.13

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

Certificate of Amendment of Certificate of Incorporation, filed June 29, 2006 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3.9 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended May 6, 2007).

Certificate Eliminating Reference to Series B Convertible Preferred Stock from Certificate of Incorporation
of Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation, filed June 12, 2007 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.10 to the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended May 6, 2007).

Certificate Eliminating Reference To Series A Cumulative Participating Preferred Stock From Certificate of
Incorporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed
on September 28, 2007).

Certificate of Designations of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock of Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed May 12,
2010).

By-Laws of Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation, as amended through April 30, 2009 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on May 5, 2009).

Specimen of Common Stock certificate (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4 to the Company’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 31, 1981).

Indenture, dated as of November 1, 1993, between Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation and The Bank of New
York, as Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.01 to the Company’s Registration Statement on
Form S-3 (Reg. No. 33-50751) filed on October 26, 1993).

First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of October 17, 2002 to Indenture dated as of November 1, 1993
between Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation and The Bank of New York, as Trustee (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.15 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended November
3, 2002).

Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of February 12, 2002 to Indenture, dated as of November 1, 1993,
between Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation and The Bank of New York, as Trustee (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on February 26, 2003).

Indenture, dated as of May 5, 2003, between Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation and SunTrust Bank, as
Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.13 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
period ended May 4, 2003).

Indenture, dated as of February 18, 2004 between Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation and SunTrust Bank, as
Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.14 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended February 1, 2004).

First Supplemental Indenture to 7 1/4% Senior Notes Due May 1, 2011, dated as of April 20, 2010, to
Indenture, dated as of February 18, 2004, between Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation and U.S. Bank National
Association (as successor to SunTrust Bank, the Predecessor Trustee), as Trustee (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 4.8 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended May 2, 2010).

First Supplemental Indenture to 8 1/8% Senior Notes Due May 1, 2013, dated as of April 20, 2010, to
Indenture, dated as of May 5, 2003, between Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation and U.S. Bank National
Association (as successor to SunTrust Bank, the Predecessor Trustee), as Trustee (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 4.9 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended May 2, 2010).

Securities Purchase Agreement, dated as of March 15, 2010, by and among Phillips-Van Heusen
Corporation, LNK Partners, L.P. and LNK Partners (Parallel), L.P. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
4.10 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended May 2, 2010).

Securities Purchase Agreement, dated as of March 15, 2010, by and between Phillips-Van Heusen
Corporation and MSD Brand Investments, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.11 to the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended May 2, 2010).
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+4.11

+4.12

+4.13

+4.14

+4.15

+4.16

+10.1

+10.2

+10.3

+10.4

+10.5

+10.6

+15

+31.1

+31.2

Stockholders Agreement, dated as of May 6, 2010, by and among Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation, Tommy
Hilfiger Holding S.a.r.l, Stichting Administratiekantoor Elmira, Apax Europe VI-A, L.P., Apax Europe VI-
1, L.P. and Apax US VII, L.P.

Amendment to Stockholders Agreement, dated as of June 8, 2010 to Stockholders Agreement, dated as of
May 6, 2010, by and among Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation, Tommy Hilfiger Holding S.a.r.], Stichting
Administratiekantoor Elmira, Apax Europe VI-A, L.P., Apax Europe VI-1, L.P. and Apax US VII, L.P.

Stockholders Agreement, dated as of May 6, 2010, by and among Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation, LNK
Partners, L.P. and LNK Partners (Parallel), L.P.

Stockholder Agreement, dated as of May 6, 2010, by and between Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation and
MSD Brand Investments, LLC.

Indenture, dated as of May 6, 2010, between Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation and U.S. Bank National
Association, as Trustee.

Third Supplemental Indenture, dated as of May 6, 2010, between Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation and The
Bank of New York Mellon (formerly known as The Bank of New York), as Trustee.

Credit and Guaranty Agreement, dated as of May 6, 2010, among Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation, Tommy
Hilfiger B.V., certain subsidiaries of Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation, Barclays Bank PLC as
Administrative Agent and Collateral Agent, Barclays Capital as Joint Lead Arranger and Joint Lead
Bookrunner, Deutsche Bank Securities Inc. as Joint Lead Arranger, Joint Lead Bookrunner and Syndication
Agent, Banc of America Securities LLC as Joint Lead Bookrunner and Co-Documentation Agent, Credit
Suisse Securities (USA) LLC as Joint Lead Bookrunner and Co-Documentation Agent, and RBC Capital
Markets as Joint Lead Bookrunner and Co-Documentation Agent.

First Amendment to Credit and Guaranty Agreement, dated as of July 26, 2010 to Credit and Guaranty
Agreement, dated as of May 6, 2010, among Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation, Tommy Hilfiger B.V.,
certain subsidiaries of Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation, Barclays Bank PLC as Administrative Agent and
Collateral Agent, Barclays Capital as Joint Lead Arranger and Joint Lead Bookrunner, Deutsche Bank
Securities Inc. as Joint Lead Arranger, Joint Lead Bookrunner and Syndication Agent, Banc of America
Securities LLC as Joint Lead Bookrunner and Co-Documentation Agent, Credit Suisse Securities (USA)
LLC as Joint Lead Bookrunner and Co-Documentation Agent, and RBC Capital Markets as Joint Lead
Bookrunner and Co-Documentation Agent.

Revised Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement for Directors under the Phillips-Van Heusen
Corporation 2006 Stock Incentive Plan, effective as of June 24, 2010.

Schedule of Non-Management Directors’ Fees, effective June 24, 2010.

Second Amended and Restated Revolving Credit Agreement, dated as of July 10, 2007, among Phillips-Van
Heusen Corporation, The IZOD Corporation, PVH Wholesale Corp., PVH Retail Corp., izod.com inc., G.H.
Bass Franchises Inc., CD Group Inc., PVH CK Stores, Inc., PVH Ohio, Inc., PVH Michigan, Inc., PVH
Pennsylvania, Inc., PVH Wholesale New Jersey, Inc., PVH Retail Management Company, PVH
Superba/Insignia Neckwear, Inc. and the lender parties thereto, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as
Administrative Agent and Collateral Agent, JPMorgan Securities Inc., as Joint Lead Arranger and Sole
Bookrunner, Bank of America, N.A., as Joint Lead Arranger and Co-Syndication Agent, SunTrust Bank, as
Co-Syndication Agent, Wachovia Bank, National Association, as Co-Documentation Agent, and The CIT
Group/Commercial Services, Inc., as Co-Documentation Agent.

Second Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, dated as of May 27, 2010,
between Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation and Emanuel Chirico.

Acknowledgement of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.

Certification of Emanuel Chirico, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbanes — Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of Michael Shaffer, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, pursuant to Section
302 of the Sarbanes — Oxley Act of 2002.
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+32.1 Certification of Emanuel Chirico, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes — Oxley Act of 2002, 18 U.S.C. Section 1350.

+32.2 Certification of Michael Shaffer, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, pursuant to Section
906 of the Sarbanes — Oxley Act of 2002, 18 U.S.C. Section 1350.

+  Filed herewith.

Exhibits 32.1 and 32.2 shall not be deemed “filed” for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, or otherwise subject to the liability of that Section. Such exhibits shall
not be deemed incorporated by reference into any filing under the Securities Act of 1933 or the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

PHILLIPS-VAN HEUSEN CORPORATION
Registrant

Dated: September 10, 2010
/S/ BRUCE GOLDSTEIN
Bruce Goldstein

Senior Vice President and Controller
(Chief Accounting Officer)
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STOCKHOLDERS AGREEMENT

THIS STOCKHOLDERS AGREEMENT, dated as of May 6, 2010 (this “Agreement”),
by and among Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation, a Delaware corporation (the “Company”),
Tommy Hilfiger Holding S.a.r.l., a Luxembourg limited liability company (“LuxCo”), Stichting
Administrekantoor Elmira, a foundation under Dutch law (stichting) (the “Foundation”), Apax
Europe VI-A, L.P,, a limited partnership under English law (“Apax Europe VI-A, L.P.”), Apax
Europe VI-1, L.P,, a limited partnership under English law (“Apax Europe VI-1, L..P.”), Apax US
VII, L.P., an exempted limited partnership under Cayman Islands law (“Apax US VII, L.P.”) and
each of the other signatories hereto (together with Apax, LuxCo and the Foundation referred to
hereinafter collectively as the “Investors” and individually as an “< U>Investor”).

RECITALS:

A. The Company, LuxCo, the Foundation and certain related parties have entered into
that certain Purchase Agreement, dated as of March 15, 2010 (the “Purchase Agreement”),
pursuant to which the Company and one of its Affiliates are purchasing all of the outstanding
capital stock of Tommy Hilfiger B.V. and Tommy Hilfiger U.S.A., Inc.

B. As of immediately prior to the Closing, LuxCo and the Foundation own 100% of
the outstanding equity capital stock of Tommy Hilfiger B.V.

C. In connection with the closing of the transactions pursuant to the Purchase
Agreement, LuxCo and the Foundation received as partial consideration for their aggregate
100% equity interest in Tommy Hilfiger B.V. shares of Company Common Stock (the shares
received by LuxCo (some of which are to be held in escrow for a period following Closing
pursuant to the Purchase Agreement, the “ Luxco Shares ”) and the shares received by the
Foundation ( some of which are to be held in escrow for a period following Closing pursuant to
the Purchase Agreement , the “ Foundation Shares ”).

D. Following the closing of the transactions under the Purchase Agreement, (i)
LuxCo may distribute some or all of the Luxco Shares to its Beneficial Owners and (ii) the
Foundation shall promptly distribute the Foundation Shares to its Beneficial Owners (less, in
each case, the number of Foundation Shares as to receipt of which a Beneficial Owner has
agreed shall be deferred pursuant to a Management Term Sheet or other binding agreement,
which shares shall be deposited in a management escrow account and treated pursuant to such
escrow agreement and shares otherwise subject to escrow pursuant to the Purchase Agreement).

E. It is a condition to closing the transactions contemplated by the Purchase
Agreement that the Company and LuxCo enter into this Agreement to provide for certain
agreements and obligations of the parties following the closing of the transactions contemplated
by the Purchase Agreement (the “Closing”).

AGREEMENT:

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing premises and the mutual
covenants and agreements contained herein and for other good and valuable consideration, the



receipt and adequacy of which are hereby acknowledged, intending to be legally bound, the
parties hereto agree as follows:

ARTICLE I
DEFINITIONS

SECTION 1.1.  Definitions. The following terms shall have the meanings ascribed to
them below:

“Action” means a judgment, suit, litigation, arbitration, claim, action, complaint,
injunction, order, dispute, inquiry, arbitration or governmental proceeding.

“Additional Securities” means Company Common Stock, preferred stock or convertible
debt of the Company, convertible into or exchangeable for shares of Company Common Stock or
any option or warrant for such securities .

“Affiliate” of a Person has the meaning set forth in Rule 12b-2 under the Exchange Act.
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in this Agreement, no limited partner or
similar participant of an Investor shall be deemed an Affiliate of such Investor.

“Agreement” means this Agreement, as amended, modified or supplemented from time to
time, in accordance with the terms hereof, together with any exhibits, schedules or other
attachments hereto.

“Ancillary Agreements” has the meaning set forth in the Purchase Agreement.

“Apax” means Apax Europe VI-A, L.P., Apax Europe VI-1, L.P. and Apax US VII, L.P.
and their Affiliates that from time to time hold shares of Company Common Stock received
pursuant to the Purchase Agreement or the Ancillary Agreement or in respect of any such shares.

References to Apax include all of its private equity funds, including co-invest and side-by-side
entities, that hold Company Common Stock from time to time as Permitted Transferee under this
Agreement, so long as such entities continue to be advised by Apax Partners L.P. and Apax
Partners LLP.

“Apax Europe VI-A, L.P.” has the meaning set forth in preamble to this Agreement.

“Apax Europe VI-1., L.P.” has the meaning set forth in preamble to this Agreement.

“Apax US VII, L.P.” has the meaning set forth in preamble to this Agreement.

“Apax VCOC Partnerships” means Apax Europe VI-A, L.P. and Apax US VII, L.P.

“Beneficially Own” with respect to any securities means having “beneficial ownership”
of such securities (as determined pursuant to Rule 13d-3 under the Exchange Act without
limitation by the 60-day provision in paragraph (d)(1)(i) thereof); provided, that any shares of
Company Common Stock held in escrow under the Purchase Agreement shall be deemed to be
Beneficially Owned by the Investors in proportion to their beneficial percentage interest in the
escrow account until such time as any such shares are released from escrow to the Company in

-



accordance with the Purchase Agreement (an “Escrow Release”). The terms “Beneficial
Ownership” and “Beneficial Owner” have correlative meanings.

“Board” or “Board of Directors” means the Board of Directors of the Company.

“Business Day” means a day, other than a Saturday or Sunday, on which commercial
banks in New York City are open for the general transaction of business.

“Capital Stock” means, with respect to any Person at any time, any and all shares,
interests, participations or other equivalents (however designated, whether voting or non-voting)
of capital stock, partnership interests (whether general or limited) or equivalent ownership
interests in or issued by such Person.

“Change of Control” means the existence or occurrence of any of the following: (a) the
sale, conveyance or disposition of all or substantially all of the assets of the Company; (b) the
consolidation, merger or other business combination of the Company with or into any other
entity, immediately following which the then current stockholders of the Company fail to own,
directly or indirectly, at least Majority Voting Power; (c) a transaction or series of transactions in
which any person or “group” (as such term is used in Sections 13(d) and 14(d) of the Exchange
Act) acquires Majority Voting Power (other than (i) a reincorporation or similar corporate
transaction in which the Company’s stockholders own, immediately thereafter, interests in the
new parent company in essentially the same percentage as they owned in the Company
immediately prior to such transaction, or (ii) a transaction described in clause (b) (such as a
triangular merger) in which the threshold in clause (b) is not passed) or (d) the replacement of a
majority of the Board of Directors with individuals who were not nominated or elected by at
least a majority of the directors at the time of such replacement.

“Closing” has the meaning ascribed thereto in the recitals of this Agreement.
“Closing Date” means the date on which the Closing occurs.

“Closing Date Shares” means the shares of Company Common Stock issued to the
Investors as of the Closing under the Purchase Agreement (net of any shares of Company
Common Stock returned to the Company pursuant to an Escrow Release), and any securities
issued in respect thereof, or in substitution therefor, in connection with any stock split, dividend,
spin-off or combination, or any reclassification, recapitalization, merger consolidation, exchange
or other similar reorganization or business combination.

“Common Equivalent Securities” means Company Common Stock or securities
convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for such Company Common Stock.

“Company” has the meaning set forth in the preamble of this Agreement.

“Company Common Stock” means the common stock, par value $1 per share, of the
Company.

“Company Indemnitees” has the meaning set forth in Section 5.6(b).



“Company_Supported Distribution” means a public underwritten offering by the

Company that is designated as a “Company Supported Distribution” in the applicable Shelf
Take-Down Notice or Demand Notice.

“Covered Parties” has the meaning set forth in Section 6.1.

“ Covered Transaction ” means the sale for cash of shares of any Additional Securities,
where the primary purpose of such offering is to raise equity capital for the Company. For the
avoidance of doubt, the term “Covered Transaction” will not apply to the issuance of (a) Options
or Company Common Stock, or warrants therefor, to consultants, advisors, directors, officers or
employees of the Company, or any joint venture partner; (b) Company Common Stock issued as
consideration in a merger or acquisition transaction, other extraordinary business combination or
joint venture approved by the Board of Directors; (c) Options, Company Common stock, or
warrants therefor, issued to a strategic (as opposed to financial) investor with an actual or
prospective operational or business (as opposed to financial) relationship with the Company,
whether for cash or assets, where a substantial purpose of the issuance, as determined in good
faith by the Board of Directors (excluding the Investor Designee) is to develop or maintain an
operational or business (as opposed to financial) relationship with such strategic investor and so
long as such issuance does not exceed 5% of the then outstanding shares of Company Common
Stock or (d) Options or warrants to ac quire shares of Company Common Stock issued to
commercial lending institutions of debt financing to the Company. For the avoidance of doubt,
where an issuance of Additional Shares is not a Covered Transaction, the exercise of such
security and issuance of the related shares, shall also not be a Covered Transaction.

“Demand Notice” has the meaning set forth in Section 5.2(a).

“Demand Registration” has the meaning set forth in Section 5.2(a).

“Demand Registration Statement” has the meaning set forth in Section 5.2(a).
“Director” means a director of the Company.

“Disposition Restriction Period” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.3.
“Election Meetings” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.1(b).

“Escrow Release” has the meaning set forth in the definition of Beneficially Own.

“Exchange Act” means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

“Existing Shelf Registration Statement” has the meaning set forth in Section 5.1(a).

“Governance Rights Termination Event” shall be deemed to have occurred upon the
earliest to occur of (a) Apax ceasing to Beneficially Own the Governance Rights Termination
Threshold, (b) Apax breaching in any material respect any of the provisions of Article III of this
Agreement, which breach is incapable of cure, or is not cured, within 30 days of notice thereof or
(c) the Company’s good faith determination based upon advice of outside counsel, that Apax’s
right under Section 2.1 initially to appoint the Investor Designee or his Replacement as a



Director and thereafter, in connection with each Election Meeting, to include the Investor
Designee or his Replacement in its slate of nominees for election as a Director would likely
result in a violation of Section 8 of the Clayton Act, 15 U.S.C. §19, or any applicable material
foreign antitrust Laws.

“Governmental Entity” means any United States or foreign (a) federal, state, local,
municipal or other government, (b) governmental or quasi-governmental entity of any nature
(including, without limitation, any governmental agency, branch, department, official or entity
and any court or other tribunal) or (c) body exercising or entitled to exercise any administrative,
executive, judicial, legislative, police, regulatory or taxing authority or power of any nature,
including, without limitation, any arbitral tribunal.

“Governance Rights Termination Threshold” means a number of shares equal to the
greater of (a) 50% of the Closing Date Shares Beneficially Owned by Apax as of the date of this
Agreement and (b) 4% of the then issued and outstanding shares of Company Common Stock.

“Indemnified Party” has the meaning set forth in Section 5.6(c).

“Indemnifying Party” has the meaning set forth in Section 5.6(c).

“Investor” and “Investors” have the meaning set forth in the preamble of this Agreement.
References to Investors also include transferees to which an Investor transfers shares of

Company Common Stock and related rights under this Agreement in accordance with, and
subject to the terms of, Section 3.3.

“Investor Designee” means either Michael Phillips or Christian Stahl, as designated by
Apax Europe VI-A, L.P. prior to the Closing Date, or any Replacement thereof, as the case may
be, subject to the terms of Section 2.1 governing replacement designees.

“Investor Indemnitees” has the meaning set forth in Section 5.6(a).

“Investors’ Representative” means Apax Europe VI-A, L.P. or any other Investor
designated by the Investors holding a majority of the Company Common Stock then held by the
Investors in the aggregate.

“Law” means any applicable federal, state, local or foreign law, statute, ordinance, rule,
guideline, regulation, order, writ, decree, agency requirement, license or permit of any
Governmental Entity.

“Losses” has the meaning set forth in Section 5.6(a).

“LuxCo” has the meaning set forth in preamble to this Agreement.

“Majority Voting Power” of the resulting corporation or of the Company shall mean a
majority of the ordinary voting power in the election of directors of all the outstanding voting

securities of the resulting corporation or of the Company, respectively.

“Management Term Sheets” has the meaning set forth in the Purchase Agreement.



“Notice and Questionnaire” means a written notice executed by a respective Investor and
delivered to the Company containing the information required by the Securities Act and the rules
and regulations promulgated thereunder to be included in any Shelf Registration Statement
regarding the applicable Investor seeking to sell Company Common Stock pursuant thereto.

“NYSE” means the New York Stock Exchange.

“Options” means options to subscribe for, purchase or otherwise directly acquire
Company Common Stock.

“Other Securities” means the Company Common Stock or other securities of the
Company which the Company is registering pursuant to a Registration Statement covered by
Article V.

“Permitted Acquisition” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.1.

“Person” shall mean any natural person, corporation, partnership, limited liability
company, joint venture, association, joint-stock company, trust, unincorporated organization or
government or other agency or political subdivision thereof.

“Piggyback Notice” has the meaning set forth in Section 5.3(a).

“Piggyback Registration” has the meaning set forth in Section 5.3(a).

"Pre-emptive Acceptance Notice" has the meaning set forth in Section 4.2(b).

“Pre-emptive Acceptance Period has the meaning set forth in Section 4.2(b).

“Pre-emptive Notice” has the meaning set forth in Section 4.2(a).

“ Pre-emptive Notice Time ” has the meaning set forth in Section 4.2(a).

“Pre-emptive Right” has the meaning set forth in Section 4.2(a).

“Pro Rata” means, with respect to any offer of Additional Securities, the percentage of
outstanding Company Common Stock held by an Investor.

“Prospectus” means the prospectus included in any Registration Statement, as amended
or supplemented by any prospectus supplement and by all other amendments thereto, including
post-effective amendments, and all material incorporated by reference into such prospectus.

“Purchase Agreement” has the meaning ascribed thereto in the recitals of this Agreement.

“Qualified Investor” has the meaning set forth in Section 4.2(g).

“Registration Expenses” has the meaning set forth in Section 5.4.

“Registrable Securities” means (i) the shares of Company Common Stock acquired by the
Investors pursuant to the Purchase Agreement, as well as any shares of Company Common Stock



or other securities issued as (or issuable upon the conversion or exercise of any warrant, right or
other security which is issued as) a dividend or other distribution with respect to, or in exchange
generally for, or in replacement generally of, such Company Common Stock or other Registrable
Securities and any securities issued in exchange for such Company Common Stock or other
Registrable Securities in any merger, reorganization, consolidation, share exchange,
recapitalization, restructuring or other comparable transaction of the Company and (ii) shares of
Company Common Stock acquired by the Investors pursuant to Section 4.2. As to any particular
Registrable Securities, once issued such securities shall cease to be Registrable Securities when
(a) a Registration Statement with respect to the sale by the Investor holding such securities has
been declared effective by the SEC and such securities have been disposed of pursuant to such
effecti ve Registration Statement, (b) such securities have been otherwise transferred and the
Company has delivered a new certificate or other evidence of ownership for such securities not
bearing a restrictive legend and not subject to any stop order, and such securities may be publicly
resold by the Person receiving such certificate without complying with the registration
requirements of the Securities Act, (c) such securities shall have ceased to be outstanding or (d)
such securities have been or could be sold under circumstances in which all applicable conditions
of Rule 144 (or any similar provisions then in force) under the Securities Act are met; provided,
that any shares of Company Common Stock that may be requested to be sold in a Company
Supported Distribution in accordance with, and subject to the limitations provided in this
Agreement, shall be considered Registrable Securities without regard to this clause (d).

“Registration Statement” means any registration statement of the Company under the
Securities Act which permits the public offering of any of the Registrable Securities pursuant to
the provisions of this Agreement, including the Prospectus, amendments and supplements to
such registration statement, including post-effective amendments, all exhibits and all material
incorporated by reference or deemed to be incorporated by reference in such registration
statement.

“Relevant Restriction Period” means, with respect to any Investor, (a) with respect to
100% of the Closing Date Shares Beneficially Owned by such Investor, the period commencing
on the date of this Agreement and ending on the day that is 9 months from the date of this
Agreement and (b) with respect to 50% of the Closing Date Shares Beneficially Owned by such
Investor, the period commencing on the date of this Agreement and ending on the day that is 15
months from the date of this Agreement.

“Replacement” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.1(e).
“SEC” means the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission.
“Securities Act” means the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.

“Selling Investor” means an Investor who is selling Registrable Securities pursuant to a
Registration Statement under the Securities Act.

“Shelf Date” has the meaning set forth in Section 5.1(a).

“Shelf Registration Statement” has the meaning set forth in Section 5.1(a).



“Shelf Take-Down Notice” has the meaning set forth in Section 5.1(b).

“Short Interests” means any agreement, arrangement, understanding or relationship,
including any repurchase or similar so-called “stock borrowing” agreement or arrangement,
engaged in, directly or indirectly, by any of the Investors or their Affiliates, the purpose or effect
of which is to short shares of Company Common Stock.

“Standstill Period” means the period commencing on the Closing Date and ending on the
earlier to occur of (i) the termination of this Agreement pursuant to its terms; (ii) a Change of
Control involving the Company or (iii) 3 months after (a) Apax irrevocably waives and
terminates all of its rights under Section 2.1, (b) a Governance Right Termination Event, or (c)
the resignation, removal or death of the Investor Designee, if no Replacement shall have filled
such vacancy and Apax shall have during such period proposed at least two different
Replacements who it believes in good faith are qualified designees and both of whom shall have
been rejected by the Company.

“Subsidiary” means, as to any Person, any other Person more than 50% of the shares of
the voting stock or other voting interests of which are owned or controlled, or the ability to select
or elect more than 50% of the directors or similar managers is held, directly or indirectly, by such
first Person or one or more of its Subsidiaries or by such first Person and one or more of its
Subsidiaries.

“Suspension Period” has the meaning set forth in Section 5.5(a)(ii).

“Voting Securities” means the shares of Company Common Stock and any other
securities of the Company entitled to vote generally for the election of directors or convertible
into such securities.

“13D Group” means any group of Persons who, with respect to those acquiring, holding,
voting or disposing of Company Common Stock would, assuming ownership of the requisite
percentage thereof, be required under Section 13(d) of the Exchange Act to file a statement on
Schedule 13D with the SEC as a “person” within the meaning of Section 13(d)(3) of the
Exchange Act.

SECTION 1.2.  General Interpretive Principles. Whenever used in this Agreement,
except as otherwise expressly provided or unless the context otherwise requires, any noun or
pronoun shall be deemed to include the plural as well as the singular and to cover all genders.
The name assigned this Agreement and the Section captions used herein are for convenience of
reference only and shall not be construed to affect the meaning, construction or effect hereof.

Unless otherwise specified, the terms “hereof,” “herein” and similar terms refer to this
Agreement as a whole (including the exhibits hereto), and references herein to Sections refer to
Sections of this Agreement.

ARTICLE I
GOVERNANCE

SECTION 2.1.  Election and Appointment. The Company agrees, until a Governance
Rights Termination Event:



(a) to appoint the Investor Designee as a Director on the Closing Date;

(b)  toinclude the Investor Designee in its slate of nominees for election as a
Director at each annual or special meeting of stockholders of the Company at which Directors
are to be elected and at which the seat held by the Investor Designee is subject to election (such
annual or special meetings, the “Election Meetings”);

(c)  touse commercially reasonable efforts to cause the election of the Investor
Designee to the Board of Directors at each of the Election Meetings (including recommending
that the Company’s stockholders vote in favor of the election of the Investor Designee and
otherwise supporting the Investor Designee for election in a manner no less rigorous and
favorable than the manner in which the Company supports its other nominees);

(d) if the Investor Designee is not elected to the Board of Directors at any
Annual Meeting, or becomes unable to serve for any reason or is removed during the course of
his term as Director, the Company will promptly appoint the Replacement of such Investor
Designee to the Board of Directors to serve until the following Election Meeting;

(e) if the Investor Designee (i) is unable to serve as a nominee for election as
Director or to serve as a Director, for any reason, or (ii) is removed or fails to be elected at an
Election Meeting, Apax Europe VI-A, L.P. shall have the right to submit the name of a
replacement (the “Replacement”) to the Company for its approval (such determination to be
made in the sole discretion of the Company acting in good faith and consistent with the
Company’s nominating and governance practices in effect from time to time) and who shall
serve as the nominee for election as Director or serve as Director in accordance with the terms of
this Section 2.1(e). If the proposed Replacement is not approved by the Company, Apax Europe
VI-A, L.P. shall have the right to submit another proposed Replacement to the Company for its
approval on the same basis as set forth in the immediately preceding sentence. Apax Europe VI-
A, L. P. shall have the right to continue submitting the name of a proposed Replacement to the
Company for its approval until the Company approves that such Replacement may serve as a
nominee for election as Director or to serve as a Director whereupon such person is appointed as
the Replacement. An Investor Designee shall, at the time of nomination and at all times
thereafter until such individual’s service on the Board of Directors ceases, (i) meet any
applicable requirements or qualifications under applicable Law, stock exchange rules or
applicable corporate governance policies or guidelines (consistently applied) to be a member of
the Board of Directors and (ii) prior to being nominated, agree to comply with the requirements
of Section 2.4 hereof. The Company acknowledges that, as of the date of this Agreement, to the
company’s knowledge, each of Michael Phillips and Christian Stahl meet the standards set forth
above.

SECTION 2.2.  Expenses and Fees; Indemnification. The Company agrees to
reimburse the Investor Designee elected to the Board for his reasonable expenses, consistent with
the Company’s policy for such reimbursement in effect from time to time, incurred attending
meetings of the Board and/or any committee of the Board. No Investor Designee shall be
entitled to any retainer, equity compensation or other fees or compensation paid to the non-
employee Directors of the Company for their services as a Director, including any service on any
committee of the Board. The Company shall indemnify, or provide for the indemnification of,



the Investor Designee and provide the Investor Designee with director and officer insurance to
the same extent it indemnifies and provides insurance for the non-executive members of the
Board of Directors.

SECTION 2.3. Committees. Until a Governance Rights Termination Event, the
Investor Designee shall be appointed to the Nominating Committee of the Board of Directors or
any other committee performing similar functions of the foregoing committee (provided that
such Investor Designee meets the requirements under applicable Law and stock exchange rules
for service on such committee).

SECTION 2.4. Resignation. Upon the occurrence of a Governance Rights
Termination Event, the Investors shall cause the Investor Designee to promptly tender his
resignation from the Board and any committee of the Board on which he then sits.

ARTICLE III
STOCKHOLDER RESTRICTIONS

SECTION 3.1.  Standstill. During the Standstill Period and unless otherwise approved
by the Board of Directors (other than the Investor Designee), Apax will not, and will cause each
of its controlled Affiliates not to, directly or indirectly:

(a) Other than goods and services in the ordinary course, acquire or agree,
offer, seek or propose to acquire (or request permission to do so), ownership (including, but not
limited to, Beneficial Ownership) of any of the assets or businesses of the Company or any
Subsidiary thereof or any securities issued by the Company or any Subsidiary thereof, or rights
or options to acquire such ownership (including from a third party);

(b)  Other than as permitted by clause (a) above, acquire, offer or propose to
acquire or agree to acquire (or request permission to do so), whether by purchase, tender or
exchange offer, by joining a partnership, limited partnership, syndicate or other 13D Group or
otherwise, ownership (including, but not limited to, Beneficial Ownership) of any of the assets or
businesses of the Company or any Subsidiary thereof, or any securities issued by the Company
or any Subsidiary thereof, or any rights or options to acquire such ownership (whether currently,
upon lapse of time, following the satisfaction of any conditions, upon the occurrence of any
event or any combination of the foregoing) other than (i) the delivery of shares of Company
Common Stock pursuant to the Purchase Agreement, (ii) the acquisition of shares of Company
Common Stock or other securities of the Company as a result of any stock splits, stock dividends
or other distributions or recapitalizations or offerings made available by the Company to holders
of Company Common Stock, including rights offerings, (iii) the acquisition of Company
Common stock pursuant to Section 4.2, (iv) any acquisition of shares of Company Common
Stock approved by the Board (other than the Investor Designee) or (v) any acquisition of shares
of Company Common Stock pursuant to a Permitted Transfer (each event listed in clauses (i)
through (v), a “Permitted Acquisition”);

(o) engage in any “solicitation” (within the meaning of the Exchange Act) of
proxies or consents relating to the election of directors with respect to the Company, or become a
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“participant” in any “election contest” (both within the meaning of the Exchange Act) seeking to
elect directors not nominated by the Board of Directors, other than the Investor Designee;

(d) in any manner, agree, attempt, seek or propose to deposit any securities of
the Company or any rights to acquire (whether currently, upon lapse of time, following the
satisfaction of any conditions, upon the occurrence of any event or any combination of the
foregoing) any Voting Securities of the Company in any voting trust or similar arrangement
(other than any such voting trust or similar arrangement among the Investors);

(e) publicly announce any intention, plan or arrangement inconsistent with the
foregoing;

63) form or join in the formation of a 13D Group with respect to any securities
of the Company or any Subsidiary thereof, other than any such “group” consisting exclusively of
Apax, the other Investors and any Affiliates of the Investors;

(g) finance (or arrange financing for) any Person in connection with any of the
foregoing; or

(h)  seek or request permission to do any of the foregoing, request to amend or
waive any provision of this Section 3.1 (including, without limitation, this clause (h)), or make or
seek permission to make any public announcement with respect to any of the foregoing.

SECTION 3.2.  Permitted Actions.

(a) The restrictions set forth in Sections 3.1(a)-(h) shall not apply if any of the
following occurs (provided that if any event described in this Section 3.2 occurs and, during the
following 12 months, none of the transactions described below has been consummated, then the
restrictions set forth in Sections 3.1 shall thereafter resume and continue to apply in accordance
with their terms):

()] in the event that the Company enters into a definitive agreement for
a merger, consolidation or other business combination transaction as a result of which the
stockholders of the Company would own (including, but not limited to, Beneficial
Ownership) securities of the resulting corporation having less than Majority Voting
Power;

(i)  in the event that a tender offer or exchange offer for at least 50.1%
of the Capital Stock of the Company is commenced by a third person (and not involving
any breach of Section 3.1) which tender offer or exchange offer, if consummated, would
result in a Change of Control, and the Board of Directors recommends that the
stockholders of the Company tender their shares in response to such offer or does not
recommend against the tender offer or exchange offer within ten (10) Business Days after
the commencement thereof or such longer period as shall then be permitted under U.S.
federal securities laws; or
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(iii)  in the event that the Company makes any public announcement
indicating that it is actively seeking to sell itself and, in such event, such announcement is
made with the approval of its Board of Directors.

(b)  Nothing in Section 3.1and this Section 3.2 shall (x) prohibit any individual
who is serving as a Director, solely in his or her capacity as a Director, from (A) exercising his or
her fiduciary duties, (B) taking any action or making any statement at any meeting of the Board
of Directors or of any committee thereof or (C) making any statement or disclosure required
under federal securities Laws or other applicable Law or (y) restrict any disclosure or statements
required to be made by any Investor under applicable Law.

(c)  Affiliates of Apax not engaged in the private equity business (“Non-
Investor Affiliates”) shall not be considered “Affiliates” for purposes of Sections 3.1 so long as
(i) any of the actions taken by them as to which Section 3.1 might otherwise apply are not taken
at the direction of any officer, partner or general partner of Apax or any of its Affiliates (other
than Non-Investor Affiliates) or any officer or general partner of Apax and (ii) if confidential
information regarding the Company is not made available to such Non-Investor Affiliates by
Apax directly or indirectly.

(d) Sections 3.1 and 3.3 shall not apply to any transaction pursuant to the
Ancillary Agreements or the Purchase Agreement.

SECTION 3.3. Dispositions. Each of the Investors agrees that during the Relevant
Restriction Period, without the prior written consent of the Company, such Investor shall not, and
shall not authorize, permit or direct its Subsidiaries or Affiliates to, directly or indirectly, (y)
offer, pledge, announce the intention to sell, sell, contract to sell, sell any option or contract to
purchase, purchase any option or contract to sell, grant any option, right or warrant to purchase
or otherwise transfer or dispose of its Closing Date Shares or (z) enter into any swap or other
agreement that transfers, in whole or in part, any of the economic consequences of its ownership
of any Closing Date Shares, whether any such transaction described in clauses (y) or (z) above is
to be settled by delivery of any shares of Company Common Stock, in cash or otherwise.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the following trans fers of Common Equivalent Securities shall
be permitted at any time (each a “Permitted Transfer”):

()] by any Investor or stockholder of LuxCo to Apax or LuxCo;

(ii)) by the Foundation to any holder of depositary receipts in the
Foundation based on the pro rata ownership of such stockholder in the Foundation (or in
accordance with the elections made by such stockholders pursuant to the Management
Term Sheets) or by LuxCo to any of its stockholders, provided, that for any such
stockholder who is not a Party, as a condition to transfer to any such stockholder, such
stockholder agrees to become subject to the restrictions in this Section 3.3;

(iii) by any Investor, pro rata to its direct or indirect partners, investors
or participants pursuant to the terms of such limited partnership agreement, operating
agreement or similar agreement; provided, that as a condition to transfer to any such
transferee, such transferee agrees to become subject to the restrictions in this Section 3.3;

-12-



(iv) by any Investor to any of its Affiliates provided that such Affiliate
agrees with the Company to be bound by the terms of this Agreement;

) by any Investor who is a natural person, (A) to any family
member, trust or other vehicle for bona fide estate planning purposes or (B) upon such
natural person’s death, to the persons who would receive such interests under the natural
person’s will or other testamentary instrument or pursuant to the laws of descent, subject,
in each case to such Person or entity agreeing to be bound by the terms of this
Agreement;

(vi) by any Investor to a third party pursuant to a tender offer, exchange
offer, merger, consolidation or other transaction (A) which is recommended to the
stockholders of the Company by the Board; or (B) in the case of a merger or other
business combination transaction, which has been approved by the stockholders of the
Company; or

(vii) any transaction pursuant to the Purchase Agreement or any escrow
agreement relating thereto.

The restrictions set forth in this Section 3.3 shall terminate upon a Change of Control.
ARTICLE IV
CERTAIN INVESTOR RIGHTS
SECTION 4.1.  Information Rights.

(a) The Apax VCOC Partnerships shall have the right to receive upon request
(i) annually consolidated statements of income and cash flows of the Company and its
Subsidiaries for each such fiscal year, and consolidated balance sheets of the Company and its
Subsidiaries as of the end of each such fiscal year, all prepared in accordance with applicable
generally accepted accounting principles; (ii) quarterly consolidated statements of income and
cash flows of the Company and its Subsidiaries for each calendar quarter, and consolidated
balance sheets of the Company and its Subsidiaries as of the end of each such calendar quarter,
all prepared in accordance with applicable generally accepted accounting principles; (iii) to the
extent the Company is required by law or pursuant to the terms of any outstanding indebtedness
of the Company to prepare such reports, any annual reports, quarterly reports and other periodic
reports pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act actually prepared by the Company
as soon as available; and (iv) any such financial or other information of the Company and its
Subsidiaries as the Apax VCOC Partnerships may reasonably request.

(b)  Any authorized representative of each Apax VCOC Partnership shall be
entitled, upon reasonable notice and during normal business hours, and at such other times as
such Apax VCOC Partnership may reasonably request, to (i) visit and inspect any of the
properties of the Company, (ii) examine any, books and records and make copies thereof or
extracts therefrom of the Company, and (iii) consult with and advise the management of the
Company and its subsidiaries on all matters relating to the operation of the Company and its
subsidiaries.
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(c)  Any information obtained by the Apax VCOC Partnerships or its
representatives pursuant to the exercise of their rights described in this Section 4.1 which is not
generally available to the public shall be kept strictly confidential by the Apax VCOC
Partnerships and their representatives.

(d)  The rights described in this Section 4.1 shall be deemed to be separate
contractual rights held independently by each of the Apax VCOC Partnerships.

(e) Notwithstanding the above, (i) the Company shall not be obligated
pursuant to this Section 4.1 to supply to the Apax VCOC Partnerships any books, records or
other materials, or to otherwise disclose any information, which could compromise any legal
privilege to which such information is subject, and (ii) this Section 4.1 shall not apply to any of
the Apax VCOC Partnerships during the period in which it has a contractual right to appoint a
member of the Board hereunder or otherwise.

SECTION 4.2. Pre-emptive Rights .

(a) In the event that the Company proposes to issue any Additional Securities
in a Covered Transaction, the Company will offer in writing (the “ Pre-emptive Notice ) to each
Qualified Investor, at least 10 Business Days prior to the consummation of such transaction (“
Pre-emptive Notice Time ), the right to purchase its Pro Rata share of such Additional
Securities on the same terms as such Additional Securities are to be issued (each such right a “
Pre-emptive Right ).

(b)  The provisions of Section 4.2 shall terminate upon a Change of Control.

(o) The Pre-emptive Notice shall specify (i) the number of Additional
Securities to be issued or sold, (ii) the Company’s good faith estimate of the total amount of
capital to be raised by the Company pursuant to the issuance or Sale of Additional Securities, (ii)
the price and other material terms of the proposed issuance or sale, (iii) the number of such
Additional Securities which such Qualified Investor is entitled to purchase (determined as
provided in Section 4.2(a)), and (iv) the period during which such Qualified Investor may elect
to purchase such Additional Securities, which period shall extend for at least 10 days following
the receipt by such Investor of the Pre-emptive Notice (the “ Pre-emptive Acceptance Period ).
Each Qualified Investor who desires to purchase Additional Securities shall notify the Company
within the Preemptive Acceptance Period of the number of Additional Securities such Qualified
Investor wishes to purchase , which number shall not exceed its then-applicable Pro Rata share
(the “ Pre-emptive Acceptance Notice ”) .. A Preemptive Acceptance Notice shall be binding and
irrevocable, except as set forth in Section 4.2(e). The purchase price for the Additional
Securities shall be paid in cash contemporaneously with the closing of the transaction which
gave rise to the Pre-emptive Notice and t he terms of such purchase shall otherwise be on terms
and conditions not less favorable to the Company than those set forth in the Pre-emptive Notice ..

(d)  The rights contained in this Section 4.2 are personal to the Qualified
Investors who have such rights as of the Closing and may not be transferred or assigned or
delegated to another Person.
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(e) In the event of urgent need as determined by the Board of Directors in
good faith, the Company may agree to and consummate a Covered Transaction without
complying with this Section 4.2, so long as promptly thereafter it provides the Pre-Emptive
Notice as required herein and permits Qualified Investors to purchase up to its Pro Rata share of
Additional Shares it would have been entitled to purchase pursuant to this Section (after taking
into account the consummation of the Covered Transaction).

® In the event the subject transaction of a Pre-Emptive Notice is terminated,
no purchase of securities shall occur pursuant to this Section 4.2, and the applicable notices shall
be cancelled.

(g)  “Qualified Investor” shall mean, without duplication, determined as of the
date of the event giving rise to the Pre-emptive Notice, any Investor, including for such purposes
Apax and LuxCo collectively, (i) who own(s) at least 4% of the Company Common Stock and
(ii) whose Beneficial Ownership of shares of Company Common Stock has not been reduced to
less than 50% of the Closing Date Shares Beneficially Owned by such Investor(s) as of the
Closing Date.

ARTICLE V
REGISTRATION RIGHTS

SECTION 5.1.  Shelf Registration.

(@ No later than 90 days prior to the expiration of the Disposition Restriction
Period (the “Shelf Date”), the Company shall prepare and file with the SEC a Registration
Statement providing for registration and resale, on a continuous or delayed basis pursuant to
Rule 415 under the Securities Act, as such rule may be amended from time to time, or any
similar rule or regulation hereafter adopted by the SEC, of all of the Registrable Securities,
provided that such obligation shall be satisfied if the Company shall have in effect an
automatically effective shelf registration statement on Form S-3ASR (an “Existing Shelf
Registration Statement”) as of the Shelf Date (any such registration statement, a “Shelf
Registration Statement”); provided, further, that, for the avoidance of doubt, the existence of an
Existing Shelf Registration Statement shall not have any effect on the restrictions set forth in
Section 3.3. The Shelf Registration Statement shall be on Form S-3 (or any comparable or
successor form or forms then in effect) under the Securities Act (or to the extent the Company is
not eligible to use Form S-3 or any comparable or successor form or forms, on Form S-1 or any
comparable or successor form or forms); provided, however, that if the Company is a well-
known seasoned issuer (as defined in Rule 405 under the Securities Act) at the time of filing of
the Shelf Registration Statement with the SEC, such Shelf Registration Statement shall be
designated by the Company as an automatic shelf registration statement (as defined in Rule 405
under the Securities Act). In the event that the Shelf Registration Statement is not an automatic
shelf registration statement, the Company shall use its commercially reasonable efforts to cause
the Shelf Registration Statement to be declared effective under the Securities Act by the SEC as
of the expir ation of the Disposition Restriction Period. The Company shall use its commercially
reasonable efforts to keep the Shelf Registration Statement continuously effective under the
Securities Act until the earlier of (i) the date when all of the Registrable Securities covered by
such Shelf Registration Statement have been sold and (ii) the date on which the Registrable
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Securities covered by the Shelf Registration Statement are eligible to be sold or transferred
without being subject to any holding period or volume limitations pursuant to Rule 144 under the
Securities Act.

(b)  Each Investor agrees that if such Investor wishes to sell Registrable
Securities pursuant to a Shelf Registration Statement and related Prospectus, it will do so in
accordance with this Section 5.1(b) and Section 5.5. Each Investor wishing to sell Registrable
Securities pursuant to a Shelf Registration Statement and related Prospectus, whether in an
underwritten offering or otherwise, agrees to notify the Company of such intent (a “Shelf Take-
Down Notice”) and shall deliver a Notice and Questionnaire to the Company at least ten (10)
Business Days prior to any intended distribution of Registrable Securities under the Shelf
Registration Statement, it being agreed that if any Investor intends to distribute any Registrable
Securities by means of an underwritten offering it shall promptly so advise the Company and the
Company shall reasonably cooperate with such Investor to facilitate such distribution, inc luding
but not limited to the actions required pursuant to Section 5.5(a)(viii) and, if a Company
Supported Distribution is requested, Section 5.5(a)(xiv). From and after the date the Shelf
Registration Statement is declared effective, the Company shall, as promptly as practicable after
the date a Notice and Questionnaire is delivered to it in connection with a Shelf Take-Down
Notice:

@) if required by applicable Law, file with the SEC a post-effective
amendment to the Shelf Registration Statement or prepare and, if required by applicable
Law, file a supplement to the related Prospectus or a supplement or amendment to any
document incorporated therein by reference or file any other required document so that
the Investor delivering such Notice and Questionnaire is named as a selling security
holder in the Shelf Registration Statement and the related Prospectus in such a manner as
to permit such Investor to deliver such Prospectus to purchasers of Registrable Securities
in accordance with applicable Law and, if the Company shall file a post-effective
amendment to the Shelf Registration Statement, use commercially reasonable efforts to
cause such post-effective amendment to be declared effective under the Securities Act as
promptly as practicable;

(ii))  provide such Investor copies of any documents filed pursuant to
Section 5.1(b)(i); and

(iii)  notify such Investor as promptly as practicable after the
effectiveness under the Securities Act of any post-effective amendment filed pursuant to
Section 5.1(b)(i);

provided, however, that if such Shelf Take-Down Notice or Notice and Questionnaire is
delivered during a Suspension Period, the Company shall so inform the Investor delivering such
Shelf Take-Down Notice or Notice and Questionnaire and shall take the actions set forth in
clauses (i), (ii) and (iii) above upon expiration of the Suspension Period in accordance with
Section 5.5; provided, further, that the Investors shall not be entitled to deliver to the Company
more than one (1) Shelf Take-Down Notices in any 12 month period and each Shelf Take-Down
Notice may only be made if the sale of the Registrable Securities covered thereby is reasonably
expected to result in aggregate gross cash proceeds in excess of $100,000,000 (without regard to

-16-



any underwriting discount or commission) and, provided, further that the Investors shall not be
entitled to request more than two (2) Company Supported Distributions in the aggregate.
Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, the Company shall be under no
obligation to name any Investor that has not delivered a Notice and Questionnaire to the
Company as a selling security holder in any Shelf Registration Statement or related Prospectus.

(c)  If any of the Registrable Securities to be sold pursuant to a Shelf
Registration Statement are to be sold in a firm commitment underwritten offering which
underwritten offering was initially requested by the Investors pursuant to a Shelf Take-Down
Notice, and the managing underwriter(s) of such underwritten offering advise the Investors in
writing that it is their good faith opinion that the total number or dollar amount of Registrable
Securities proposed to be sold in such offering, together with any Other Securities proposed to be
included by holders thereof which are entitled to include securities in such Registration
Statement, exceeds the total number or dollar amount of such securities that can be sold without
having an adverse effect on the price, timing or distribution of the Registrable Securities to be so
included, together with all such Other Securities, then there shall be included in such firm
commitment underwritten offering the number or dollar amount of Registrable Securities and
such Other Securities that in the opinion of such managing underwriter(s) can be sold without so
adversely affecting such offering, and such number of Registrable Securities and Other Securities
shall be allocated for inclusion as follows:

(i) first, the Registrable Securities for which inclusion in such
underwritten offering was requested by the Investors, pro rata (if applicable), based
on the number of Registrable Securities Beneficially Owned by each such Investor;
and

(ii) second, among any holders of Other Securities, pro rata, based on
the number of Other Securities Beneficially Owned by each such holder of Other
Securities;

provided that, in the event that, due to a cutback in accordance with this clause (c), Investors are
unable to sell at least 90% of the Registrable Securities initially proposed to be sold in a
Company Supported Distribution, such offering shall not constitute a Company Supported
Distribution and count against the limit thereof.

(d)  The Investors’ Representative shall have the right to notify the Company
that it has determined that the Shelf Take-Down Notice be abandoned or withdrawn, in which
event the Company shall promptly abandon or withdraw all activities undertaken in connection
with such offering, and such withdrawn registration shall not count against the limit of Shelf
Take-Down Notices or Company Supported Distributions, as applicable; provided, however, that
the Company shall not be required to pay for expenses of any registration proceeding begun
pursuant to Section 5.1(a) hereof, which has been subsequently withdrawn pursuant to this
Section 5.1(d) at the request of the Investors’ Representative, and shall be reimbursed by the
Investors whose Registrable Securities were intended to be included in the registration pursuant
to the Shelf Take-Down Notice for reasonable and documented out-of-pocket expenses
(including legal f ees and printing expenses) so incurred, unless the withdrawal is based upon
material adverse information concerning the Company that the Company has not publicly
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disclosed in compliance with applicable securities Laws at least two (2) Business Days prior to
the Company’s receipt of such withdrawal request.

SECTION 5.2. Demand Registration.

(@) At any time following the expiration of the Disposition Restriction Period,
if the Company is unable to file, cause to be effective or maintain the effectiveness of a Shelf
Registration Statement as required under Section 5.1 hereof, the Investors’ Representative shall
have the right, by delivering a written notice to the Company (a “Demand Notice”), to require
the Company to register under and in accordance with the provisions of the Securities Act the
number of Registrable Securities Beneficially Owned by any Investors and requested by such
Demand Notice to be so registered (a “Demand Registration”); provided, however, that the
Company shall not be required to effect more than two (2) Demand Registrations for
underwritten offerings pursuant to this Section 5.2(a); and, provided, further, that the Investors
shall not be entitled to deliver to the Company more than one (1) Dema nd Registration in any
twelve (12) month period and, in any event, a Demand Notice may only be made if the sale of
the Registrable Securities requested to be registered by the Investors’ Representative is
reasonably expected to result in aggregate gross cash proceeds in excess of $100,000,000

(without regard to any underwriting discount or commission); and provided, further that the
Investors shall not be entitled to request more than two (2) Company Supported Distributions in
the aggregate (including underwritten Demand Registrations). A Demand Notice shall also
specify the expected method or methods of disposition of the applicable Registrable Securities.
Following receipt of a Demand Notice, the Company shall use commercially reasonable efforts
to file, as promptly as reasonably practicable, but not later than 30 days after receipt by the
Company of such Demand Notice, a Registration Statement relating to the offer and sale of the
Registrable Securities requested to be included therein by the Investors thereof in accordance
with the methods of distribution elected by such Investors (a “Demand Registration Statement”)
and shall use commercially reasonable efforts to cause such Registration Statement to be
declared effective under the Securities Act as promptly as practicable after the filing thereof, it
being agreed that if any Investor intends to distribute any Registrable Securities by means of an
underwritten offering it shall promptly so advise the Company and the Company shall cooperate
with such Investor to facilitate such distribution, including but not limited to the actions required
pursuant to Section 5.5(a)(viii) and, if a Company Supported Distribution is requested, Section
5.5(a)(xiv).

(b)  If any of the Registrable Securities registered pursuant to a Demand
Registration are to be sold in a firm commitment underwritten offering, and the managing
underwriter(s) of such underwritten offering advise the Investors in writing that it is their good
faith opinion that the total number or dollar amount of Registrable Securities proposed to be sold
in such offering, together with any Other Securities proposed to be included by holders thereof
which are entitled to include securities in such Registration Statement, exceeds the total number
or dollar amount of such securities that can be sold without having an adverse effect on the price,
timing or distribution of the Registrable Securities to be so included together with all such Other
Securities, then there shall be included in such firm commitment underwritten offering the
number or dollar amount of Registrable Securities and such Other Securities that in the opinion
of suc h managing underwriter(s) can be sold without so adversely affecting such offering, and
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such number of Registrable Securities and Other Securities shall be allocated for inclusion as
follows:

()] first, the Registrable Securities for which inclusion in such
underwritten offering was requested by the Investors, pro rata (if applicable), based on
the number of Registrable Securities Beneficially Owned by each such Investor; and

(i)  second, among any holders of Other Securities, pro rata, based on
the number of Other Securities Beneficially Owned by each such holder of Other
Securities;

provided that, in the event that, due to a cutback in accordance with this clause (c), Investors are
unable to sell at least 90% of the Registrable Securities initially proposed to be sold in a
Company Supported Distribution, such offering shall not constitute a Company Supported
Distribution and count against the limit thereof.

(0) In the event of a Demand Registration, the Company shall be required to
maintain the continuous effectiveness of the applicable Registration Statement for a period of at
least 180 days after the effective date thereof or such shorter period in which all Registrable
Securities included in such Registration Statement have actually been sold.

(d)  The Investors’ Representative shall have the right to notify the Company
that it has determined that the Registration Statement relating to a Demand Registration be
abandoned or withdrawn, in which event the Company shall promptly abandon or withdraw such
Registration Statement and such withdrawn registration shall not count against the limit of
Demand Registrations or Company Supported Distributions, as applicable; provided, however,
that the Company shall not be required to pay for expenses of any registration proceeding begun
pursuant to Section 5.2(a) hereof, which has been subsequently withdrawn pursuant to this
Section 5.2(d) at the request of the Investors’ Representative, and shall be reimbursed by the
Investors whose Registrable Securities were intended to be included in the Demand Registration
Statement for reasonable and documented out-of-pocket expenses (including legal fees and
printing expens es) so incurred, unless the withdrawal is based upon material adverse
information concerning the Company that the Company has not publicly disclosed at least five
(5) Business Days prior to the Company’s receipt of such withdrawal request.

(e) Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, with the prior
written consent of the Investors’ Representative (which consent shall not be unreasonably
withheld, conditioned or delayed), the Company shall be entitled to coordinate any offerings
under this Section 5.2 with any offerings to be effected pursuant to similar agreements with the
holders of Other Securities, including, if practicable, by filing one Registration Statement for all
Other Securities.

SECTION 5.3.  Piggyback Registration.

(@) At any time following the expiration of the Disposition Restriction Period,
if the Company proposes to file a registration statement under the Securities Act with respect to
an offering (i) by the Company for its own account (other than a registration statement (A) on
Form S-4, Form S-8 or any successor forms thereto, (B) filed solely in connection with any
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employee benefit or dividend reinvestment plan or (C) for the purpose of effecting a rights
offering afforded to all holders of the Company Common Stock) or (ii) for the account of any of
its security holders, the Company will give to each Investor written notice of such filing at least
fifteen (15) days prior to the anticipated filing date (the “Piggyback Notice”). The Piggyback
Notice shall offer each Investor the opportunity to include in such registration statement the
number of Registrable Securities (for purposes of this Section 5.3, “Registrable Securities” shall
be deemed to mean solely securities of the same type as those proposed to be offered by the
Company for its own account) as they may request (a “Piggyback Registration”). Subject to
Section 5.3(b), the Company shall include in each such Piggyback Registration all Registrable
Securities with respect to which the Company has rec eived written requests for inclusion therein
within seven (7) days after notice has been given to the Investors. The Company shall be
required to maintain the effectiveness of the Registration Statement for a Piggyback Registration
for a period of 180 days after the effective date thereof or such shorter period in which all
Registrable Securities included in such Registration Statement have actually been sold.

(b)  If any of the securities to be registered pursuant to the registration giving
rise to the Investors’ rights under this Section 5.3 are to be sold in an underwritten offering, the
Investors shall be permitted to include all Registrable Securities requested to be included in such
registration in such offering on the same terms and conditions as any other shares of Capital
Stock, if any, of the Company included therein; provided, however, that if such offering involves
a firm commitment underwritten offering and the managing underwriter(s) of such underwritten
offering advise the Investors in writing that it is their good faith opinion that the total number or
dollar amount of Registrable Securities proposed to be sold in such offering, together with all
Other Securities that the Company and any other Persons having rights to participate in such
registration intend to include in such offering, exceeds the total nu mber or dollar amount of such
securities that can be sold without having an adverse effect on the price, timing or distribution of
the Registrable Securities to be so included together with all such Other Securities, then there
shall be included in such firm commitment underwritten offering the number or dollar amount of
Registrable Securities and such Other Securities that in the opinion of such managing
underwriter(s) can be sold without so adversely affecting such offering, and such number of
Registrable Securities and Other Securities shall be allocated for inclusion as follows:

(i) first, all Other Securities being sold by the Company or by any
Person (other than an Investor) exercising a contractual right to demand registration
pursuant to which such registration statement was filed; and

(ii) second, among any other holders of Registrable Securities or Other
Securities requesting such registration, pro rata, based on the aggregate number of
Registrable Securities and Other Securities Beneficially Owned by each such holder.

(o) The Company shall have the right to terminate or withdraw any
registration initiated by it under this Section 5.3 prior to the effectiveness of the related
Registration Statement and shall have no obligation to register any Registrable Securities in
connection with such registration, except to the extent provided herein. The Registration
Expenses of such withdrawn Piggyback Registration shall be borne by the Company in
accordance with Section 5.4 hereof.
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Any Investor shall have the right to withdraw its request for inclusion of its Registrable
Securities in any Piggyback Registration by giving written notice to the Company of its request
to withdraw at least two (2) Business Days prior to the planned effective date of the related
Registration Statement; provided, however, that the Company shall not be required to pay for
expenses of any Piggyback Registration, which has been subsequently withdrawn pursuant to
this Section 5.3(d) at the request of the applicable Investor, and shall be reimbursed by the
Investors whose Registrable Securities were intended to be included in the Piggyback
Registration for reasonable and documented out-of-pocket expenses (including legal fees and
printing expenses) so incurred, unless the withdrawal is based upon material adverse
information concerning the Company that the Company has not publicly disclosed in compliance
with applicable securities Laws at least five (5) Business Days prior to the Company’s receipt of
such withdrawal request.

SECTION 5.4. Registration Expenses. Except to the extent otherwise provided herein,
in connection with registrations pursuant to Sections 5.1, 5.2 and 5.3 hereof, the Company shall
pay all of the registration expenses incurred in connection with the registration thereunder (the
“Registration Expenses™), including, without limitation, all: (a) reasonable registration and filing
fees, (b) reasonable fees and expenses of compliance with securities or blue sky laws (including
reasonable fees and disbursements of counsel in connection with blue sky qualifications of the
Registrable Securities), (c) reasonable processing, duplicating and printing expenses, (d) internal
expenses of the Company (including, without limitation, all salaries and expenses of its officers
and employees performing legal or accounting duties), (e) fees and expenses incurred in
connection with the listing of the Registrable Securities, (f) fees and disbursements of counsel
for the Company and fees and expenses for independent certified public accountants retained by
the Company (including the expenses of any comfort letters or costs associated with the delivery
by independent certified public accountants of a comfort letter or comfort letters requested but
not the cost of any audit other than a year end audit) and (g) fees and expenses of any special
experts retained by the Company in connection with such registration . Notwithstanding the
foregoing, each Selling Investor shall be responsible for (i) any allocable underwriting fees,
discounts or commissions, (ii) any allocable commissions of brokers and dealers and (iii) capital
gains, income and transfer taxes, if any, relating to the sale of Registrable Securities of such
Selling Investor.

SECTION 5.5. Registration Procedures.

(@)  In connection with the registration of any Registrable Securities pursuant
to this Agreement, the Company will keep the Selling Investors advised in writing as to the
initiation of each such registration and the Company will:

()] Use commercially reasonable efforts to keep each Registration
Statement continuously effective during the period such Registration Statement is
required to remain effective pursuant to the terms of this Agreement; upon the occurrence
of any event that would cause the Registration Statement or the Prospectus contained
therein (A) to contain a material misstatement or omission or (B) not to be effective and
usable for resale of Registrable Securities during the period such Registration Statement
is required to remain effective pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, the Company
shall file promptly an appropriate amendment to the Registration Statement, a supplement
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to the Prospectus or a report filed with the SEC pursuant to Section 13(a), 13(c), 14 or
15(d) of the Exchange Act, in the case of clause (A), correcting any such misstatement or
omission, and, in the case of either clause (A) or (B), the Company shall use
commercially reasonable efforts to cause such amendment to be declared effective and
the Registration Statement and the related Prospectus to become usable for their intended
purposes as soon as practicable thereafter.

(i)  Notwithstanding Section 5.5(a)(i) hereof, the Company may
suspend the effectiveness of a Registration Statement and the Investors’ right to sell
thereunder (each such period, a “Suspension Period”) if the Company reasonably
determines in good faith and delivers to any Investor a certificate signed by an officer of
the Company stating that such Registration Statement or further sales under an effective
Registration Statement would have a detrimental effect, as reasonably determined by the
Company in good faith, on the Company or a plan currently being considered by the
Company or the Board of Directors. Promptly upon occurrence of such suspension, the
Company shall give notice to the Investors listed in such Registration Statement that the
availability of the Registration Statement is suspended and, upon actual receipt of such
notice, each Investor agrees not to sell any Registrable S ecurities pursuant to the
Registration Statement until the earlier of (1) such Investor’s receipt of copies of the
supplemented or amended Prospectus provided for in this Section 5.5 or (2) such Investor
has been advised in writing by the Company that the sale of Registrable Securities
pursuant to the Registration Statement may resume A Suspension Period shall not exceed
90 consecutive days and the aggregate of all Suspension Periods shall not exceed
180 days in any 360-day period.

(iii)  Prepare and file with the SEC such amendments and post-effective
amendments to each Registration Statement as may be necessary to keep such
Registration Statement effective during the period provided herein.

(iv)  Advise any Investor that has provided in writing to the Company a
telephone or facsimile number and address for notice, promptly (which notice pursuant to
clauses (B) through (D) below shall be accompanied by an instruction to suspend the use
of the Prospectus until the Company shall have remedied the basis for such suspension
and promptly thereafter notified such Investors of such remediation):

(A)  when the Prospectus or any Prospectus supplement or post-effective
amendment is proposed to be or has been filed, and, with respect to the
Registration Statement or any post-effective amendment thereto, when the
same has become effective;

(B) of any request by the SEC or any other Governmental Entity for
amendments to the Registration Statement or amendments or supplements
to the Prospectus or for additional information relating thereto;

(C)  of the issuance by the SEC of any stop order suspending the effectiveness

of the Registration Statement under the Securities Act or of the suspension
by any state securities commission of the qualification of
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the Registrable Securities for offering or sale in any jurisdiction, or the
threatening or initiation of any proceeding for any of the preceding
purposes;

(D)  of the receipt by the Company of any notification with respect to the
suspension of the qualification or exemption from qualification of any of
the Registrable Securities for sale in any jurisdiction, or the initiation or
threatening of any proceeding for such purpose; or

(E)  of the existence of any fact or the happening of any event, during the
period in which a Registration Statement remains effective under the
Securities Act, that makes any statement of a material fact made in such
Registration Statement, the Prospectus, any amendment or supplement
thereto, or any document incorporated by reference therein untrue, or that
requires the making of any additions to or changes in the Registration
Statement or the Prospectus in order to make the statements therein not
misleading.

(v)  Unless any Registrable Securities shall be in book-entry form only,
cooperate with the Investors to facilitate the timely preparation and delivery of
certificates representing Registrable Securities to be sold and not bearing any restrictive
legends (unless required by applicable securities Laws), and enable such Registrable
Securities to be in such denominations and registered in such names as the Investors may
request at least two (2) Business Days before any sale of Registrable Securities.

(vi)  Use commercially reasonable efforts to promptly register or qualify
any Registrable Securities under such other securities or blue sky laws of such
jurisdictions within the United States as any Investor reasonably requests and which may
be reasonably necessary or advisable to enable such Investor to consummate the
disposition in such jurisdictions of the Registrable Securities owned by such Investor,
keep such registrations or qualifications in effect for so long as the Registration Statement
remains in effect and do any and all other acts and things which may be reasonably
necessary or advisable to enable such Investor to consummate the disposition in such
jurisdictions of the Registrable Securities owned by such Investor; provided, however,
that the Company will not be required to (A) qualify generally to do business in any
jurisdiction where it would not otherwise be required to qua lify but for this Agreement,
(B) subject itself to taxation in any jurisdiction where it would not otherwise be subject to
taxation but for this Agreement or (C) consent to general service of process in any
jurisdiction where it would not otherwise be subject to such service but for this
Agreement.

(vii) Use commercially reasonable efforts to promptly cause any
Registrable Securities covered by a Registration Statement to be registered with or
approved by such other Governmental Entity within the United States as may be
necessary to enable the seller or sellers thereof to consummate the disposition of such
Registrable Securities in accordance with the intended methods of disposition set forth in
such Registration Statement.
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(viii) In the event that the Investors’ Representative advises the
Company that an Investor intends to distribute any Registrable Securities by means of an
underwritten offering, whether pursuant to Sections 5.1, 5.2 or 5.3, enter into an
underwriting agreement in customary form, scope and substance (including customary
indemnifications) and take all such other actions reasonably requested by the Investors
owning a majority of the Registrable Securities being sold in connection therewith or by
the managing underwriter(s), if any, to expedite or facilitate the underwritten disposition
of such Registrable Securities and deliver such documents and certificates as may be
reasonably requested by the Investors of a majority of the Registrable Securities being
sold in connection therewith, their counsel and the managing underwriter(s), if any.

(ix)  Use its commercially reasonable efforts to prevent, or obtain the
withdrawal of, any stop order or other order suspending the use of any Prospectus.

x) Deliver to each Selling Investor and each underwriter, if any,
without charge, as many copies of the applicable Prospectus and any amendment or
supplement thereto as such Selling Investor or underwriter may reasonably request.

(xi)  Cooperate with each Selling Investor and the underwriters, if any,
of such Registrable Securities and their respective counsel in connection with any filings
required by Law to be made with FINRA.

(xii) Obtain opinions of counsel to the Company and updates thereof
addressed to each Selling Investor and the underwriters or initial purchasers, if any,
covering matters as are customarily requested in opinions covering secondary resale
offerings of companies of comparable size, maturities and lines of business as the
Company.

(xiii) Obtain "comfort" letters and updates thereof from the Company's
independent certified public accountants, such letters covering matters as are customarily
requested in comfort letters covering secondary resale offerings of companies of
comparable size, maturities and lines of business as the Company.

(xiv) Only in the case of a Company Supported Distribution, as
requested by the managing underwriter in any such underwritten offering, provide
reasonable assistance with the marketing of any such offering, including causing
members of the Company’s management team to participate in a reasonable number of
conference calls, limited-duration investor meetings and due diligence sessions, in each
case and, to the extent to be in-person, to take place in and around New York City;
provided, that any such requested assistance shall not be required if it would, in the
Company’s reasonable judgment, interfere with the normal business operations of the
Company in any substantial respect.

(b)  Each Investor agrees by acquisition of a Registrable Security that no

Investor shall be entitled to sell any of such Registrable Securities pursuant to a Registration
Statement, or to receive a Prospectus relating thereto, unless such Investor has furnished the
Company with a Notice and Questionnaire (including the information required to be included in
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such Notice and Questionnaire) and the information set forth in the next sentence. The Company
may require each Investor selling Registrable Securities pursuant to a Registration Statement to
furnish to the Company such customary information regarding such Investor and the distribution
of such Company Common Stock as the Company may from time to time reasonably require for
inclusion in such Registration Statement. Each such Investor agrees promptly to furnish to the
Company all information required to be disclosed in order to make the information previously
furnished to the Company by such Investor not misleading. Any sale of any Registrable
Securities by any Investor shall constitute a representation and warranty by such Investor that the
information relating to such Investor and its plan of distribution is as set forth in the Prospectus
delivered in connection with such disposition, that such Prospectus does not as of the time of suc
h sale contain any untrue statement of a material fact provided by such Investor and that such
Prospectus does not as of the time of such sale omit to state any material fact provided by such
Investor necessary to make the statements in such Prospectus, in light of the circumstances under
which they were made, not misleading. The Company may exclude from such Registration
Statement the Registrable Securities of any Investor that fails to furnish such information within
a reasonable time after receiving such request. The Company shall not include in any
Registration Statement any information regarding, relating to or referring to any Investor or its
plan of distribution without the approval of such Investor in writing.

(o) No Investor shall use any free writing prospectus (as defined in Rule 405
under the Securities Act) in connection with the sale of Registrable Securities without the prior
written consent of the Company (which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned
or delayed).

(d) If any offering of Registrable Securities pursuant to any Shelf Registration
Statement or any Demand Registration is an underwritten offering, the Investors agree that,
unless the Company otherwise consents in writing, at least one of Barclays Capital Inc.,
Deutsche Bank Securities, Inc., Credit Suisse Securities (USA) LLC or Banc of America
Securities LLC shall be either the managing underwriter or co-managing underwriter or the lead
book running manager or co-lead book running manager for the offering.

SECTION 5.6. Indemnification.

(a) The Company shall indemnify and hold harmless, to the fullest extent
permitted by Law, (1) each Selling Investor whose Registrable Securities are covered by a
Registration Statement or Prospectus, (2) the officers, directors, partners (limited and general),
members, managers, representatives, agents and employees of each of them, (3) each member,
limited or general partner of each such member, limited or general partner, (4) each Person who
controls (within the meaning of Section 15 of the Securities Act or Section 20 of the Exchange
Act) each such Selling Investor, (5) each of their respective affiliates, officers, directors,
shareholders, employees advisors, agents, (6) each underwriter (including any Investor that is
deemed to be an underwriter pursuant to any SEC comments or policies), if any, and (7) each
Person who controls (within the meaning of Section 15 of the Securities Act or Section 20 of the
Exchange Act) such under writer (collectively, “Investor Indemnitees”), from and against all
losses, claims, damages, liabilities, penalties, judgments, suits, costs and expenses (including
legal fees) (collectively, “Losses”) in connection with any sale of Registrable Securities pursuant
to a Registration Statement arising out of or based upon (i) any violation or alleged violation of
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the Securities Act or any rule or regulation promulgated thereunder by the Company or any of its
Affiliates, employees, officers, directors or agents or (ii) any untrue or alleged untrue statement
of a material fact contained in any Registration Statement or any Prospectus (including but not
limited to preliminary or final) relating to the registration of such Registrable Securities or any
amendment or supplement thereto or any document incorporated by reference therein or any
omission (iii) or any alleged omission to state therein a material fact required to be stated therein
or necessary to make the statements therein, in light of the circumstances in which they were
made, not misleading;, and will reimburse to each of the Persons listed above, for any legal or
any other expenses reasonably incurred in connection with investigating and defending any such
losses; provided, however, that the Company shall not be liable to such Invest or Indemnitee in
any such case to the extent that any such loss, claim, damage, liability or expense arises out of or
is based upon (A) an untrue statement or alleged untrue statement or omission or alleged
omission made in such Registration Statement, including any such preliminary or final
Prospectus contained therein or any such amendments or supplements thereto, or contained in
any free writing prospectus (as such term is defined in Rule 405 under the Securities Act)
prepared by the Company or authorized by it in writing for use by such Investor Indemnitee (or
any amendment or supplement thereto), in reliance upon and in conformity with information
regarding such Investor Indemnitee or its plan of distribution or ownership interests which was
furnished in writing to the Company for use in connection with such Registration Statement,
including any such preliminary or final Prospectus contained therein or any such amendments or
supplements thereto (B) offers or sales effected by or on behalf of such Invest or Indemnitee “by
means of” (as defined in Rule 159A under the Securities Act) a “free writing prospectus” (as
defined in Rule 405 under the Securities Act) that was not authorized in writing by the Company
or (C) the failure of any Investor Indemnitee to deliver or make available to a purchaser of
Registrable Securities a copy of any Registration Statement, including any preliminary or final
Prospectus contained therein or any amendments or supplements thereto (if the same was
required by applicable Law to be delivered or made available); provided that the Company shall
have delivered to such Investor Indemnitee such Registration Statement, including such
preliminary or final Prospectus contained therein and any amendments or supplements thereto.

(b)  In connection with any Registration Statement in which a Selling Investor
is participating by registering Registrable Securities, such Selling Investor agrees to indemnify
and hold harmless, to the fullest extent permitted by Law, severally and not jointly, the Company,
the officers, directors, agents, representatives or other employees of the Company, each Person
who controls (within the meaning of Section 15 of the Securities Act or Section 20 of the
Exchange Act) the Company, each underwriter, if any, and each Person who controls (within the
meaning of Section 15 of the Securities Act or Section 20 of the Exchange Act) such underwriter
(collectively, “Company Indemnitees™), from and against all Losses, as incurred, arising out of or
based on any untrue or alleged untrue statement of a material fact contained in any such
Registration Statement or preliminary or final Prospectus relating to the registration of s uch
Registrable Securities or any amendment or supplement thereto or any document incorporated by
reference therein, or any omission or alleged omission to state therein a material fact required to
be stated therein or necessary to make the statements therein, in light of the circumstances in
which they were made, not misleading, in each case solely to the extent that such untrue or
alleged untrue statement or omission or alleged omission is made in such Registration Statement
or in any preliminary or final Prospectus contained therein or any such amendments or
supplements thereto or contained in any free writing prospectus (as such term is
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defined in Rule 405 under the Securities Act) in reliance upon and in conformity with written
information furnished to the Company by such Selling Investor expressly for inclusion in such
document.

(o) If any Person shall be entitled to indemnity hereunder (an “Indemnified
Party”), such Indemnified Party shall give prompt notice to the party from which such indemnity
is sought (the “Indemnifying Party”) of any claim or of the commencement of any Action with
respect to which such Indemnified Party has actual notice and seeks indemnification or
contribution pursuant hereto; provided, however, that the delay or failure to so notify the
Indemnifying Party shall not relieve the Indemnifying Party from any obligation or liability
except to the extent that the Indemnifying Party has been actually prejudiced by such delay or
failure. The Indemnifying Party shall have the right, exercisable by giving written notice to an
Indemnified Party promptly after the receipt of written notice from such Indemnified Party of
such claim or Action, to assume, at the Indemnifying Party’s expen se, the defense of any such
Action, with counsel reasonably satisfactory to such Indemnified Party; provided, however, that
an Indemnified Party shall have the right to employ separate counsel in any such Action and to
participate in the defense thereof, but the fees and expenses of such counsel shall be at the
expense of such Indemnified Party unless: (i) the Indemnifying Party agrees to pay such fees and
expenses; (ii) the Indemnifying Party fails promptly to assume, or in the event of a conflict of
interest cannot assume, the defense of such Action or fails to employ counsel reasonably
satisfactory to such Indemnified Party, in which case the Indemnified Party shall also have the
right to employ counsel and to assume the defense of such Action or (iii) in the Indemnified
Party’s reasonable judgment a conflict of interest between such Indemnified Party and
Indemnifying Party may exist in respect of such Action; provided, further, that the Indemnifying
Party shall not, in co nnection with any one such Action or separate but substantially similar or
related Actions in the same jurisdiction, arising out of the same general allegations or
circumstances, be liable for the fees and expenses of more than one firm of attorneys (together
with appropriate local counsel) at any time for all of the Indemnified Parties, or for fees and
expenses that are not reasonable. Whether or not such defense is assumed by the Indemnifying
Party, neither the Indemnifying Party nor the Indemnified Party will be subject to any liability
for, or otherwise effect, any settlement made without the consent of the other (but such consent
shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed).

(d)  Neither party shall settle, compromise, discharge or consent to an entry of
judgment with respect to a claim or liability subject to indemnification under this Section 4.6
without the other parties’ prior written consent (which consent shall not be unreasonably
withheld, conditioned or delayed); provided that the Indemnifying Party may agree without the
prior written consent of the Indemnified Party solely to any settlement, compromise, discharge or
consent to an entry of judgment, in each case that relates only to money damages and by its
terms obligates the Indemnifying Party to pay the full amount of the liability in connection with
such claim and which unconditionally releases the Indemnified Party from all liability in
connection with such claim.

(e) If the indemnification provided for in this Section 5.6 is unavailable to
hold harmless each of the Indemnified Parties against any losses, claims, damages, liabilities and
expenses to which such parties may become subject under the Securities Act, then the
Indemnifying Party shall, in lieu of indemnifying each party entitled to indemnification
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hereunder, contribute to the amount paid or payable by such party as a result of such losses,
claims, damages, liabilities or expenses in such proportion as is appropriate to reflect the relative
fault of the Indemnifying Party on the one hand and such Indemnified Parties on the other in
connection with the statements or omissions or alleged statements or omissions that resulted in
such losses, claims, damages, liabilities or expenses. The relative fault of such parties shall be
determined by reference to, among other things, whether the untrue or alleged untrue statement
of a material fact, or omission or alleged omission to state a material fact, relates to information
supplied by or concerning the Indemnifying Party on the one hand, or by such Indemnified Party
on the other, and such party’s relative intent, knowledge, access to information and opportunity
to have corrected or prevented such statement or omission; provided, however, that the
obligations of each of the Selling Investors hereunder shall be several and not joint. No Person
guilty of fraudulent misrepresentation (within the meaning of the Securities Act) shall be entitled
to contribution from any Person that is not guilty of such fraudulent misrepresentation.

SECTION 5.7.  Miscellaneous.

(@)  With a view to making available the benefits of certain rules and
regulations of the SEC which may at any time permit the sale of the Registrable Securities to the
public without registration, the Company agrees, so long as there are outstanding Registrable
Securities, to use its commercially reasonable efforts to:

()] file with the SEC in a timely manner all reports and other
documents as the SEC may prescribe under Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act at
any time while the Company is subject to such reporting requirements of the Exchange
Act; and

(i)  If the Company is subject to the requirements of Section 13, 14 or
15(d) of the Exchange Act, the Company covenants that it will file any reports required to
be filed by it under the Securities Act and the Exchange Act (or, if the Company is not
required to file such reports, it will make publicly available such information, as
described in Rule 144) and it will take such further action as any Investor may reasonably
request, so as to enable such Investor to sell Registrable Securities without registration
under the Securities Act within the limitation of the exemptions provided by (i) Rule 144
under the Securities Act, as such Rule may be amended from time to time or (ii) any
successor or similar rule or regulation hereafter adopted by the SEC. Upon the request of
any Investor, the Company will deliver to such Holder (w) a written statement as to
whether it has complied with such requirements; (x) a writ ten statement by the Company
as to whether it qualifies as a registrant whose securities may be resold pursuant to short
form registration statement; (y) a copy of the most recent annual or quarterly report of the
Company; and (z) such other reports and documents as an Investor may reasonably
request in availing itself of any rule or regulation of the SEC allowing it to sell any
Registrable Securities without registration.

(b)  Subject to the provisions hereof, in the event the Company proposes to
enter into an underwritten public offering, each Investor agrees to enter into a customary
agreement with the managing underwriters not to effect any sale or distribution of equity
securities of the Company, or any securities convertible, exchangeable or exercisable for or into
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such securities, during the period beginning up to two (2) days prior to the date of such offering
and extending for up to 90 days following the effective date of such offering if so requested by
the Company and the underwriters. The Company may impose stop-transfer restrictions with
respect to the securities subject to the foregoing restriction until the end of the required stand-off
period and shall lift such stop-transfer restrictions immediately upon the end of such period.

(o) The registration rights granted under this Agreement shall terminate, as to
any Selling Investor, on the date on which such Selling Investor no longer owns Registrable
Securities.

ARTICLE VI
TERMINATION

SECTION 6.1.  Termination. Other than the termination provisions applicable to
particular Sections of this Agreement that are specifically provided elsewhere in this Agreement,
this Agreement shall terminate (a) upon the mutual written agreement of the Company and the
Investors holding a majority of the Company Common Stock then held by the Investors in the
aggregate and (b) with respect to any individual Investor, at such time as such Investor ceases to
Beneficially Own any Registrable Securities.

ARTICLE VII
MISCELLANEOUS

SECTION 7.1. Amendment and Modification. This Agreement may be amended,
modified and supplemented, and any of the provisions contained herein may be waived, only by
a written instrument signed by the Company and by the Investors holding a majority of the
Company Common Stock then held by the Investors in the aggregate. No course of dealing
between or among any Persons having any interest in this Agreement will be deemed effective to
modify, amend or discharge any part of this Agreement or any rights or obligations of any Person
under or by reason of this Agreement.

SECTION 7.2.  Assignment; No Third-Party Beneficiaries.

(@)  Neither this Agreement, nor any of the rights, interests or obligations
hereunder shall be assigned by any of the parties hereto (whether by operation of Law or
otherwise) without the prior written consent of the other parties; provided, however that (i) each
Investor may assign its rights, interests and obligations under this Agreement to any other
transferee in a Permitted Transfer of a type described in clauses (i)-(v) of the definition thereof;
provided that Apax shall not be entitled to assign its rights under Section 2.1 to any transferee
other than an Affiliate of Apax and (ii) in the event of such assignment, the assignee shall agree
in writing to be bound by the provisions of this Agreement; provided that Non-Affiliate
Transferees shall not become subject to Apax’s obligations under Section 3.1.

(b)  This Agreement shall not confer any rights or remedies upon any Person
other than the parties to this Agreement and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

SECTION 7.3. Binding Effect; Entire Agreement. This Agreement and all of the
provisions hereof shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their

-29-



respective successors and assigns and executors, administrators and heirs. This Agreement sets
forth the entire agreement and understanding between the parties as to the subject matter hereof
and merges and supersedes all prior discussions, agreements and understandings of any and
every nature among them.

SECTION 7.4.  Severability. If one or more provisions of this Agreement are held to
be unenforceable under applicable Law, such provision(s) shall be excluded from this Agreement
and the balance of this Agreement shall be interpreted as if such provisions were so excluded and
shall be enforceable in accordance with its terms so long as the economic or legal substance of
the transactions contemplated by this Agreement are not affected in any manner materially
adverse to any party.

SECTION 7.5. Notices and Addresses. Any notice, demand, request, waiver, or other
communication under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly
given on the date of service, if personally served or sent by facsimile; on the business day after
notice is delivered to a courier or mailed by express mail, if sent by courier delivery service or
express mail for next day delivery; and on the third day after mailing, if mailed to the party to
whom notice is to be given, by first class mail, registered, return receipt requested, postage
prepaid and addressed as follows:

If to the Company:

Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation
200 Madison Avenue

New York, New York 10016
Attention: Mark D. Fischer, Esq.
Facsimile: (212) 381-3993

with a copy (which shall not constitute notice) to:

Wachtell, Lipton, Rosen & Katz

51 West 52nd Street

New York, New York 10019

Attention: Andrew J. Nussbaum, Esq.

Gregory E. Ostling, Esq.

Facsimile: (212) 403-2000

If to any Investor, at the most current address, and with a copy to be sent to each
additional address given by such Investor to the Company in writing, and copies (which shall not
constitute notice) sent to:

Simpson Thacher and Bartlett LLP
425 Lexington Avenue
New York, New York 10014
Attention: Robert Spatt

Ryerson Symons
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Facsimile: (212) 455-2502

SECTION 7.6. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed
in accordance with the Laws of the State of Delaware, without giving effect to any choice of law
or conflict of law provision or rule (whether of the State of Delaware or any other jurisdiction)
that would cause the application of the Law of any jurisdiction other than the State of Delaware.

SECTION 7.7. Headings. The headings in this Agreement are for convenience of
reference only and shall not constitute a part of this Agreement, nor shall they affect its meaning,
construction or effect.

SECTION 7.8.  Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed via facsimile and in
any number of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an original instrument and all
of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument.

SECTION 7.9.  Further Assurances. Each party shall cooperate and take such action as
may be reasonably requested by another party in order to carry out the provisions and purposes
of this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby.

SECTION 7.10. Remedies. In the event of a breach or a threatened breach by any party
to this Agreement of its obligations under this Agreement, any party injured or to be injured by
such breach will be entitled to specific performance of its rights under this Agreement or to
injunctive relief, in addition to being entitled to exercise all rights provided in this Agreement
and granted by Law, it being agreed by the parties that the remedy at Law, including monetary
damages, for breach of any such provision will be inadequate compensation for any loss and that
any defense or objection in any action for specific performance or injunctive relief for which a
remedy at Law would be adequate is waived.

SECTION 7.11. Jurisdiction and Venue. The parties hereto hereby irrevocably submit
to the jurisdiction of the Delaware Court of Chancery or, in the event (but only in the event) that
such court does not have subject matter jurisdiction over such action or proceeding, in the United
States District Court for the District of Delaware in respect of the interpretation and enforcement
of the provisions of this Agreement and of the documents referred to in this Agreement, and in
respect of the transactions contemplated hereby, and hereby waive, and agree not to assert, as a
defense in any action, suit or proceeding for the interpretation or enforcement hereof or of any
such document, that it is not subject thereto or that such action, suit or proceeding may not be
brought or is not maintainable in the Delaware Court of Chancery, or in the event (but only in the
event) that such court does not have subject matt er jurisdiction over such action or proceeding,
in the United States District Court for the District of Delaware, or that this Agreement or any
such document may not be enforced in or by such courts, and the parties hereto irrevocably agree
that all claims with respect to such action or proceeding shall be heard and determined in the
Delaware Court of Chancery, or in the event (but only in the event) that such court does not have
subject matter jurisdiction over such action or proceeding, in the United States District Court for
the District of Delaware. The parties hereto hereby consent to and grant the Delaware Court of
Chancery, or in the event (but only in the event) that such court does not have subject matter
jurisdiction over such action or proceeding, the United States District Court for the District of
Delaware, jurisdiction over the person of such parties and, to the extent permitted by Law, over
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the subject matter of such dispute and agree that mailing of process or other papers in connection
with any such action or proceeding in the manner provided in Section 7.5 or in such other
manner as may be permitted by Law shall be valid and sufficient service thereof.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be duly
executed as of the date and year first above written.

PHILLIPS-VAN HEUSEN CORPORATION

By: /s/ Mark D. Fischer
Name:
Title:

TOMMY HILFIGER HOLDING S.A.R.L.

By: /s/ Frank Ehmer
Name: Frank Ehmer
Title: as Director

STICHTING ADMINISTRIEKANTOOR ELMIRA
By: /s/ Matthijs Schiitte

Name: Matthijs Schiitte
Title: Managing Director

APAX WW NOMINEES LTD., AS NOMINEE FOR
APAX EUROPE VI-A, L.P. AND APAX EUROPE VI-1,

L.P.
FOR AND ON BEHALF OF APAX PARTNERS
EUROPE MANAGERS LIMITED, AS
MANAGER OF APAX EUROPE VI-A, L.P.

By: [NOT READABLE]

By: [NOT READABLE]

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF APAX PARTNERS EUROPE
MANAGERS LIMITED, AS MANAGER OF APAX
EUROPE VI-1, L.P.

By: [NOT READABLE]

By: [NOT READABLE]
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APAX US VIL, L.P.
By: APAX US VII GP, L.P,, its general partner
By: APAX US VII GP, LTD., its general partner

By: /s/ Christian Stahl

Name: Christian Stahl
Title:
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EXHIBIT 4.12

AMENDMENT
Dated as of June 8, 2010

TO THE STOCKHOLDERS AGREEMENT
dated as of May 6, 2010

by and among
Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation,
Tommy Hilfiger Holding S.a.r.],
Stichting Administratiekantoor Elmira,

Apax Europe VI-A, L.P,,
Apax Europe VI-1, L.P,,
Apax US VII, L.P.
and

each of the Other Signatories thereto




AMENDMENT TO STOCKHOLDERS AGREEMENT

THIS AMENDMENT TO THE STOCKHOLDERS AGREEMENT, dated as of June 8,
2010 (this “Amendment”), is being entered into by and among Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation,
a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), Tommy Hilfiger Holding S.a.r.l., a Luxembourg
limited liability company (“LuxCo”), Stichting Administrekantoor Elmira, a foundation under
Dutch law (stichting) (the “Foundation”), Apax Europe VI-A, L.P,, a limited partnership under
English law (“Apax Europe VI-A, L..P.”), Apax Europe VI-1, L.P,, a limited partnership under
English law (“Apax Europe VI-1, L..P.”) and Apax US VII, L.P., an exempted limited partnership
under Cayman Islands law (“Apax US VII, 1..P.”). Capitalized terms used herein but not defined
shall have the meanings ascribed to such terms in the Stockholders Agreement dated as of May
6, 2010 (the “Stockholders Agreement”).

RECITALS:

A. In connection with the Closing, on May 6, 2010, the parties hereto entered into the
Stockholders Agreement.

B. The parties now wish to amend the Stockholders Agreement as set forth in this
Amendment, as permitted by Section 7.1 of the Stockholders Agreement, in order to clarify
certain understandings and agreements among the parties.

AGREEMENT:

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing premises and the mutual
covenants and agreements contained herein and for other good and valuable consideration, the
receipt and adequacy of which are hereby acknowledged, intending to be legally bound, the
parties hereto agree as follows:

1. Amendment of Section 1.1.

The definition of “Governance Rights Termination Threshold” set forth in the
Stockholders Agreement is hereby amended and restated in its entirety to read as follows:

“Governance Rights Termination Threshold” means a number of shares equal to the
greater of (a) 2,180,552 shares of Company Common Stock, which number shall be
appropriately adjusted in good faith as necessary to give effect to any stock split or combination,
or any reclassification, recapitalization, merger, consolidation, exchange or other similar
reorganization or business combination affecting the Company Common Stock after May 6,
2010 and (b) 4% of the then issued and outstanding shares of Company Common Stock.

2. References to the Stockholders Agreement; Construction. This Amendment shall
be interpreted and construed together with, and as part of, the Stockholders Agreement. After
giving effect to this Amendment, each reference in the Stockholders Agreement to “this
Agreement”, “hereof”, “hereunder” or words of like import referring to the Stockholders
Agreement, and any reference in any other document to the Stockholders Agreement, shall refer
to the Stockholders Agreement as amended by this Amendment; provided that all references in




the Stockholders Agreement to “the date of this Agreement” or “the date hereof” shall refer to
May 6, 2010.

3. Other Miscellaneous Terms. The provisions of Article VII (Miscellaneous) of the
Stockholders Agreement shall apply mutatis mutandis to this Amendment, and to the
Stockholders Agreement as modified by this Amendment, taken together as a single agreement,
reflecting the terms therein as modified hereby.

4. No Further Amendment. Except as amended by this Amendment, the
Stockholders Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be duly
executed as of the date and year first above written.

PHILLIPS-VAN HEUSEN CORPORATION

By: /s/ Mark D. Fischer
Name: Mark D. Fischer
Title: Senior Vice President




STICHTING ADMINISTRIEKANTOOR ELMIRA

By: [s/ Matthijs Schiitte
Name: Matthijs Schiitte
Title: Managing Director



TOMMY HILFIGER HOLDING S.A.R.L.
By: NOVA LIQUIDATOR LTD, its managing liquidator

By: /s/ Alain Steichen
Name: Alain Steichen
Title: Duly Empowered

APAX WW NOMINEES LTD., AS NOMINEE FOR
APAX EUROPE VI - A, L.P. AND APAX EUROPE VI -
1, L.P.

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF APAX PARTNERS
EUROPE MANAGERS LIMITED, AS MANAGER
OF APAX EUROPE VI - A, L.P.

By: [s/ Stephen Grabiner
Name: Stephen Grabiner
Title:  Director

By: /s/ Paul Fitzsimons
Name: Paul Fitzsimons
Title:  Director

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF APAX PARTNERS
EUROPE MANAGERS LIMITED, AS MANAGER
OF APAX EUROPE VI -1, L.P.

By: [s/ Stephen Grabiner
Name: Stephen Grabiner
Title: Director

By: /s/ Paul Fitzsimons
Name: Paul Fitzsimons
Title: Director

APAX US VII, L.P.

By: APAX US VII GP, L.P,, its general partner
By: APAX US VII GP, LTD,, its general partner

By:_/s/ Christian Stahl
Name: Christian Stahl
Title: Partner




EXHIBIT 4.13
EXECUTION COPY

STOCKHOLDERS AGREEMENT

dated as of May 6, 2010

by and among

PHILLIPS-VAN HEUSEN CORPORATION,

LNK PARTNERS, L.P.,

and

LNK PARTNERS (PARALLEL), L.P.
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STOCKHOLDERS AGREEMENT

THIS STOCKHOLDERS AGREEMENT, dated as of May 6, 2010 (this “Agreement”),
by and among Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation, a Delaware corporation (the “Company™), LNK
Partners, L.P., a Delaware limited partnership, and LNK Partners (Parallel), L.P., a Delaware
limited partnership (together, with LNK Partners, L.P., the “Investors™).

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, (a) the Investors and the Company have entered into that certain Securities
Purchase Agreement, dated as of March 15, 2010 (the “LNK Purchase Agreement”), pursuant to
which the Investors will purchase 4,000 shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock of the
Company (the “Preferred Stock”) and (b) MSD Brand Investments, LLC (“MSD”) and the
Company have entered into that certain Securities Purchase Agreement, dated as of March 15,
2010 (the “MSD Purchase Agreement” and, together with the LNK Purchase Agreement, the
“Purchase Agreements™)), pursuant to which MSD will purchase 4,000 shares of the Preferred
Stock, which will collectively constitute all of the issued and outstanding shares of the Preferred
Stock; and

WHEREAS, it is a condition precedent to the Investors’ purchase of such Preferred Stock
under the LNK Purchase Agreement that the Company enter into this Agreement with the
Investors to provide for certain agreements and obligations of the parties following the closing of
the transactions contemplated by the LNK Purchase Agreement (the “Closing™).

AGREEMENT:

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing premises and the mutual
covenants and agreements contained herein and for other good and valuable consideration, the
receipt and adequacy of which are hereby acknowledged, intending to be legally bound, the
parties hereto agree as follows:

ARTICLE I
DEFINITIONS

SECTION 1.1.  Definitions. The following terms shall have the meanings ascribed to
them below:

“Affiliate” of a Person has the meaning set forth in Rule 12b-2 under the Exchange Act.
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in this Agreement, no limited partner or
similar participant of an Investor shall be deemed an Affiliate of such Investor.

“Agreement” means this Agreement, as amended, modified or supplemented from time to
time, in accordance with the terms hereof, together with any exhibits, schedules or other
attachments hereto.

“Beneficially Own” with respect to any securities means having “beneficial ownership”
of such securities (as determined pursuant to Rule 13d-3 under the Exchange Act without




limitation by the 60-day provision in paragraph (d)(1)(i) thereof). The terms “Beneficial
Ownership” and “Beneficial Owner” have correlative meanings.

“Board” or “Board of Directors” means the Board of Directors of the Company.

“Business Day” means a day, other than a Saturday or Sunday, on which commercial
banks in New York City are open for the general transaction of business.

“Capital Stock” means, with respect to any Person at any time, any and all shares,
interests, participations or other equivalents (however designated, whether voting or non-voting)
of capital stock, partnership interests (whether general or limited) or equivalent ownership
interests in or issued by such Person.

“Change of Control” means the existence or occurrence of any of the following: (a) the
sale, conveyance or disposition of all or substantially all of the assets of the Company, (b) the
consolidation, merger or other business combination of the Company with or into any other
entity, immediately following which the then current stockholders of the Company fail to own,
directly or indirectly, at least Majority Voting Power, (c) a transaction or series of transactions in
which any person or “group” (as such term is used in Sections 13(d) and 14(d) of the Exchange
Act) acquires Majority Voting Power (other than (i) a reincorporation or similar corporate
transaction in which the Company’s stockholders own, immediately thereafter, interests in the
new parent company in essentially the same percentage as they owned in the Company
immediately prior to such transaction, or (ii) a transaction descri bed in clause (b) (such as a
triangular merger) in which the threshold in clause (b) is not passed) or (d) the replacement of a
majority of the Board of Directors with individuals who were not nominated or elected by at
least a majority of the directors at the time of such replacement.

“Closing” has the meaning ascribed thereto in the recitals of this Agreement.
“Closing Date” means the date on which the Closing occurs.
“Company” has the meaning set forth in the preamble of this Agreement.

“Company Common Stock” means the common stock, par value $1.00 per share, of the
Company.

“Company_Indemnitees” has the meaning set forth in Section 4.6(b).
“Demand Notice” has the meaning set forth in Section 4.2(a).

“Demand Registration” has the meaning set forth in Section 4.2(a).

“Demand Registration Statement” has the meaning set forth in Section 4.2(a).
“Director” means a director of the Company.

“Election Meetings” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.1(b).
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“Exchange Act” means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

“Governance Rights Termination Event” means the earliest to occur of (a) the Investors
(together with its Affiliates) ceasing to collectively Beneficially Own, net of Short Interests, at
least 80% of the Shares (provided that for purposes of this subclause (a), a Person shall only be
deemed to Beneficially Own a Share as of a certain date if they have a right to vote and dispose
of (without regard to any limitations on disposal in this Agreement) such share as of such date),
(b) either the Investors or any of their Affiliates breaching in any material respect any of the
provisions of Article III of this Agreement or (c) the Company’s good faith determination, after
consultation with outside counsel, that the Investors’ right under Section 2.1 may result in a
violation of Section 8 of the Clayton Act, 15 U.S.C. §19, or any applicable foreign antitrust
Laws.

“Governmental Entity” means any United States or foreign (a) federal, state, local,
municipal or other government, (b) governmental or quasi-governmental entity of any nature
(including, without limitation, any governmental agency, branch, department, official or entity
and any court or other tribunal), or (c) body exercising or entitled to exercise any administrative,
executive, judicial, legislative, police, regulatory or taxing authority or power of any nature,
including, without limitation, any arbitral tribunal.

“Indemnified Party” has the meaning set forth in Section 4.6(c).
“Indemnifying Party” has the meaning set forth in Section 4.6(c).
“Investor” and “Investors” have the meaning set forth in the preamble of this Agreement.

“Investor Designee” means David Landau or any Replacement pursuant to the terms of
Section 2.1.

“Investor Indemnitees” has the meaning set forth in Section 4.6(a).

“Investors’ Representative” means LNK Partners, L.P. or any other Person designated by
the Investors holding a majority of the Preferred Stock then held by the Investors in the
aggregate.

“Joint Demand Registration” means a Demand Registration delivered jointly and
identified as such by one or more Investors, on the one hand, and MSD, on the other hand.

“Joint Shelf Take-Down Notice” means a Shelf Take-Down Notice delivered jointly and
identified as such by one or more Investors, on the one hand, and MSD, on the other hand.

“Joint Representative” means any Person designated as such in a Joint Demand
Registration.

“Law” means any applicable federal, state, local or foreign law, statute, ordinance, rule,
guideline, regulation, order, writ, decree, agency requirement, license or permit of any
Governmental Entity.



“LNK Purchase Agreement” has the meaning ascribed thereto in the recitals of this
Agreement.

“Losses” has the meaning set forth in Section 4.6(a).

“Majority Voting Power” of the resulting corporation or of the Company shall mean a
majority of the ordinary voting power in the election of Directors of all the outstanding voting
securities of the resulting corporation or of the Company, respectively.

“MSD” has the meaning ascribed thereto in the recitals of this Agreement.

“MSD Purchase Agreement” has the meaning ascribed thereto in the recitals of this
Agreement.

“MSD Stockholder Agreement” means the Stockholder Agreement, dated as of the date
hereof, by and between the Company and MSD.

“Notice and Questionnaire” means a written notice executed by a respective Investor and
delivered to the Company containing the information required by Item 507 of Regulation S-K to
be included in any Shelf Registration Statement regarding the applicable Investor seeking to sell
Company Common Stock pursuant thereto.

“NYSE” means the New York Stock Exchange.

“Other Securities” means the Company Common Stock or other securities of the
Company which the Company is registering pursuant to a Registration Statement covered by
Section 4.3.

“Person” shall mean any natural person, corporation, partnership, limited liability
company, joint venture, association, joint-stock company, trust, unincorporated organization or
government or other agency or political subdivision thereof.

“Piggyback Notice” has the meaning set forth in Section 4.3(a).

“Piggyback Registration” has the meaning set forth in Section 4.3(a).

“Preferred Stock” has the meaning ascribed thereto in the recitals of this Agreement.

“Prospectus” means the prospectus included in any Registration Statement, as amended
or supplemented by any prospectus supplement and by all other amendments thereto, including

post-effective amendments, and all material incorporated by reference into such prospectus.

“Purchase Agreements” has the meaning ascribed thereto in the recitals of this
Agreement.

“Registration Expenses” has the meaning set forth in Section 4.4.

“Registrable Securities” means shares of Company Common Stock issued by the
Company upon conversion of any shares of Preferred Stock, as well as any shares of Company



Common Stock or other securities issued as (or issuable upon the conversion or exercise of any
warrant, right or other security which is issued as) a dividend or other distribution with respect
to, or in exchange generally for, or in replacement generally of, such Preferred Stock or other
Registrable Securities and any securities issued in exchange for such Preferred Stock or other
Registrable Securities in any merger, reorganization, consolidation, share exchange,
recapitalization, restructuring or other comparable transaction of the Company. As to any
particular Registrable Securities, once issued such securities shall cease to be Registrable
Securities when (a) a Registration Statement with respect to the sale by the Investor holding such
securities has been declared effective by the SEC and such securities have been disposed of
pursuant to such effective Registration Statement, (b) such securities shall have bee n or could be
sold, without being subject to any holding period or volume limitations pursuant to Rule 144,
under circumstances in which all of the applicable conditions of Rule 144 (or any similar
provisions then in force) under the Securities Act are met, (c) such securities have been
otherwise transferred and the Company has delivered a new certificate or other evidence of
ownership for such securities not bearing a restrictive legend and not subject to any stop order,
and such securities may be publicly resold by the Person receiving such certificate without
complying with the registration requirements of the Securities Act or (d) such securities shall
have ceased to be outstanding.

“Registration Statement” means any registration statement of the Company under the
Securities Act which permits the public offering of any of the Registrable Securities pursuant to
the provisions of this Agreement, including the Prospectus, amendments and supplements to
such registration statement, including post-effective amendments, all exhibits and all material
incorporated by reference or deemed to be incorporated by reference in such registration
statement.

“Relevant Restricted Period” means (a) with respect to 50% of the Shares, the period
commencing on the date of this Agreement and ending on the day that is nine (9) months from
the date of this Agreement and (b) with respect to 50% of the Shares, the period commencing on
the date of this Agreement and ending on the day that is fifteen (15) months from the date of this
Agreement.

“Replacement” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.1(e).
“SEC” means the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission.
“Securities Act” means the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.

“Selling Investor” means an Investor who is selling Registrable Securities pursuant to a
Registration Statement under the Securities Act.

“Shares” means the Preferred Stock acquired by the Investors at the Closing and any
Company Common Stock into which such Preferred Stock may be converted pursuant to the
terms of the Certificate of Designations relating to the Preferred Stock.

“Shelf Effective Period” has the meaning set forth in Section 4.1(a).

“Shelf Registration Statement” has the meaning set forth in Section 4.1(a).



“Shelf Take-Down Notice” has the meaning set forth in Section 4.1(b).

“Short Interests” means any agreement, arrangement, understanding or relationship,
including any repurchase or similar so-called “stock borrowing” agreement or arrangement,
engaged in, directly or indirectly, by any of the Investors or their Affiliates, the purpose or effect
of which is to short shares of Company Common Stock.

“Standstill Period” means the period commencing on the Closing Date and ending on the
date that is the sixth month anniversary of a Governance Right Termination Event.

“Subsidiary” means, as to any Person, any other Person more than 50% of the shares of
the voting stock or other voting interests of which are owned or controlled, or the ability to select
or elect more than 50% of the directors or similar managers is held, directly or indirectly, by such
first Person or one or more of its Subsidiaries or by such first Person and one or more of its
Subsidiaries.

“Suspension Period” has the meaning set forth in Section 4.5(a)(ii).

“13D Group” means any group of Persons who, with respect to those acquiring, holding,
voting or disposing of Company Common Stock would, assuming ownership of the requisite
percentage thereof, be required under Section 13(d) of the Exchange Act to file a statement on
Schedule 13D with the SEC as a “person” within the meaning of Section 13(d)(3) of the
Exchange Act.

SECTION 1.2.  General Interpretive Principles. Whenever used in this Agreement,
except as otherwise expressly provided or unless the context otherwise requires, any noun or
pronoun shall be deemed to include the plural as well as the singular and to cover all genders.
The name assigned this Agreement and the Section captions used herein are for convenience of
reference only and shall not be construed to affect the meaning, construction or effect hereof.

Unless otherwise specified, the terms “hereof,” “herein” and similar terms refer to this
Agreement as a whole (including the exhibits hereto), and references herein to Sections refer to
Sections of this Agreement.

ARTICLE II
GOVERNANCE

SECTION 2.1.  Election and Appointment. The Company agrees, until a Governance
Rights Termination Event:

(@)  to appoint the Investor Designee as a Director on the Closing Date;

(b)  toinclude the Investor Designee in its slate of nominees for election as a
Director at each annual or special meeting of stockholders of the Company at which Directors
are to be elected and at which the seat held by the Investor Designee is subject to election (such
annual or special meetings, the “Election Meetings”);

(c)  touse commercially reasonable efforts to cause the election of the Investor
Designee to the Board of Directors at each of the Election Meetings (including recommending



that the Company’s stockholders vote in favor of the election of the Investor Designee and
otherwise supporting the Investor Designee for election in a manner no less rigorous and
favorable than the manner in which the Company supports its other nominees);

(d) if the Investor Designee is not elected to the Board of Directors at any
Annual Meeting, or becomes unable to serve for any reason or is removed during the course of
his term as Director, the Company will promptly appoint the Replacement of such Investor
Designee to the Board of Directors to serve until the following Election Meeting;

(e) if the Investor Designee (i) is unable to serve as a nominee for election as
Director or to serve as a Director, for any reason, or (ii) is removed or fails to be elected at an
Election Meeting, the Investors shall have the right to submit the name of a replacement (the
“Replacement”) to the Company for its approval (such determination to be made in the sole
discretion of the Company acting in good faith and consistent with the Company’s nominating
and governance practices in effect from time to time) and who shall serve as the nominee for
election as Director or serve as Director in accordance with the terms of this Section 2.1(e). If
the proposed replacement is not approved by the Company, the Investors shall have the right to
submit another proposed Replacement to the Company for its approval on the same basis as set
forth in the immediately preceding sentence. The Investors shall have the right to continue
submitting the name of a proposed Replacement to the Company for its approval until the
Company approves that such Replacement may serve as a nominee for election as Director or to
serve as a Director whereupon such person is appointed as the Replacement. An Investor
Designee shall, at the time of nomination and at all times thereafter until such individual’s
service on the Board of Directors ceases, (i) meet any applicable requirements or qualifications
under applicable Law or stock exchange rules to be a member of the Board of Directors and (ii)
prior to being nominated, agree to comply with the requirements of Section 2.3 hereof.

SECTION 2.2.  Expenses and Fees; Indemnification. The Company agrees to
reimburse the Investor Designee (or his Replacement) elected to the Board for his reasonable
expenses, consistent with the Company’s policy for such reimbursement in effect from time to
time, incurred attending meetings of the Board and/or any committee of the Board. Neither the
Investor Designee nor any Replacement shall be entitled to any retainer, equity compensation or
other fees or compensation paid to non-employee Directors for their services as a Director,
including any service on any committee of the Board. The Company shall indemnify, or provide
for the indemnification of, the Investor Designee and provide the Investor Designee with director
and officer insurance to the same extent it indemnifies and provides insurance for the non-
executive members of the Board of Directors.

SECTION 2.3.  Resignation. Upon the occurrence of a Governance Rights
Termination Event, the Investors shall cause the Investor Designee to promptly tender his
resignation from the Board and any committee of the Board on which he then sits.

SECTION 2.4.  Voting Agreements. Until the occurrence of a Governance Rights
Termination Event, each Investor hereby agrees to cause each share of Preferred Stock
Beneficially Owned by it to be present in person or represented by proxy at all meetings
(whether annual or special) of stockholders of the Company, so that all such shares of Preferred
Stock shall be counted as present for determining the presence of a quorum at such meetings.




The Investors shall (a) vote or cause to be voted, at all meetings of stockholders of the Company,
all of the shares of Preferred Stock Beneficially Owned by it in accordance with the
recommendation of the Board on all matters upon which holders of shares of Preferred Stock are
entitled to vote and (b) act by written consent in accordance with the recommendation of the
Board in connection with any consent solicitation.

ARTICLE III
STOCKHOLDER RESTRICTIONS

SECTION 3.1.  Standstill. During the Standstill Period and unless otherwise approved
by the Board of Directors (other than the Investor Designee), each of the Investors, will not, and
will cause each of its Affiliates not to, directly or indirectly:

(a) acquire or agree, offer, seek or propose to acquire (or request permission to
do so) ownership (including, but not limited to, Beneficial Ownership) of any of the assets or
businesses of the Company or any Subsidiary thereof (other than any assets or businesses that,
individually or in the aggregate, are de minimis to the Company or any Subsidiary thereof), or
any rights or options to acquire such ownership (including from a third party);

(b)  acquire, offer or propose to acquire or agree to acquire, whether by
purchase, tender or exchange offer, by joining a partnership, limited partnership, syndicate or
other 13D Group or otherwise, ownership (including, but not limited to, Beneficial Ownership)
of any securities issued by the Company or any Subsidiary thereof, or any rights or options to
acquire such ownership (whether currently, upon lapse of time, following the satisfaction of any
conditions, upon the occurrence of any event or any combination of the foregoing), other than (i)
the delivery of shares of Preferred Stock pursuant to the Purchase Agreement, (ii) the acquisition
of shares of Company Common Stock, or other property or assets pursuant to the terms of the
Preferred Stock, (iii) the acquisition of other securities of the Company as a result of any stock
split, stock dividends or other distributions or recapitalizations or offerings made available by the
Co mpany to the holders of Preferred Stock or Company Common Stock, including rights
offering, or (iv) any acquisition of shares of Company Common Stock approved by the Board
(other than the Investor Designee) prior to such acquisition;

(o) engage in any “solicitation” (within the meaning of the Exchange Act) of
proxies or consents relating to the election of directors with respect to the Company, or become a
“participant” in any “election contest” (both within the meaning of the Exchange Act) seeking to
elect directors not nominated by the Board of Directors;

(d)  knowingly induce or attempt to induce any other Person to initiate any
stockholder proposal with respect to the Company;

(e) in any manner, agree, attempt, seek or propose to deposit any securities of
the Company or any rights to acquire (whether currently, upon lapse of time, following the
satisfaction of any conditions, upon the occurrence of any event or any combination of the
foregoing) any securities of the Company in any voting trust or similar arrangement;

® publicly announce any intention, plan or arrangement inconsistent with the
foregoing;



(g)  form or join in the formation of a 13D Group with respect to any securities
of the Company or any Subsidiary thereof, other than any such “group” consisting exclusively of
the Investors and any Affiliates of the Investors;

(h) (i) finance (or arrange financing for) any Person for the purpose of
enabling such Person to take an action that, if taken by an Investor, or any of its Affiliates, would
be prohibited under this Section 3.1 or (ii) otherwise knowingly encourage or advise another
Person, in each case in connection with any of the foregoing; or

@) seek to do any of the foregoing, request to amend or waive any provision
of this Section 3.1 (including, without limitation, this clause (i)), or make or seek permission to
make any public announcement with respect to any of the foregoing.

Nothing in this Section 3.1 shall (x) prohibit any individual who is serving as a
Director, solely in his or her capacity as a Director, from (A) exercising his or her fiduciary
duties, (B) taking any action or making any statement at any meeting of the Board of Directors or
of any committee thereof or (C) making any statement or disclosure required under federal
securities Laws or other applicable Law or (y) restrict any disclosure or statements required to be
made by any Investor under applicable Law. For the avoidance of doubt, Sections 3.1 shall not
apply to any transaction pursuant to the LNK Purchase Agreement.

SECTION 3.2.  Dispositions.

(a) Each Investor agrees that during the Relevant Restricted Period, without
the prior written consent of the Company, such Investor shall not, and shall not authorize, permit
or direct its Subsidiaries to, directly or indirectly, (a) offer, pledge, announce the intention to sell,
sell, contract to sell, sell any option or contract to purchase, purchase any option or contract to
sell, grant any option, right or warrant to purchase or otherwise transfer or dispose of any Shares
or securities convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for such Shares, including in any
transaction that involves any common equity securities, equity-linked securities (including
convertible securities) or equity forward sale agreements, relating to the Shares or (b) enter into
any swap or other agreement that transfers, in whole or in part, any of the economic
consequences of ownership of any of the Shares, whether any such transaction described in cl
auses (a) or (b) above is to be settled by delivery of any Shares, in cash or otherwise; provided
that each Investor may (i) transfer any Shares to any of its Affiliates provided that such Affiliate
agrees to be bound by the terms of this Agreement and (ii) transfer any Shares to a third party
pursuant to a tender offer, exchange offer, merger, consolidation or other transaction (A) which is
recommended to the stockholders of the Company by the Board (other than the Investor
Designee) or (B) in the case of a merger or other business combination transaction, which has
been approved by the stockholders of the Company.

(b)  The restrictions set forth in this Section 3.2 shall terminate upon a Change
of Control.

ARTICLE IV
REGISTRATION RIGHTS

SECTION 4.1.  Shelf Registration.




(a) No later than 90 days prior to the expiration of the Relevant Restricted
Period (any such date, the “Shelf Date”), the Company shall prepare and file with the SEC a
Registration Statement providing for registration and resale, on a continuous or delayed basis
pursuant to Rule 415 under the Securities Act, as such rule may be amended from time to time,
or any similar rule or regulation hereafter adopted by the SEC, of all of the Registrable
Securities, provided that such obligation shall be satisfied if the Company shall have in effect an
automatically effective shelf registration statement on Form S-3ASR that will permit the
registration and resale of all Registrable Securities (an “Existing Shelf Registration Statement”)
as of the Shelf Date (any such registration statement, a “Shelf Registration Statement”);
provided, further, that, for the avoidance of dou bt, the existence of an Existing Shelf
Registration Statement shall not have any effect on the restrictions set forth in Section 3.2. The
Shelf Registration Statement shall be on Form S-3 (or any comparable or successor form or
forms then in effect) under the Securities Act (or to the extent the Company is not eligible to use
Form S-3 or any comparable or successor form or forms, on Form S-1 or any comparable or
successor form or forms); provided, however, that if the Company is a well-known seasoned
issuer (as defined in Rule 405 under the Securities Act) at the time of filing of the Shelf
Registration Statement with the SEC, such Shelf Registration Statement shall be designated by
the Company as an automatic shelf registration statement (as defined in Rule 405 under the
Securities Act). In the event that the Shelf Registration Statement is not an automatic shelf
registration statement, the Company shall use commercially reasonable efforts to cause the Shelf
Registrat ion Statement to be declared effective under the Securities Act by the SEC as of the
expiration of the Relevant Restricted Period. The Company shall use commercially reasonable
efforts to keep the Shelf Registration Statement continuously effective under the Securities Act
until the earlier of (i) the date when all of the Registrable Securities covered by such Shelf
Registration Statement have been sold and (ii) the date on which the Registrable Securities
covered by the Shelf Registration Statement are eligible to be sold or transferred without being
subject to any holding period or volume limitations pursuant to Rule 144 under the Securities
Act (the “Shelf Effective Period”).

(b)  Each Investor agrees that if such Investor wishes to sell Registrable
Securities pursuant to a Shelf Registration Statement and related Prospectus, it will do so in
accordance with this Section 4.1(b) and Section 4.5. Each Investor wishing to sell Registrable
Securities pursuant to a Shelf Registration Statement and related Prospectus, whether in an
underwritten offering or otherwise, agrees to notify the Company of such intent (a “Shelf Take-
Down Notice”) and shall deliver a Notice and Questionnaire to the Company at least five (5)
Business Days prior to any intended distribution of Registrable Securities under the Shelf
Registration Statement, it being agreed that if any Investor intends to distribute any Registrable
Securities by means of an underwritten offering it shall promptly so advise the Company and the
Company shall take all reasonable steps to facilitate such distribution, inc luding the actions

Statement is declared effective, the Company shall, as promptly as practicable after the date a
Notice and Questionnaire is delivered to it in connection with a Shelf Take-Down Notice:

@) if required by applicable Law, file with the SEC a post-effective
amendment to the Shelf Registration Statement or prepare and, if required by applicable
Law, file a supplement to the related Prospectus or a supplement or amendment to any
document incorporated therein by reference or file any other required document so that
the Investor delivering such Notice and Questionnaire is named as a selling security
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holder in the Shelf Registration Statement and the related Prospectus in such a manner as
to permit such Investor to deliver such Prospectus to purchasers of Registrable Securities
in accordance with applicable Law and, if the Company shall file a post-effective
amendment to the Shelf Registration Statement, use commercially reasonable efforts to
cause such post-effective amendment to be declared effective under the Securities Act as
promptly as is practicable;

(ii))  provide such Investor copies of any documents filed pursuant to
Section 4.1(b)(i); and
(iii)  notify such Investor as promptly as practicable after the
effectiveness under the Securities Act of any post-effective amendment filed pursuant to
Section 4.1(b)(i);
provided, however, that if such Shelf Take-Down Notice or Notice and Questionnaire is
delivered during a Suspension Period, the Company shall so inform the Investor delivering such
Shelf Take-Down Notice or Notice and Questionnaire and shall take the actions set forth in
clauses (i), (ii) and (iii) above upon expiration of the Suspension Period in accordance with
Section 4.5; provided, further, that the Investors shall not be entitled to deliver to the Company
more than one (1) Shelf Take-Down Notice in any 12-month period and, in any event, each Shelf
Take Down Notice may only be made if the sale of the Registrable Securities covered by such
Shelf Take Down Notice includes at least 25% of the shares of Company Common Stock into
which the originally issued shares of the Preferred Stock may be converted or is reasonably
expected to result in aggregate gross cash proceeds in excess of $50,000,000 (without regard to
any underwriting discount or commission). Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the
contrary, the Company shall be under no obligation to name any Investor that has not delivered a
Notice and Questionnaire to the Company as a selling security holder in any Shelf Registration
Statement or related Prospectus.

(o) If any of the Registrable Securities to be sold pursuant to a Shelf
Registration Statement are to be sold in a firm commitment underwritten offering which
underwritten offering was initially requested by the Investors pursuant to a Shelf Take-Down
Notice, and the managing underwriter(s) of such underwritten offering advise the Investors in
writing that it is their good faith opinion that the total number or dollar amount of Registrable
Securities proposed to be sold in such offering, together with any Other Securities proposed to be
included by holders thereof which are entitled to include securities in such Registration
Statement, exceeds the total number or dollar amount of such securities that can be sold without
having an adverse effect on the price, timing or distribution of the Registrable Securities to be so
included, together with all such Other Securities, then there shall be included in such firm
commitment underwritten offering the number or dollar amount of Registrable Securities and
such Other Securities that in the opinion of such managing underwriter(s) can be sold without so
adversely affecting such offering, and such number of Registrable Securities and Other Securities
shall be allocated for inclusion as follows:

(i) first, the Registrable Securities for which inclusion in such
underwritten offering was requested by the Investors, pro rata (if applicable), based
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on the number of Registrable Securities Beneficially Owned by each such Investor;
and

(ii) second, among any holders of Other Securities, pro rata, based on
the number of Other Securities Beneficially Owned by each such holder of Other
Securities.

SECTION 4.2. Demand Registration.

(@) At any time following the expiration of the Relevant Restricted Period, if
the Company is unable to file, cause to be effective or maintain the effectiveness of a Shelf
Registration Statement as required under Section 4.1 hereof, subject to the restrictions set forth in
Section 3.2, the Investors’ Representative shall have the right, by delivering a written notice to
the Company (a “Demand Notice”), to require the Company to register under and in accordance
with the provisions of the Securities Act the number of Registrable Securities Beneficially
Owned by any Investors and requested by such Demand Notice to be so registered (a “Demand
Registration”); provided, however, that the Company shall not be required to effect a Demand
Registration pursuant to this Section 4.2(a) after the Company has effected two (2) Demand
Registrations pursuant to this Section 4.2(a); and provided, further, that the Investors shall not be
entitled to deliver to the Company more than one (1) Demand Registration in any 12-month
period and, in any event, a Demand Notice may only be made if the sale of the Registrable
Securities requested to be registered by the Investors” Representative includes at least 25% of the
shares of Company Common Stock into which the originally issued shares of the Preferred Stock
(which, for the avoidance of doubt, shall include all of the shares of Preferred Stock that were
issued to each of the Investors and MSD under the Purchase Agreements) may be converted or
is reasonably expected to result in aggregate gross cash proceeds in excess of $50,000,000
(without regard to any underwriting discount or commission). For all purposes under this
Section 4.2(a), any Demand Registration delivered to the Company by MSD under the MSD
Stockholder Agreement shall be considered to be a Demand Registration delivered under this
Section 4.2(a) and a Joint Demand Registration shall be deemed to be a single Demand
Registration under this Section 4.2(a). A Demand Notice shall also specify the expected method
or methods of disposition of the applicable Registrable Securities. Following receipt of a
Demand Notice, the Company shall use commercially reasonable efforts to file, as promptly as
reasonably practicable, but not later than 30 days after receipt by the Company of such Demand
Notice, a Registration Statement relating to the offer and sale of the Registrable Securities
requested to be included therein by the Investors thereof in accordance with the methods of
distribution elected by such Investors (a “Demand Registration Statement”) and shall use
commercially reasonable efforts to cause such Registration Statement to be declared effective
under the Securities Act as promptly as practicable after the filing thereof.

(b)  If any of the Registrable Securities registered pursuant to a Demand
Registration are to be sold in a firm commitment underwritten offering, and the managing
underwriter(s) of such underwritten offering advise the Investors in writing that it is their good
faith opinion that the total number or dollar amount of Registrable Securities proposed to be sold
in such offering, together with any Other Securities proposed to be included by holders thereof
which are entitled to include securities in such Registration Statement, exceeds the total number
or dollar amount of such securities that can be sold without having an adverse effect on the price,
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timing or distribution of the Registrable Securities to be so included together with all such Other
Securities, then there shall be included in such firm commitment underwritten offering the
number or dollar amount of Registrable Securities and such Other Securities that in the opinion
of such managing underwriter(s) can be sold without so adversely affecting such offering, and
such number of Registrable Securities and Other Securities shall be allocated for inclusion as
follows:

(6] first, the Registrable Securities for which inclusion in such
underwritten offering was requested by the Investors, pro rata (if applicable), based on
the number of Registrable Securities Beneficially Owned by each such Investor; and

(ii)  second, among any holders of Other Securities, pro rata, based on
the number of Other Securities Beneficially Owned by each such holder of Other
Securities.

(o) In the event of a Demand Registration, the Company shall be required to
maintain the continuous effectiveness of the applicable Registration Statement for a period of at
least 180 days after the effective date thereof or such shorter period in which all Registrable
Securities included in such Registration Statement have actually been sold.

(d)  The Investors’ Representative (or in the case of a Joint Demand
Registration, the Joint Representative) shall have the right to notify the Company that it has
determined that the Registration Statement relating to a Demand Registration or a Joint Demand
Registration, as the case may be, be abandoned or withdrawn, in which event the Company shall
promptly abandon or withdraw such Registration Statement or Joint Demand Registration;
provided, however, that the Company shall not be required to pay for expenses of any
registration proceeding begun pursuant to Section 4.2(a) hereof, which has been subsequently
withdrawn pursuant to this Section 4.2(d) at the request of the Investors’ Representative (or in
the case of a Joint Demand Registration, the Joint Representative), and shall be reimbursed by
the Investors (or in the event of a Joint Demand Registration by each of the Investors and MSD
on a pro rata basis) whose Registrable Securities were intended to be included in the Demand
Registration Statement or Joint Demand Registration for reasonable and documented out-of-
pocket expenses (including legal fees and printing expenses) so incurred, unless the withdrawal
is based upon material adverse information concerning the Company that the Company had not
publicly disclosed at least two (2) Business Days prior to the Company’s receipt of such Demand
Notice.

(e) Subject to Section 4.4, with the prior written consent of the Investors’
Representative (which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed), the
Company shall be entitled to coordinate any offerings under this Section 4.2 with any offerings
to be effected pursuant to similar agreements with the holders of Other Securities, including, if
practicable, by filing one Registration Statement for all Other Securities.

SECTION 4.3.  Piggyback Registration.

(@) At any time following the expiration of the Relevant Restricted Period, if,
other than pursuant to Sections 4.1 and a Demand Registration requested by an Investor (as
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defined in this Agreement), the Company proposes to file a registration statement under the
Securities Act with respect to an offering by the Company for its own account (other than a
registration statement (a) on Form S-4, Form S-8 or any successor forms thereto, (b) filed solely
in connection with any employee benefit or dividend reinvestment plan or (c) for the purpose of
effecting a rights offering relating to the Company Common Stock) or for the account of any of
its security holders, the Company will give to each Investor written notice of such filing at least
fifteen (15) days prior to the anticipated filing date (the “Piggyback Notice”). The Piggyback
Notice shall offer each Investor, subject to the restrictions set forth in Section 3.2, the
opportunity to include in such registration statement the number of Registrable Securities (for
purposes of this Section 4.3, “Registrable Securities” shall be deemed to mean solely securities
of the same type and class as those proposed to be offered by the Company for its own account)
as they may request (a “Piggyback Registration”). Subject to Section 4.3(b), the Company shall
include in each such Piggyback Registration all Registrable Securities with respect to which the
Company has received written requests for inclusion therein within seven (7) days after notice
has been given to the Investors. The Company shall be required to maintain the effectiveness of
the Registration Statement for a Piggyback Registration for a period of 180 days after the
effective date thereof or such shorter period in which all Registrable Securities included in such
Registration Statement have actually been sold.

(b)  If any of the securities to be registered pursuant to the registration giving
rise to the Investors’ rights under this Section 4.3 are to be sold in an underwritten offering, the
Investors shall be permitted to include all Registrable Securities requested to be included in such
registration in such offering on the same terms and conditions as any other shares of Capital
Stock, if any, of the Company included therein; provided, however, that if such offering involves
a firm commitment underwritten offering and the managing underwriter(s) of such underwritten
offering advise the Investors in writing that it is their good faith opinion that the total number or
dollar amount of Registrable Securities proposed to be sold in such offering, together with all
Other Securities that the Company and any other Persons having rights to participate in such
registration intend to include in such offering, exceeds the t otal number or dollar amount of such
securities that can be sold without having an adverse effect on the price, timing or distribution of
the Registrable Securities to be so included together with all such Other Securities, then there
shall be included in such firm commitment underwritten offering the number or dollar amount of
Registrable Securities and such Other Securities that in the opinion of such managing
underwriter(s) can be sold without so adversely affecting such offering, and such number of
Registrable Securities and Other Securities shall be allocated for inclusion as follows:

(i) first, all Other Securities being sold by the Company or by any
Person (other than an Investor) exercising a contractual right to demand registration
pursuant to which such registration statement was filed; provided that if the
registration statement triggering the Piggyback Notice was for an offering for the
account of MSD pursuant to the terms of the MSD Stockholder Agreement and the
Investors request a corresponding Piggyback Registration pursuant to this Section
4.3(b), then the priority in this clause (i) shall be allocated pro rata between MSD and
the Investors (based on the number of Registrable Securities requested to be
registered by such Person); and
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(ii) second, among any other holders of Registrable Securities or Other
Securities requesting such registration, pro rata, based on the aggregate number of
Registrable Securities and Other Securities Beneficially Owned by each such holder.

(o) The Company shall have the right to terminate or withdraw any
registration initiated by it under this Section 4.3 prior to the effectiveness of the related
Registration Statement and shall have no obligation to register any Registrable Securities in
connection with such registration, except to the extent provided herein. The Registration
Expenses of such withdrawn Piggyback Registration shall be borne by the Company in
accordance with Section 4.4 hereof.

(d)  Any Investor shall have the right to withdraw its request for inclusion of
its Registrable Securities in any Piggyback Registration by giving written notice to the Company
of its request to withdraw at least two (2) Business Days prior to the planned effective date of the
related Registration Statement; provided, however, that the Company shall not be required to pay
for expenses of any registration proceeding begun pursuant to this Section 4.3, which has been
subsequently withdrawn pursuant to this Section 4.3(d) at the request of the applicable Investor,
and shall be reimbursed by the Investors whose Registrable Securities were intended to be
included in the Piggyback Registration for reasonable and documented out-of-pocket expenses
(including legal fees and printing expenses) so incurred, unless the withdrawal is based upon
material adverse information concerning the Company that the Company h ad not publicly
disclosed at least two (2) Business Days prior to the Company’s receipt of such Piggyback
Notice.

SECTION 4.4. Registration Expenses. In connection with registrations pursuant to
Sections 4.1, 4.2 and 4.3 hereof, the Company shall pay all of the registration expenses incurred
in connection with the registration thereunder (the “Registration Expenses”), including, without
limitation, all: (a) reasonable registration and filing fees, (b) reasonable fees and expenses of
compliance with securities or blue sky laws (including reasonable fees and disbursements of
counsel in connection with blue sky qualifications of the Registrable Securities), (c) reasonable
processing, duplicating and printing expenses, (d) internal expenses of the Company (including,
without limitation, all salaries and expenses of its officers and employees performing legal or
accounting duties), (e) fees and expenses incurred in connection with the listing of the
Registrable Securities, (f ) fees and disbursements of counsel for the Company, fees and
expenses for independent certified public accountants retained by the Company (including the
expenses of any comfort letters or costs associated with the delivery by independent certified
public accountants of a comfort letter or comfort letters requested but not the cost of any audit
other than a year end audit) and reasonable and documented fees and expenses of one counsel
(including applicable local counsel as necessary) for the Selling Investors not in excess of
$50,000 and (g) fees and expenses of any special experts retained by the Company in connection
with such registration. Notwithstanding the foregoing, each Selling Investor shall be responsible
for (i) any underwriting fees, discounts or commissions, (ii) any commissions of brokers and
dealers, and (iii) capital gains, income and transfer taxes, if any, relating to the sale of
Registrable Securities of such Selling Investor. For purposes of this Section 4.4, the term
“Selling Investor” shall include Persons who are “Selling Investors” under the MSD
Stockholders Agreement.
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SECTION 4.5. Registration Procedures.

(a) In connection with the registration of any Registrable Securities pursuant
to this Agreement:

()] The Company shall prepare and file with the SEC a Registration
Statement with respect to such Registrable Securities as provided herein, make all
required filings with FINRA and use commercially reasonable efforts to keep each
Registration Statement continuously effective during the period such Registration
Statement is required to remain effective pursuant to the terms of this Agreement; upon
the occurrence of any event that would cause the Registration Statement or the
Prospectus contained therein (A) to contain a material misstatement or omission or (B)
not to be effective and usable for resale of Registrable Securities during the period such
Registration Statement is required to remain effective pursuant to the terms of this
Agreement, the Company shall file promptly an appropriate amendment to the
Registration Statement, a supplement to the Prospectus or a report filed with the SEC
pursuant to Section 13(a ), 13(c), 14 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act, in the case of clause
(A), correcting any such misstatement or omission, and, in the case of either clause (A) or
(B), the Company shall use commercially reasonable efforts to cause such amendment to
be declared effective and the Registration Statement and the related Prospectus to become
usable for their intended purposes as soon as practicable thereafter.

(ii)  Notwithstanding Section 4.5(a)(i) hereof, the Company may
suspend the effectiveness of a Registration Statement and the Investors’ right to sell
thereunder (each such period, a “Suspension Period”) if the Company reasonably
determines and delivers to the Investors a certificate signed by an officer of the Company
stating that such Registration Statement or further sales under an effective Registration
Statement would have a detrimental effect, as reasonably determined by the Company, on
the Company or a plan currently being considered by the Company or the Board of
Directors. Upon such suspension, the Company shall give notice to the Investors listed in
such Registration Statement that the availability of the Registration Statement is
suspended and, upon actual receipt of such notice, each Investor agrees not to sell any
Registrable Securities pursuant to the Registration Stat ement until the earlier of (1) such
Investor’s receipt of copies of the supplemented or amended Prospectus provided for in
this Section 4.5 or (2) such Investor has been advised in writing by the Company that the
sale of Registrable Securities pursuant to the Registration Statement may resume. A
Suspension Period shall not exceed 90 consecutive days and the aggregate of all
Suspension Periods shall not exceed 180 days in any 360-day period.

(iii)  The Company shall prepare and file with the SEC such
amendments and post-effective amendments to each Registration Statement as may be
necessary to keep such Registration Statement effective during the periods provided
herein.

(iv)  The Company shall advise any Investor that has provided in

writing to the Company a telephone or facsimile number and address for notice, promptly
(which notice pursuant to clauses (B) through (D) below shall be accompanied by an

-16-



instruction to suspend the use of the Prospectus until the Company shall have remedied
the basis for such suspension):

(A)  when the Prospectus or any Prospectus supplement or post-effective
amendment is proposed to be or has been filed, and, with respect to the
Registration Statement or any post-effective amendment thereto, when the
same has become effective;

(B) of any request by the SEC or any other Governmental Entity for
amendments to the Registration Statement or amendments or supplements
to the Prospectus or for additional information relating thereto;

(C)  of the issuance by the SEC of any stop order suspending the effectiveness
of the Registration Statement under the Securities Act or of the suspension
by any state securities commission of the qualification of the Registrable
Securities for offering or sale in any jurisdiction, or the threatening or
initiation of any proceeding for any of the preceding purposes;

(D)  of the receipt by the Company of any notification with respect to the
suspension of the qualification or exemption from qualification of any of
the Registrable Securities for sale in any jurisdiction, or the initiation or
threatening of any proceeding for such purpose; or

(E)  of the existence of any fact or the happening of any event, during the
period in which a Registration Statement remains effective under the
Securities Act, that makes any statement of a material fact made in such
Registration Statement, the Prospectus, any amendment or supplement
thereto, or any document incorporated by reference therein untrue, or that
requires the making of any additions to or changes in the Registration
Statement or the Prospectus in order to make the statements therein not
misleading.

(v)  The Company shall, unless any Registrable Securities shall be in
book-entry form only, cooperate with the Investors to facilitate the timely preparation and
delivery of certificates representing Registrable Securities to be sold and not bearing any
restrictive legends (unless required by applicable securities Laws), and enable such
Registrable Securities to be in such denominations and registered in such names as the
Investors may request at least two (2) Business Days before any sale of Registrable
Securities. In connection therewith, if reasonably required by the Company’s transfer
agent, the Company shall promptly deliver any authorizations, certificates and directions
required by the transfer agent which authorize and direct the transfer agent to issue such
Registrable Securities without legend upon sale by the holder of such shares of
Registrable Securities under the Registration Statement.

(vi)  The Company shall use commercially reasonable efforts to
promptly register or qualify any Registrable Securities under such other securities or blue
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sky laws of such jurisdictions within the United States as any Investor reasonably
requests and which may be reasonably necessary or advisable to enable such Investor to
consummate the disposition in such jurisdictions of the Registrable Securities owned by
such Investor, keep such registrations or qualifications in effect for so long as the
Registration Statement remains in effect and do any and all other acts and things which
may be reasonably necessary or advisable to enable such Investor to consummate the
disposition in such jurisdictions of the Registrable Securities owned by such Investor;
provided, however, that the Company will not be required to (A) qualify generally to do
business in any jurisdiction where it would not otherwise be required to qualify but for
this Agreement, (B) subject itself to taxation in any jurisdiction where it would not
otherwise be subjec t to taxation but for this Agreement or (C) consent to general service
of process in any jurisdiction where it would not otherwise be subject to such service but
for this Agreement.

(vii) The Company shall use commercially reasonable efforts to
promptly cause any Registrable Securities covered by a Registration Statement to be
registered with or approved by such other Governmental Entity within the United States
as may be necessary to enable the seller or sellers thereof to consummate the disposition
of such Registrable Securities in accordance with the intended methods of disposition set
forth in such Registration Statement.

(viii) The Company shall, in the event that the Investors’ Representative
advises the Company that an Investor intends to distribute any Registrable Securities by
means of an underwritten offering, whether pursuant to Section 4.1, 4.2 or 4.3, enter into
an underwriting agreement in customary form, scope and substance and take all such
other actions reasonably requested by the Investors owning a majority of the Registrable
Securities being sold in connection therewith or by the managing underwriter(s), if any,
to expedite or facilitate the underwritten disposition of such Registrable Securities and
deliver such documents and certificates as may be reasonably requested by the Investors
of a majority of the Registrable Securities being sold in connection therewith, their
counsel and the managing underwriter(s), if any.

(ix)  Use its commercially reasonable efforts to prevent, or obtain the
withdrawal of, any stop order or other order suspending the use of any Prospectus.

(x)  Deliver to each Selling Investor and each underwriter, if any,
without charge, as many copies of the applicable Prospectus and any amendment or
supplement thereto as such Selling Investor or underwriter may reasonably request.

(xi)  Cooperate with each Selling Investor and the underwriters, if any,
of such Registrable Securities and their respective counsel in connection with any filings
required by Law to be made with FINRA.

(xii) Obtain opinions of counsel to the Company and updates thereof

addressed to each Selling Investor and the underwriters or initial purchasers, if any,
covering matters as are customarily requested in opinions covering secondary resale
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offerings of companies of comparable size, maturities and lines of business as the
Company.

(xiii) Obtain "comfort" letters and updates thereof from the Company's
independent certified public accountants, such letters covering matters as are customarily
requested in comfort letters covering secondary resale offerings of companies of
comparable size, maturities and lines of business as the Company.

(b)  Each Investor agrees by acquisition of a Registrable Security that no
Investor shall be entitled to sell any of such Registrable Securities pursuant to a Registration
Statement, or to receive a Prospectus relating thereto, unless such Investor has furnished the
Company with a Notice and Questionnaire (including the information required to be included in
such Notice and Questionnaire) and the information set forth in the next sentence. The Company
may require each Investor selling Registrable Securities pursuant to a Registration Statement to
furnish to the Company such information regarding such Investor and the distribution of such
Company Common Stock as the Company may from time to time reasonably require for
inclusion in such Registration Statement. Each such Investor agrees promptly to furnish to the
Company all information required to be disclosed in order to make the information previously
furnished to the Comp any by such Investor not misleading. Any sale of any Registrable
Securities by any Investor shall constitute a representation and warranty by such Investor that the
information relating to such Investor and its plan of distribution is as set forth in the Prospectus
delivered in connection with such disposition, that such Prospectus does not as of the time of
such sale contain any untrue statement of a material fact relating to or provided by such Investor
or its plan of distribution and that such Prospectus does not as of the time of such sale omit to
state any material fact relating to or provided by such Investor or its plan of distribution
necessary to make the statements in such Prospectus, in light of the circumstances under which
they were made, not misleading. The Company may exclude from such Registration Statement
the Registrable Securities of any Investor that fails to furnish such information within a
reasonable time after receiving such request. The Company shall not include in any Re gistration
Statement any information regarding, relating to or referring to any Investor or its plan of
distribution without the approval of such Investor in writing.

(c)  No Investor shall use any free writing prospectus (as defined in Rule 405
under the Securities Act) in connection with the sale of Registrable Securities without the prior
written consent of the Company (which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned
or delayed).

(d)  If any offering of Registrable Securities pursuant to a Shelf Registration
Statement or any Demand Registration is an underwritten offering, it is agreed that, unless the
Company otherwise consents in writing, either Barclays Capital Inc., Deutsche Bank Securities
Inc., Credit Suisse Securities (USA) LLC or Banc of America Securities LL.C shall be either the
managing underwriter or lead book running manager.

SECTION 4.6. Indemnification.

(a) The Company shall indemnify and hold harmless, to the fullest extent
permitted by Law (i) each Selling Investor whose Registrable Securities are covered by a
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Registration Statement or Prospectus, (ii) the officers, directors, partners (limited and general),
members, managers, representatives, agents and employees of each of such Selling Investors,
(iii) each member, limited or general partner of each such member, limited or general partner,
(iv) each Person who controls (within the meaning of Section 15 of the Securities Act or Section
20 of the Exchange Act) each such Selling Investor and such controlling Person’s Affiliates,
officers, directors, shareholders, employees, advisors and agents , (v) each underwriter (including
any Investor that is deemed to be an underwriter pursuant to any SEC comments or policies), if
any, and (vi) each Person who controls (within the meaning of Section 15 of the Securities Act or
Section 20 of the Exchange Act) such underwriter (collectively, “Investor Indemnitees™), from
and against all losses, claims, damages, liabilit ies, penalties, judgments, suits, costs and
expenses (including legal fees and expenses) (collectively, “Losses”) in connection with any sale
of Registrable Securities pursuant to a Registration Statement arising out of or based upon (i) any
violation or alleged violation of the Securities Act or any rule or regulation promulgated
thereunder by the Company or any of its Affiliates, employees, officers, directors or agents or (ii)
any untrue or alleged untrue statement of a material fact contained in any Registration Statement
or any Prospectus (including preliminary or final) relating to the registration of such Registrable
Securities or any amendment or supplement thereto or any document incorporated by reference
therein or any omission or alleged omission to state therein a material fact required to be stated
therein or necessary to make the statements therein, in light of the circumstances in which they
were made, not misleading; provided, however, that the Company shall not be liable to such
Investor Indemnitee in any such case to the extent that any such loss, claim, damage, liability or
expense arises out of or is based upon (A) an untrue statement or alleged untrue statement or
omission or alleged omission made in such Registration Statement, including any such
preliminary or final Prospectus contained therein or any such amendments or supplements
thereto, or contained in any free writing prospectus (as such term is defined in Rule 405 under
the Securities Act) prepared by the Company or authorized by it in writing for use by such
Investor Indemnitee (or any amendment or supplement thereto), in reliance upon and in
conformity with information regarding such Investor Indemnitee or its plan of distribution or
ownership interests which was furnished in writing to the Company for use in connection with
such Registration Statement, including any such preliminary or final Prospectus contained
therein or any such amendments or supplements thereto, (B) offers or sales effected by o r on
behalf of such Investor Indemnitee “by means of” (as defined in Rule 159A under the Securities
Act) a “free writing prospectus” (as defined in Rule 405 under the Securities Act) that was not
authorized in writing by the Company or (C) the failure of any Investor Indemnitee to deliver or
make available to a purchaser of Registrable Securities a copy of any Registration Statement,
including any preliminary or final Prospectus contained therein or any amendments or
supplements thereto (if the same was required by applicable Law to be delivered or made
available); provided, that the Company shall have delivered to such Investor Indemnitee such
Registration Statement, including such preliminary or final Prospectus contained therein and any
amendments or supplements thereto.

(b)  In connection with any Registration Statement in which a Selling Investor
is participating by registering Registrable Securities, such Selling Investor agrees to indemnify
and hold harmless, to the fullest extent permitted by Law, severally and not jointly, the Company,
the officers, directors, agents, representatives or other employees of the Company, each Person
who controls (within the meaning of Section 15 of the Securities Act or Section 20 of the
Exchange Act) the Company, each underwriter, if any, and each Person who controls
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(within the meaning of Section 15 of the Securities Act or Section 20 of the Exchange Act) such
underwriter (collectively, “Company Indemnitees”), from and against all Losses, as incurred,
arising out of or based on any untrue or alleged untrue statement of a material fact contained in
any such Registration Statement or preliminary or final Prospectus relating to the registration of
such Registrable Securities or any amendment or supplement thereto or any document
incorporated by reference therein, or any omission or alleged omission to state therein a material
fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements therein, in light of the
circumstances in which they were made, not misleading, in each case solely to the extent that
such untrue or alleged untrue statement or omission or alleged omission is made in such
Registration Statement or in any preliminary or final Prospectus contain ed therein or any such
amendments or supplements thereto or contained in any free writing prospectus (as such term is
defined in Rule 405 under the Securities Act) in reliance upon and in conformity with written
information furnished to the Company by such Selling Investor expressly for inclusion in such
document.

(© If any Person shall be entitled to indemnity hereunder (an “Indemnified
Party”), such Indemnified Party shall give prompt notice to the party from which such indemnity
is sought (the “Indemnifying Party”) of any claim or of the commencement of any Action with
respect to which such Indemnified Party seeks indemnification or contribution pursuant hereto;
provided, however, that the delay or failure to so notify the Indemnifying Party shall not relieve
the Indemnifying Party from any obligation or liability except to the extent that the Indemnifying
Party has been actually prejudiced by such delay or failure. The Indemnifying Party shall have
the right, exercisable by giving written notice to an Indemnified Party promptly after the receipt
of written notice from such Indemnified Party of such claim or Action, to assume, at the
Indemnifying Party’s expense, the defense of any such Action, with counsel reasonably
satisfactory to such Indemnified Party; provided, however, that an Indemnified Party shall have
the right to employ separate counsel in any such Action and to participate in the defense thereof,
but the fees and expenses of such counsel shall be at the expense of such Indemnified Party
unless: (i) the Indemnifying Party agrees to pay such fees and expenses; (ii) the Indemnifying
Party fails promptly to assume, or in the event of a conflict of interest cannot assume, the defense
of such Action or fails to employ counsel reasonably satisfactory to such Indemnified Party, in
which case the Indemnified Party shall also have the right to employ counsel and to assume the
defense of such Action or (iii) in the Indemnified Party’s reasonable judgment a conflict of
interest between such Indemnified Party and Indemnifying Party may exist in respect of such
Action; provided, further, that the Indemnifying Party shall not, in connection with any one such
Action or separate but substantially similar or related Actions in the same jurisdiction, arising out
of the same general allegations or circumstances, be liable for the fees and expenses of more than
one firm of attorneys (together with appropriate local counsel) at any time for all of the
Indemnified Parties, or for fees and expenses that are not reasonable. Whether or not such
defense is assumed by the Indemnifying Party, neither the Indemnifying Party nor the
Indemnified Party will be subject to any liability for, or otherwise effect, any settlement made
without the consent of the other (but such consent shall not be unreasonably withheld,
conditioned or delayed).

(d)  Neither party shall settle, compromise, discharge or consent to an entry of
judgment with respect to a claim or liability subject to indemnification under this Section 4.6
without the other parties’ prior written consent (which consent shall not be unreasonably
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withheld, conditioned or delayed); provided that the Indemnifying Party may agree without the
prior written consent of the Indemnified Party to any settlement, compromise, discharge or
consent to an entry of judgment, in each case that relates only to money damages and by its
terms obligates the Indemnifying Party to pay the full amount of the liability in connection with
such claim and which unconditionally releases the Indemnified Party from all liability in
connection with such claim.

(e) If the indemnification provided for in this Section 4.6 is unavailable to
hold harmless each of the Indemnified Parties against any losses, claims, damages, liabilities and
expenses to which such parties may become subject under the Securities Act, then the
Indemnifying Party shall, in lieu of indemnifying each party entitled to indemnification
hereunder, contribute to the amount paid or payable by such party as a result of such losses,
claims, damages, liabilities or expenses in such proportion as is appropriate to reflect the relative
fault of the Indemnifying Party on the one hand and such Indemnified Parties on the other in
connection with the statements or omissions or alleged statements or omissions that resulted in
such losses, claims, damages, liabilities or expenses. The relative fault of such parties shall be
determined by reference to, among other things, whether the untrue or alleged untrue statement
of a material fact, or omission or alleged omission to state a material fact, relates to information
supplied by or concerning the Indemnifying Party on the one hand, or by such Indemnified Party
on the other, and such party’s relative intent, knowledge, access to information and opportunity
to have corrected or prevented such statement or omission. No Person guilty of fraudulent
misrepresentation (within the meaning of the Securities Act) shall be entitled to contribution
from any Person that is not guilty of such fraudulent misrepresentation.

SECTION 4.7.  Miscellaneous.

(@)  With a view to making available the benefits of certain rules and
regulations of the SEC which may at any time permit the sale of the Registrable Securities to the
public without registration, the Company agrees, so long as there are outstanding Registrable
Securities, to use commercially reasonable efforts to:

@A) Make and keep public information available, as those terms are
understood and defined in Rule 144 under the Securities Act (as amended from time to
time) or any similar or analogous rule promulgated under the Securities Act, at all times
after the effective date of this Agreement;

(ii))  file with the SEC in a timely manner all reports and other
documents as the SEC may prescribe under the Exchange Act at any time while the
Company is subject to such reporting requirements of the Exchange Act;

(iii)  furnish to the Investors forthwith upon a reasonable request a
written statement by the Company as to its compliance with the reporting requirements of
Rule 144 (as amended from time to time) and of the Securities Act and of the Exchange
Act; a copy of the most recent annual or quarterly report of the Company; and such other
reports and documents as the Investors’ Representative on behalf of the Investor may
reasonably request in availing itself of any rule or regulation of the SEC allowing it to
sell any such Registrable Securities without registration; and
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(iv)  take such further action as any Investor may reasonably request, so
as to enable such Investor to sell Registrable Securities without registration under the
Securities Act within the limitations of the exemptions provided by Rule 144 under the
Securities Act (as amended from time to time) or any successor or similar rule or
regulation thereafter adopted by the SEC.

(b) Subject to the provisions hereof, in the event the Company proposes to
enter into an underwritten public offering, each Investor who, at such time, Beneficially Owns
Preferred Stock (which for the purposes of this subsection, shall include any Company Common
Stock issuable by the Company upon conversion of any shares of Preferred Stock) and Company
Common Stock that, in the aggregate, is equal to at least four percent (4%) of the total number of
shares of Company Common Stock then outstanding agrees to enter into a customary agreement
with the managing underwriters not to effect any sale or distribution of equity securities of the
Company, or any securities convertible, exchangeable or exercisable for or into such securities,
during the period beginning up to two (2) days prior to the date of such offering and extending
for up to 90 days following the effective date of such offering if so requested by the Company
and the underwri ters. The Company may impose stop-transfer restrictions with respect to the
securities subject to the foregoing restriction until the end of the required stand-off period and
shall lift such stop-transfer restrictions immediately upon the end of such period.

ARTICLE V
TERMINATION

SECTION 5.1.  Termination. Other than the termination provisions applicable to
particular Sections of this Agreement that are specifically provided elsewhere in this Agreement,
this Agreement shall terminate (a) upon the mutual written agreement of the Company and the
Investors holding a majority of the shares of Preferred Stock then held by the Investors in the
aggregate and (b) with respect to any Investor, at such time as such Investor ceases to hold
Registrable Securities.

ARTICLE VI
MISCELLANEOUS

SECTION 6.1. Amendment and Modification. This Agreement may be amended,
modified and supplemented, and any of the provisions contained herein may be waived, only by
a written instrument signed by the Company and by the Investors holding a majority of the
Shares then held by the Investors in the aggregate. No course of dealing between or among any
Persons having any interest in this Agreement will be deemed effective to modify, amend or
discharge any part of this Agreement or any rights or obligations of any Person under or by
reason of this Agreement.

SECTION 6.2.  Assignment; No Third-Party Beneficiaries.

(@) Neither this Agreement, nor any of the rights, interests or obligations
hereunder shall be assigned by any of the parties hereto (whether by operation of Law or
otherwise) without the prior written consent of the other parties; provided, however that (i) each
Investor may assign its rights, interests and obligations under this Agreement to any Affiliate of
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such Investor in connection with a transfer of Shares to such Person and (ii) in the event of such
assignment, the assignee shall agree in writing to be bound by the provisions of this Agreement.

(b)  This Agreement shall not confer any rights or remedies upon any Person
other than the parties to this Agreement and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

SECTION 6.3. Binding Effect; Entire Agreement. This Agreement and all of the
provisions hereof shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their
respective successors and assigns and executors, administrators and heirs. This Agreement, the
LNK Purchase Agreement and the other agreements set forth herein, including the Certificate of
Designations of the Preferred Stock, set forth the entire agreement and understanding between
the parties as to the subject matter hereof and merges and supersedes all prior discussions,
agreements and understandings of any and every nature among them.

SECTION 6.4.  Severability. If one or more provisions of this Agreement are held to
be unenforceable under applicable Law, such provision(s) shall be excluded from this Agreement
and the balance of this Agreement shall be interpreted as if such provisions were so excluded and
shall be enforceable in accordance with its terms so long as the economic or legal substance of
the transactions contemplated by this Agreement are not affected in any manner materially
adverse to any party.

SECTION 6.5. Notices and Addresses. Any notice, demand, request, waiver, or other
communication under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly
given on the date of service, if personally served or sent by facsimile; on the Business Day after
notice is delivered to a courier or mailed by express mail, if sent by courier delivery service or
express mail for next day delivery; and on the third day after mailing, if mailed to the party to
whom notice is to be given, by first class mail, registered, return receipt requested, postage
prepaid and addressed as follows:

If to the Company:

Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation
200 Madison Avenue

New York, New York 10016
Attention: Mark D. Fischer, Esq.
Facsimile: (212) 381-3993

with a copy (which shall not constitute notice) to:

Wachtell, Lipton, Rosen & Katz

51 West 52nd Street

New York, New York 10019

Attention: Andrew J. Nussbaum, Esq.
Gregory E. Ostling, Esq.

Facsimile: (212) 403-2000
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If to any Investor, at the most current address, and with a copy to be sent to each
additional address given by such Investor to the Company in writing, and copies (which shall not
constitute notice) sent to:

LNK Partners, L.P.

81 Main Street

White Plains, NY 10601
Attention: David A. Landau
Facsimile: (914) 824-5901
Telephone: (914) 824-5900

or

LNK Partners (Parallel), L.P.
c/o LNK Partners, L.P.

81 Main Street

White Plains, NY 10601
Attention: David A. Landau
Facsimile: (914) 824-5901
Telephone: (914) 824-5900

with a copy (which shall not constitute notice) to:

Kirkland & Ellis LLP

601 Lexington Avenue

New York, New York 10022

Attention: Kim Taylor

Facsimile: (212) 446-6460

SECTION 6.6. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed
in accordance with the Laws of the State of Delaware, without giving effect to any choice of law
or conflict of law provision or rule (whether of the State of Delaware or any other jurisdiction)
that would cause the application of the Law of any jurisdiction other than the State of Delaware.

SECTION 6.7. Headings. The headings in this Agreement are for convenience of
reference only and shall not constitute a part of this Agreement, nor shall they affect its meaning,
construction or effect.

SECTION 6.8. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed via facsimile or
electronic mail and in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an
original instrument and all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument.

SECTION 6.9.  Further Assurances. Each party shall cooperate and take such action as
may be reasonably requested by another party in order to carry out the provisions and purposes
of this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby.

SECTION 6.10. Remedies. In the event of a breach or a threatened breach by any party
to this Agreement of its obligations under this Agreement, any party injured or to be injured by
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such breach will be entitled to specific performance of its rights under this Agreement or to
injunctive relief, in addition to being entitled to exercise all rights provided in this Agreement
and granted by Law, it being agreed by the parties that the remedy at Law, including monetary
damages, for breach of any such provision will be inadequate compensation for any loss and that
any defense or objection in any action for specific performance or injunctive relief for which a
remedy at Law would be adequate is waived.

SECTION 6.11. Jurisdiction and Venue. The parties hereto hereby irrevocably submit
to the jurisdiction of the Delaware Court of Chancery or, in the event (but only in the event) that
such court does not have subject matter jurisdiction over such action or proceeding, in the United
States District Court for the District of Delaware in respect of the interpretation and enforcement
of the provisions of this Agreement and of the documents referred to in this Agreement, and in
respect of the transactions contemplated hereby, and hereby waive, and agree not to assert, as a
defense in any action, suit or proceeding for the interpretation or enforcement hereof or of any
such document, that it is not subject thereto or that such action, suit or proceeding may not be
brought or is not maintainable in the Delaware Court of Chancery, or in the event (but only in the
event) that such court does not have subject matt er jurisdiction over such action or proceeding,
in the United States District Court for the District of Delaware, or that this Agreement or any
such document may not be enforced in or by such courts, and the parties hereto irrevocably agree
that all claims with respect to such action or proceeding shall be heard and determined in the
Delaware Court of Chancery, or in the event (but only in the event) that such court does not have
subject matter jurisdiction over such action or proceeding, in the United States District Court for
the District of Delaware. The parties hereto hereby consent to and grant the Delaware Court of
Chancery, or in the event (but only in the event) that such court does not have subject matter
jurisdiction over such action or proceeding, the United States District Court for the District of
Delaware, jurisdiction over the person of such parties and, to the extent permitted by Law, over
the subject matter of such dispute and agree that mailing of process or other papers in connection
with any such action or proceeding in the manner provided in Section 6.5 or in such other
manner as may be permitted by Law shall be valid and sufficient service thereof.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Stockholders Agreement
to be duly executed as of the date and year first above written.

PHILLIPS-VAN HEUSEN CORPORATION

By: /s/ Mark D. Fischer
Name: Mark D. Fischer
Title:  Senior Vice President

LNK PARTNERS, L.P.

By: LNK GenPar, L.P.
Its: General Partner

By: LNK MPG, LLC
Its: General Partner

By: /s/ David Landau
Name: David Landau
Its: President

LNK PARTNERS (PARALLEL), L.P.

By: LNK GenPar, L.P.
Its: General Partner

By: LNK MPG, LLC
Its: General Partner

By: /s/ David Landau

Name: David Landau
Its: President
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STOCKHOLDER AGREEMENT

THIS STOCKHOLDER AGREEMENT, dated as of May 6, 2010 (this “Agreement”), by
and between Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation, a Delaware corporation (the “Company”) and
MSD Brand Investments, LL.C, a Delaware limited liability company (the “Investor”).

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, (a) LNK Partners, L.P., a Delaware limited partnership, LNK Partners
(Parallel), L.P., a Delaware limited partnership (together, with LNK Partners, L.P., “LNK”) and
the Company have entered into that certain Securities Purchase Agreement, dated as of March
15, 2010 (the “LNK Purchase Agreement”), pursuant to which LNK will purchase 4,000 shares
of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock of the Company (the “Preferred Stock”) and (b) the
Investor and the Company have entered into that certain Securities Purchase Agreement, dated as
of March 15, 2010 (the “MSD Purchase Agreement” and, together with the LNK Purchase
Agreement, the “Purchase Agreements”), pursuant to which the Investor will purchase 4,000
shares of the Preferred Stock, which will collectively constitute all of the issued and outstanding
shares of the Preferred Stock; and

WHEREAS, it is a condition precedent to the purchase of such Preferred Stock under the
MSD Purchase Agreement that the Company enter into this Agreement with the Investor to
provide for certain agreements and obligations of the parties following the closing of the
transactions contemplated by the MSD Purchase Agreement (the “Closing”).

AGREEMENT:

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing premises and the mutual
covenants and agreements contained herein and for other good and valuable consideration, the
receipt and adequacy of which are hereby acknowledged, intending to be legally bound, the
parties hereto agree as follows:

ARTICLE I
DEFINITIONS

SECTION 1.1.  Definitions. The following terms shall have the meanings ascribed to
them below:

“Affiliate” of a Person has the meaning set forth in Rule 12b-2 under the Exchange Act.
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in this Agreement, no limited partner or
similar participant of the Investor shall be deemed an Affiliate of the Investor.

“Agreement” means this Agreement, as amended, modified or supplemented from time to
time, in accordance with the terms hereof, together with any exhibits, schedules or other

attachments hereto.

“Alternative Transaction” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.1.



“Beneficially Own” with respect to any securities means having “beneficial ownership”
of such securities (as determined pursuant to Rule 13d-3 under the Exchange Act without
limitation by the 60-day provision in paragraph (d)(1)(i) thereof). The terms “Beneficial
Ownership” and “Beneficial Owner” have correlative meanings.

“Board” or “Board of Directors” means the Board of Directors of the Company.

“Business Day” means a day, other than a Saturday or Sunday, on which commercial
banks in New York City are open for the general transaction of business.

“Capital Stock” means, with respect to any Person at any time, any and all shares,
interests, participations or other equivalents (however designated, whether voting or non-voting)
of capital stock, partnership interests (whether general or limited) or equivalent ownership
interests in or issued by such Person.

“Change of Control” means the existence or occurrence of any of the following: (a) the
sale, conveyance or disposition of all or substantially all of the assets of the Company, (b) the
consolidation, merger or other business combination of the Company with or into any other
entity, immediately following which the then current stockholders of the Company fail to own,
directly or indirectly, at least Majority Voting Power, (c) a transaction or series of transactions in
which any person or “group” (as such term is used in Sections 13(d) and 14(d) of the Exchange
Act) acquires Majority Voting Power (other than (i) a reincorporation or similar corporate
transaction in which the Company’s stockholders own, immediately thereafter, interests in the
new parent company in essentially the same percentage as they owned in the Company
immediately prior to such transaction, or (ii) a transaction descri bed in clause (b) (such as a
triangular merger) in which the threshold in clause (b) is not passed) or (d) the replacement of a
majority of the Board of Directors with individuals who were not nominated or elected by at
least a majority of the directors at the time of such replacement.

“Closing” has the meaning ascribed thereto in the recitals of this Agreement.
“Closing Date” means the date on which the Closing occurs.
“Company” has the meaning set forth in the preamble of this Agreement.

“Company Common Stock” means the common stock, par value $1.00 per share, of the
Company.

“Company Indemnitees” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.6(b).
“Demand Notice” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.2(a).

“Demand Registration” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.2(a).

“Demand Registration Statement” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.2(a).

“Director” means a director of the Company.



“Exchange Act” means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

“Governmental Entity” means any United States or foreign (a) federal, state, local,
municipal or other government, (b) governmental or quasi-governmental entity of any nature
(including, without limitation, any governmental agency, branch, department, official or entity
and any court or other tribunal), or (c) body exercising or entitled to exercise any administrative,
executive, judicial, legislative, police, regulatory or taxing authority or power of any nature,
including, without limitation, any arbitral tribunal.

“Indemnified Party” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.6(c).

“Indemnifying Party” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.6(c).

“Investor” has the meaning set forth in the preamble of this Agreement.

“Investor Indemnitees” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.6(a).

“Joint Demand Registration” means a Demand Registration delivered jointly and
identified as such by the Investor, on the one hand, and LNK, on the other hand.

“Joint Shelf Take-Down Notice” means a Shelf Take-Down Notice delivered jointly and
identified as such by the Investor, on the one hand, and LNK, on the other hand.

“Joint Representative” means any Person designated as such in a Joint Demand
Registration.

“Law” means any applicable federal, state, local or foreign law, statute, ordinance, rule,
guideline, regulation, order, writ, decree, agency requirement, license or permit of any
Governmental Entity.

“LNK” has the meaning ascribed thereto in the recitals of this Agreement.

“LNK Purchase Agreement” has the meaning ascribed thereto in the recitals of this
Agreement.

“LNK Stockholders Agreement” means the Stockholders Agreement, dated as of the date
hereof, by and between the Company and LNK.

“Losses” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.6(a).
“Majority Voting Power” of the resulting corporation or of the Company shall mean a
majority of the ordinary voting power in the election of Directors of all the outstanding voting

securities of the resulting corporation or of the Company, respectively.

“MSD Purchase Agreement” has the meaning ascribed thereto in the recitals of this
Agreement.
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“Notice and Questionnaire” means a written notice executed by the Investor and
delivered to the Company containing the information required by Item 507 of Regulation S-K to
be included in any Shelf Registration Statement regarding the Investor.

“NYSE” means the New York Stock Exchange.

“Other Securities” means the Company Common Stock or other securities of the
Company which the Company is registering pursuant to a Registration Statement covered by
Section 3.3.

“Person” shall mean any natural person, corporation, partnership, limited liability
company, joint venture, association, joint-stock company, trust, unincorporated organization or
government or other agency or political subdivision thereof.

“Piggyback Notice” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.3(a).
“Piggyback Registration” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.3(a).
“Preferred Stock” has the meaning ascribed thereto in the recitals of this Agreement.

“Prospectus” means the prospectus included in any Registration Statement, as amended
or supplemented by any prospectus supplement and by all other amendments thereto, including
post-effective amendments, and all material incorporated by reference into such prospectus.

“Purchase Agreements” has the meaning ascribed thereto in the recitals of this
Agreement.

“Registration Expenses” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.4.

“Registrable Securities” means shares of Company Common Stock issued by the
Company upon conversion of any shares of Preferred Stock, as well as any shares of Company
Common Stock or other securities issued as (or issuable upon the conversion or exercise of any
warrant, right or other security which is issued as) a dividend or other distribution with respect
to, or in exchange generally for, or in replacement generally of, such Preferred Stock or other
Registrable Securities and any securities issued in exchange for such Preferred Stock or other
Registrable Securities in any merger, reorganization, consolidation, share exchange,
recapitalization, restructuring or other comparable transaction of the Company. As to any
particular Registrable Securities, once issued such securities shall cease to be Registrable
Securities when (a) a Registration Statement with respect to the sale of such securities by the
Inve stor has been declared effective by the SEC and such securities have been disposed of
pursuant to such effective Registration Statement, (b) such securities shall have been or could be
sold, without being subject to any holding period or volume limitations pursuant to Rule 144,
under circumstances in which all of the applicable conditions of Rule 144 (or any similar
provisions then in force) under the Securities Act are met, (c) such securities have been
otherwise transferred and the Company has delivered a new certificate or other evidence of
ownership for such securities not bearing a restrictive legend and not subject to any stop order,
and such securities may be publicly resold by the Person receiving such certificate without



complying with the registration requirements of the Securities Act or (d) such securities shall
have ceased to be outstanding.

“Registration Statement” means any registration statement of the Company under the
Securities Act which permits the public offering of any of the Registrable Securities pursuant to
the provisions of this Agreement, including the Prospectus, amendments and supplements to
such registration statement, including post-effective amendments, all exhibits and all material
incorporated by reference or deemed to be incorporated by reference in such registration
statement.

“Relevant Restricted Period” means (a) with respect to 50% of the Shares, the period
commencing on the date of this Agreement and ending on the day that is nine (9) months from
the date of this Agreement and (b) with respect to 50% of the Shares, the period commencing on
the date of this Agreement and ending on the day that is twelve (12) months from the date of this
Agreement.

“SEC” means the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission.

“Securities Act” means the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.

“Shares” means the Preferred Stock acquired by the Investor at the Closing and any
Company Common Stock into which such Preferred Stock may be converted pursuant to the

terms of the Certificate of Designations relating to the Preferred Stock.

“Shelf Effective Period” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.1(a).

“Shelf Registration Statement” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.1(a).

“Shelf Take-Down Notice” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.1(b).

“Short Interests” means any agreement, arrangement, understanding or relationship,
including any repurchase or similar so-called “stock borrowing” agreement or arrangement,
engaged in, directly or indirectly, by the Investor or its Affiliates, the purpose or effect of which
is to short shares of Company Common Stock.

“Standstill Period” means the period commencing on the Closing Date and ending on the
nine (9) month anniversary of the Closing Date.

“Subsidiary” means, as to any Person, any other Person more than 50% of the shares of
the voting stock or other voting interests of which are owned or controlled, or the ability to select
or elect more than 50% of the directors or similar managers is held, directly or indirectly, by such
first Person or one or more of its Subsidiaries or by such first Person and one or more of its
Subsidiaries.

“Suspension Period” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.5(a)(ii).

“13D Group” means any group of Persons who, with respect to those acquiring, holding,
voting or disposing of Company Common Stock would, assuming ownership of the requisite



percentage thereof, be required under Section 13(d) of the Exchange Act to file a statement on
Schedule 13D with the SEC as a “person” within the meaning of Section 13(d)(3) of the
Exchange Act.

SECTION 1.2.  General Interpretive Principles. Whenever used in this Agreement,
except as otherwise expressly provided or unless the context otherwise requires, any noun or
pronoun shall be deemed to include the plural as well as the singular and to cover all genders.
The name assigned this Agreement and the Section captions used herein are for convenience of
reference only and shall not be construed to affect the meaning, construction or effect hereof.

Unless otherwise specified, the terms “hereof,” “herein” and similar terms refer to this
Agreement as a whole (including the exhibits hereto), and references herein to Sections refer to
Sections of this Agreement.

ARTICLE I
STOCKHOLDER RESTRICTIONS

SECTION 2.1.  Standstill. During the Standstill Period and unless otherwise approved
by the Board of Directors, the Investor will not, and will cause each of its controlled Affiliates
not to, directly or indirectly:

(a)  acquire or agree, offer, seek or propose to acquire (or request permission to
do so) ownership (including, but not limited to, Beneficial Ownership) of any of the assets or
businesses of the Company or any Subsidiary thereof (other than any assets or businesses that,
individually or in the aggregate, are de minimis to the Company or any Subsidiary thereof), or
any rights or options to acquire such ownership (including from a third party);

(b)  acquire, offer or propose to acquire or agree to acquire, whether by
purchase, tender or exchange offer, by joining a partnership, limited partnership, syndicate or
other 13D Group or otherwise, ownership (including, but not limited to, Beneficial Ownership)
of any securities issued by the Company or any Subsidiary thereof, or any rights or options to
acquire such ownership (whether currently, upon lapse of time, following the satisfaction of any
conditions, upon the occurrence of any event or any combination of the foregoing), other than (i)
the delivery of shares of Preferred Stock pursuant to the Purchase Agreement, (ii) the acquisition
of shares of Company Common Stock, or other property or assets pursuant to the terms of the
Preferred Stock, (iii) the acquisition of other securities of the Company as a result of any stock
splits, stock dividends or other distributions or recapitalizations or offerings made available by
the C ompany to holders of Preferred Stock or Company Common Stock, including rights
offerings, or (iv) any acquisition of shares of Company Common Stock approved by the Board
prior to such acquisition;

(c)  engage in any “solicitation” (within the meaning of the Exchange Act) of
proxies or consents relating to the election of directors with respect to the Company, or become a
“participant” in any “election contest” (both within the meaning of the Exchange Act) seeking to
elect directors not nominated by the Board of Directors;

(d)  knowingly induce or attempt to induce any other Person to initiate any
stockholder proposal with respect to the Company;



(e) in any manner, agree, attempt, seek or propose to deposit any securities of
the Company or any rights to acquire (whether currently, upon lapse of time, following the
satisfaction of any conditions, upon the occurrence of any event or any combination of the
foregoing) any securities of the Company in any voting trust or similar arrangement;

(3] publicly announce any intention, plan or arrangement inconsistent with the
foregoing;

(g)  form or join in the formation of a 13D Group with respect to any securities
of the Company or any Subsidiary thereof, other than any such “group” consisting exclusively of
the Investor and any Affiliates of the Investor;

(h) (i) finance (or arrange financing for) any Person for the purpose of
enabling such Person to take an action that, if taken by the Investor, or any of its controlled
Affiliates, would be prohibited under this Section 2.1 or (ii) otherwise knowingly encourage or
advise another Person, in each case in connection with any of the foregoing; or

@) seek to do any of the foregoing, request to amend or waive any provision
of this Section 2.1 (including, without limitation, this clause (i)), or make or seek permission to
make any public announcement with respect to any of the foregoing.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, (a) the parties hereby agree that nothing in this Section
2.1 shall apply to any portfolio company with respect to which the Investor is not the party
exercising control over the decision to purchase securities or to vote any such voting securities;
provided that the Investor does not provide to such entity any non-public information concerning
the Company or any of its Subsidiaries and such portfolio company is not acting at the request or
direction of or in coordination with the Investor, (b) nothing contained in this Section 2.1 shall
restrict the Investor or its controlled Affiliates from (i) acquiring or agreeing to acquire any debt
securities or bank or other debt that is not, by its express terms, convertible into any voting
securities of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries and exercising any rights or remedies in
connection therewith or (ii) acquiring or a greeing to acquire any voting securities of the
Company or any of its Subsidiaries; provided that (A) such acquisitions are not pursuant to a
tender offer or exchange offer (as such terms are used in the rules promulgated under the
Exchange Act), (B) such acquisitions or agreements to acquire do not otherwise violate this
Section 2.1 or United States securities laws and (C) after giving effect to such acquisitions or the
consummation of such agreements to acquire, the combined aggregate Beneficial Ownership of
the Company’s voting securities by the Investor and its controlled Affiliates does not exceed
9.9% of the outstanding voting securities of the Company (or any of its Subsidiaries, as
applicable), and (c) (A) the Investor and its Affiliates shall not be prohibited from participating
in any equity or debt financing in connection with the acquisition of the Company by any third
party that was approved or recommended by the Board of Directors (an “Alternative Trans
action”) and (B) the restrictions contained in this Section 2.1 shall terminate upon the
consummation of an Alternative Transaction.

SECTION 2.2.  Dispositions.



(a) The Investor agrees that during the Relevant Restricted Period, without the
prior written consent of the Company, it shall not, and shall not authorize, permit or direct its
Subsidiaries to, directly or indirectly, (a) offer, pledge or announce the intention to sell, sell,
contract to sell, sell any option or contract to purchase, purchase any option or contract to sell,
grant any option, right or warrant to purchase or otherwise transfer or dispose of any Shares or
securities convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for such Shares, including in any
transaction that involves any common equity securities, equity-linked securities (including
convertible securities) or equity forward sale agreements, relating to the Shares or (b) enter into
any swap or other agreement that transfers, in whole or in part, any of the economic
consequences of ownership of any of the Shares, whether any such transaction described in
clauses (a) or (b) above is to be settled by delivery of any Shares, in cash or otherwise; provided
that the Investor may (i) transfer any Shares to any of its Affiliates provided that such Affiliate
agrees to be bound by the terms of this Agreement, (ii) transfer any Shares to a third party
pursuant to a tender offer, exchange offer, merger, consolidation or other transaction (A) which is
recommended to the stockholders of the Company by the Board or (B) in the case of a merger or
other business combination transaction, which has been approved by the requisite vote of the
stockholders of the Company and (iii) engage in transactions involving an index-based portfolio
of securities that includes Company Common Stock (provided that the value of such Company
Common Stock does not represent more than 10% of the total value of such portfolio).

(b)  The restrictions set forth in this Section 2.2 shall terminate upon a Change
of Control.

ARTICLE III
REGISTRATION RIGHTS

SECTION 3.1.  Shelf Registration.

(@ No later than 90 days prior to the expiration of the Relevant Restricted
Period (any such date, the “Shelf Date”), the Company shall prepare and file with the SEC a
Registration Statement providing for registration and resale, on a continuous or delayed basis
pursuant to Rule 415 under the Securities Act, as such rule may be amended from time to time,
or any similar rule or regulation hereafter adopted by the SEC, of all of the Registrable
Securities; provided that such obligation shall be satisfied if the Company shall have in effect an
automatically effective shelf registration statement on Form S-3ASR that will permit the
registration and resale of all Registrable Securities (an “Existing Shelf Registration Statement”)
as of the Shelf Date (any such registration statement, a “Shelf Registration Statement”);
provided, further, that, for the avoidance of dou bt, the existence of an Existing Shelf
Registration Statement shall not have any effect on the restrictions set forth in Section 2.2. The
Shelf Registration Statement shall be on Form S-3 (or any comparable or successor form or
forms then in effect) under the Securities Act (or to the extent the Company is not eligible to use
Form S-3 or any comparable or successor form or forms, on Form S-1 or any comparable or
successor form or forms); provided, however, that if the Company is a well-known seasoned
issuer (as defined in Rule 405 under the Securities Act) at the time of filing of the Shelf
Registration Statement with the SEC, such Shelf Registration Statement shall be designated by
the Company as an automatic shelf registration statement (as defined in Rule 405 under the
Securities Act). In the event that the Shelf Registration Statement is not an automatic shelf
registration statement,




the Company shall use commercially reasonable efforts to cause the Shelf Registration Statement
to be declared effective under the Securities Act by the SEC as of the expiration of the Relevant
Restricted Period. The Company shall use commercially reasonable efforts to keep the Shelf
Registration Statement continuously effective under the Securities Act until the earlier of (i) the
date when all of the Registrable Securities covered by such Shelf Registration Statement have
been sold and (ii) the date on which the Registrable Securities covered by the Shelf Registration
Statement are eligible to be sold or transferred without being subject to any holding period or
volume limitations pursuant to Rule 144 under the Securities Act (the “Shelf Effective Period”).

(b)  The Investor agrees that if it wishes to sell Registrable Securities pursuant
to a Shelf Registration Statement and related Prospectus, it will do so in accordance with this
Section 3.1(b) and Section 3.5. The Investor, when wishing to sell Registrable Securities
pursuant to a Shelf Registration Statement and related Prospectus, whether in an underwritten
offering or otherwise, agrees to notif<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>